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Dear Fellow Unitholder:

It is an honor to write the first letter to my fellow unitholders of

Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P (PVG), which began trading on the

New York Stock Exchange on December 5, 2006. The offering was

well received and, to date, market performance of the units has been
strong, increasing nearly 29 percent from the $18.50 per unit initial
public offering (IPO) price to $23.95 per unit on February 26, 2007,

In January 2007, PVG announced its first quarterly cash distribution
to unitholders, paying $0.07 per unit, which was based on a $0.24 per
unit quarterly distribution ($0.96 per unit annualized), prorated for the
27 days in December during which PVG traded publicly.

The distributions PVG makes to its unitholders come solely from the
cash PVG receives due to its ownership in Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P (PVR}, a master limited partnership in the coal land
management and natural gas gathering and processing businesses.
PVG owns PVR's general partner, incentive distribution rights (IDRs),
and its two percenit génera1 partner interest, as well as approximately
42 percent of the limited partner units.

Since its PO in Oc;tober 2001, distributions by PVR to its limited
partner unitholders have increased 60 percent, from $1.00 per unit
(split-adjusted) to $1.60 in the most recent quarter, for a compound
annual growth rate of approximately nine percent. In addition to cash
recelved from owning PVR’s limited partner units and general partner
interest, PVG also receives cash from its ownership of PVR's 1DRs.
The IDRs grow in value as the distributions to PVR’s unitholders
increase, as depicted in the chart on this page. Because PVR

has achieved certain predetermined goals, namely increasing its
distribution to unit.hol'ders by 50 percent to $1.50 per unit, for every
dollar paid to PVR unitholders above $1.50 per unit, a dollar is also
paid to PVG as owner of the IDRs. Thus, as distributions to PYR's
unitholders increase, the cash flow to PVG will grow at an even
faster rate. This leverage to future PVR distribution increases is

an important feature of PVG.

As mentioned above, PVG's success is wholly dependent on PVR and
we believe PVR, with its two separate growth platforms in coal and
natural gas midstream, strong balance sheet, seasoned management
team and relatively low cost of capital is well-positioned to deliver
future growth which should translate into accelerated growth for
PVG unitholders. We appreciate your investment in Penn Virginia GP
Holdings and value your continued support.

s Lo e

A. James Dearlove
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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[ PART1

ItEﬂ;'l 1 Business

i
General

Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. (NYSE: PVG) is a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership formed in
June 2006 that currently owns three types of equity interests in Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (NYSE:
PVR) or PVR, a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership that is pnncnpally engaged in the management of
coal properties and the gathermg and processmg of natural gas. Unless the context requires otherwise, references
to the “Partnership,” “we,” “us” or “our” in this Annual Report on Form 10iK refer to Penn Virginia GP
Ho]dmgs L.P. and its sub51d1anes

Our Interest in PVR

. e - . b . .
Our only cash generating assets consist of our partnership interests in PVR, which consist of the following:

* a 2% general partner interest in PVR, which we hold through our 100% ownership interest in Penn
Virginia Resource GP, LLC, PVR’s general partner;

» all of the incentive distribution rights in PVR, which we hold through our 100% ownership interest in
PVR’s general partner; and ‘

+ 19,587,049 units of PVR, consisting of 15,541,738 common units and 41045 31t Class B units of PVR,
representing in the aggregate an apprommately 42% limited partner interest in PVR.

'All of our cash flows are generated from the cash distributions we receiwe with respect to the PVR
partnershlp interests we own. PVR is required by its partnership agréement to dlsmbute and it has hlstoncal]y
dlstrllbuted within 45°days of the end of each quarter, all of its cash on hand at thé end of each quarter, less cash
reserves established by its general partner in its sole discretion to provide forfthe proper conduct of PVR’s
busmess or to provide for future distributions. While we, like PVR, are structured as a limited partnership, our
capna] structure and cash distribution pollcy differ materlally from those of PYR Most notably, our general
parmer does not have an economic interest in us and is not entitled to receive any distributions from us and our
cap:lal structure does not include mcermve distribution rights. Therefore, o=ur distributions are allocated

excluswely to our common units, which is our only class of security currently outstandmg
- I

|Our ownership of PYR’s incentive distribution rights entitles us to receive the following percentages of cash
distributed by PVR as it reaches the following target cash distribution levels: .

* 13% of all incremental cash distributed in a quarnter after $0.275 has been distributed in respect of each
common unit and Class B unit of PVR for that quarter; !
¥

*  23% of all incremental cash distributed after $0.325 has been distributed in respect of each common
unit and Class B unit of PVR for that quarter; and '

| * the maximum sharing level of 48% of all incremental cash distributed after $0.375 has been distributed
| in respect of each common unit and Class B unit of PVR for that quarter.[.

Since 2001, PVR has increased its quarterly cash distribution eight times from $0.25 per unit ($1.00 on an
annualized basis) to $0.40 per unit ($1.60 on an annualized basis), which is the most recently declared
distribution. These increased cash distributions by PVR have placed us at the third and maximum target cash
dlstnbutlon level as described above. As a consequence, any increase in cash dls'mbutlon level from PVR will
allov:a us to share at-the 48% level and the cash distributions we receive from PVR' with respect to our indirect
ownershlp of the incentive distribution rights. ‘will increase more rapidly than those with respect to our ownership
of the general partner-interest and limited. partner interests. Because we are lat the maximum target cash
dlstnbuuon level on the incentive distribution rights, future growth in distributions: we receive from PVR will not
result from an increase in the target cash dlsmbutlon level associated with the incentive distribution rights.

1
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PVR’s Business

PVR is a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership formed by Penn Virginia Corporation (NYSE: PVA),
or Penn Virginia, in 2001 that is principally engaged in the management of coal properties and the gathering and
processing of natural gas. Both in its current limited partnership form and in its previous corporate form, PVR
has managed coal properties since 1882. Since the acquisition of a natural gas midstream business in March
2005, PVR conducts operations in two business segments: coal and natural gas midstream. In 2006,
approximately 72%, or $73.4 million, of our operating income was attributable to PVR’s coal segment, and
approximately 29%, or $29.4 million, of our operating income was attributable to PVR’s natural gas midstream
segment.

PVR Coal Segment Overview

PVR’s coal segment includes management and leasing of coal properties and subsequent collection of
royalties. Substantially all of PVR's leases require the lessee to pay minimum rental payments to PVR in
monthly or annual installments. PVR actively works with its lessecs to develop efficient methods to exploit its
reserves and to maximize production from its properties. PVR also earns revenues from providing fee-based coal
preparation and transportation services 1o its lessees, which enhance their production levels and generate
additional coal royalty revenues, and from industrial third party coal end-users by owning and operating coal
handling facilities through its joint venture with Massey Energy Company, or Massey. In addition, PVR eamns
revenues from oil and gas royalty interests it owns, from coal transportation, or wheelage, rights and from the
sale of standing timber on its properties.

As of December 31, 2006, PVR owned or controiled approximately 765 million tons of proven and probable
coal reserves in Central and Northern Appalachia, the San Juan Basin and the Hiinois Basin. As of December 31,
2006, approximately 87% of PVR’s proven and probable coal reserves was “steam” coal used primarily by
electric generation facilities, and the remaining 13% was metallurgical coal used primarily by steel
manufacturers. PVR enters into tong-term leases with experienced, third-party mine operators providing them the
right to mine its coal reserves in exchange for royalty payments. PVR does not operate any mines. In 2006,
PVR’s lessees produced 32.8 million tons of coal from its properties and paid to PVR coal royalty revenues of
$98.2 million, for an average gross coal royalty per ton of $2.99. Approximately 84% of PVR’s coal royalty
revenues in 2006 and 83% of PVR’s coal royalty revenues in 2005 were derived from coal mined on its
properties under leases containing royalty rates based on the higher of a fixed base price or a percentage of the
gross sales price. The balance of PVR’s coal royalty revenues for the respective periods was derived from coal
mined on its properties under leases containing fixed royalty rates that escalate annually.

PVR’s management continues to focus on acquisitions that increase and diversify its sources of cash flow.
During 2006, PVR increased its coal reserves by 96 million tons, or 14%, from its coal reserves as of
December 31, 2005, by completing three coal reserve acquisitions with an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $76 million. For a more detailed discussion of PVR’s acquisitions, see Item 7, “Managements’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Acquisitions and Investments.”

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment Overview

PVR owns and operates midstream assets that include approximately 3,631 miles of natural gas gathering
pipelines and three natural gas processing facilities located in Oklahoma and the panhandle of Texas, which have
160 million cubic feet per day (or MMcfd) of total capacity. PVR’s midstream business derives revenues
primarily from gas processing contracts with natural gas producers and from fees charged for gathering natural
gas volumes and providing other.relared services. PVR also owns a natural gas marketing business, which
aggregates third-party volumes and sells those volumes into intrastate pipeline systems and at market hubs
accessed by various interstate pipelines. PVR acquired its natural gas midstream assets through the acquisition of
Cantera Gas Resources, LLC, or Cantera, in March 2005. PVR’s management believes that this acquisition
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established a platform for future growth in the natural gas midstream sector and diversified its cash flows into
another long-lived asset base. Since acquiring these assets, PVR has expanded its natural gas midstream business
by addmg 181 miles of new gathering lines. :

For the year ended December 31, 2006, ’inlet volumes at PVR’s gas processing plants and gathering systems,
including gathering-only volumes, were 56.0 billion cubic feet (or Bcf), or approxnmately 153 MMcfd. Two of
PVlli s natural gas midstream customers, ConocoPhillips Company and BFP Canada Energy Marketing Corp.,
accounted for 32% and 17% of PVR’s natural gas midstream revenues in 2006.

Business Strategy

!Our primary business strategy is to increase our cash distributions to our unitholders. We intend to monitor
the implementation of PVR’s business strategies. Our business strategy includes 1supporting the growth of PVR
by purchasing PVR units or lending. funds to PVR to provide funding for acqu'isilions or for internal growth
projlects. We may also provide PVR with other forms of credit support, such as guarantees related to financing a
project.

|

lPVR’s primary business objective is to create sustainable, capitat-efficient growth in distributable cash flow
to maximize its cash distributions to its unitholders by expanding its ccal property management and natural gas
gath:enng and processing businesses, through both internal growth and acquisitions. PVR has successfully grown
its busmess through organic growth projects and acquisitions of coal properties and natural gas midstream assets,
Since PVR’s initial public offering in October 2001, it has completed numerousjaccretive acquisitions with an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $572 million. For a more detailed discussion of PVR’s acquisitions,
see Item 7, “Managements’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition fand Results of Operations—
Acqﬁisitions and Investments.” We and PVR' 1ntend to continue to pursue the followmg business strategies:

»  Continue to grow coal reserve holdmgs through acquisitions and invesiments in PVR's existing market
areas, as well as strategically entering new markets. During 2006, PVR increased its coal reserves by
96 million tons, or 14%, from its coal reserves as of December 31, 2005, by completing three coal
reserve acquisitions in 2006 with an aggregate purchase price of approx:male]y $76 million. While
PVR continues to build upon its | core holdings in Appalachia, it also continues to momtor coal
1 opportunities in other areas, For example, in 2005 and 2006, PVR made investments in 1llinois Basin
coal reserves because PVR vigws the Illinois Basin as a growth area, both because of its proximity to
power plants and because PVR expects future environmental regulation§ will require scrubbing of not
only higher sulfur Illinois Basin coal, but most coals, including lower s:ulfur coals from other basins.
PVR expects to continue to diversify its coal reserve holdings into this and other domestic basins in the
future. : ;

*  Expand PVR's coal services and mfrastrucmre business on its properties. Coal infrastructure projects
" typically involve long-lived, fee-based assets that generally produce slea’dy and predictable cash flows
and are therefore attractive to pubhcly traded limited partnerships. PVR owns a number of such
infrastructure facilities and intends to continue to look for growth opportunities in this area of
operations. For example, PVR completed construction of a new preparation and loading facility in
September 2006 on property it acquired in 2005. Operations at the facility commenced in the fourth
quarter of 2006. PVR’s joint venture with Massey is expected to provide other development
opportumnes for coal-related infrastructure projects. '

. Exparzd PVR's midstream operations through acquisitions of new garhermg and processmg related
assets and by adding new production to existing systems. PVR contmually seeks.new supplies of
natural gas to both offset the natural declines in production from the wells currently connected to its
systems.and to increase throughput volume, New natural gas supplies are obtained for all of PVR’s
systems by contracting for production from new wells, connecting new wells drilled on dedicated
acreage and by contracting for natui‘al gas that has been released from competitors’ systems. In 2008,
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PVR added approximately 181 miles of new gathering lines, allowing it to connect 158 new wells to its
systems.

s Expand PVR’s midstream operations by utilizing the advantages of its relationship with Penn Virginia.
During 2006, PVR began marketing Penn Virginia's natural gas production in Louisiana, Oklahoma
and Texas, replacing a third party marketing company and allowing Penn Virginia to realize higher
prices for its oil and natural gas sold in that region. PVR will continue to look for ways to take
advantage of its natural relationship with Penn Virginia in mutually beneficial ways.

PVR'’s Contracts
PVR Coal Segment

PVR eamns most of its coal royalty revenues under long-term leases that generally require its lessees to make
royalty payments to it based on the higher of a percentage of the gross sales price or a fixed price per ton of coal
they setl. The balance of PVR’s coal royalty revenues are earned under two long-term leases with affiliates of
Peabody Energy Corporation (NYSE: BTU), or Peabody, that requirc the lessees to make royalty payments to
PVR based on fixed royalty rates which escalate annually. A typical lease either expires upon exhaustion of the
‘leased reserves, which is the case with the two Peabody leases, or has a five to ten-year base term, with the lessee
having an option to extend the lease for at least five years after the expiration of the base term.

Substantially all of PVR’s leases require the lessee to pay minimum rental payments in monthly or annual
installments, even if no mining activities are ongoing. These minimum rentals are recoupable, usually over a
period from one to three years from the time of payment, against the production royalties owed to PVR once coal
production commences.

In addition to the terms described above, substantially all of PVR’s leases impose obligations on the lessees
to diligently mine the leased coal using modern mining techniques, indemnify PVR for any damages it incurs in
connection with the lessee’s mining operations, including any damages it may incur due to the lessee’s failure to
fulfill reclamation or other environmental obligations, conduct mining operations in compliance with all
applicable laws, obtain our written consent prior to assigning the lease and maintain commercially reasonable
amounts of general liability and other insurance. Substantially all of the leases grant PVR the right to review all
lessee mining plans and maps, enter the leased premises to examine mine workings and conduct audits of lessees’
compliance with lease terms. In the event of a default by a lessee, substantially all of the leases give PVR the
right to terminate the lease and take possession of the leased premises.

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment

PVR’s natural gas midstream segment is engaged in providing gas processing, gathering and other related
natural gas services. PVR’s midstream business generates revenues primarily from gas purchase and processing
contracts with natural gas producers and from fees charged for gathering natural gas volumes and providing other
related services. During the year ended December 31, 2006, PVR’s natural gas midstream business generated a
majority of its gross margin from two types of contractual arrangements under which its margin is exposed to
increases and decreases in the price of natural gas and natural gas liquids (or NGLs): (i) percentage-of-proceeds
and (i) keep-whole arrangements. In 2006, approximately 50% of the volumes were processed under gas
purchase/keep-whole contracts, 25% were processed under percentage of proceeds contracts, and 25% were
processed under fee-based gathering contracts. A majority of the gas purchase/keep-whole and percentage of
proceeds contracts include fee-based components such as gathering and compression charges. There is also a
processing fee floor included in many of the gas purchase/keep-whole contracts that ensures a minimum
processing margin should the actual margins fall below the floor.

Gas purchase/keep-whole arrangements. Under these arrangements, PVR generally purchases natural gas at
the welilhead at either (i) a percentage discount to a specified index price, (ii) a specified index price less a fixed
amount or (iii) a combination of (i) and (ii). PVR then gathers the natural gas to one of its plants where it is
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processed to extract the entrained NGLs, which are then sold to third parties at|market prices. PVR resells the
remammg natural gas to third parties at an index price which typically corresponds to the specified purchase
mdex Because the extraction of the NGLs from the natural gas during processing reduces.the British thermal
unit {or BTU) content of the natural gaq PVR retains a reduced volume of gas to sell after processing.
Acéordmgly under these arrangements, PVR s revenues and gross marging mcrease as the pnce of NGLs
1nc€eases relative to the price of natural gas; and its revenues and gross margins | decrease as the price of natural
gas increases relative 1o the price of NGLs. PVR has generally been able to mitigate its exposure in the latter case
by 1requmng the payment under many of its gas purchase/keep-whole arrangements of minimum processing
chax"ges which ensures that PVR receives a minimum amount of processing reventie. The gross margins that PVR
realllzes under the arrangements described in.clauses (i) and (iii) above also decrease in periods of low natural gas
prices because these gross margins are based on a percentage of the index price.

Percentage-of-proceeds arrangements. Under percentage-of-proceeds arrangements, PVR generally gathers
and|{processes natural gas on behalf of producers, sells the resulting residue ga'ic_, and NGL volumes at market
pnces and remits to producers an agreed upon percentage of the proceeds of those sales based on either an index
pnce or the price actual]y received for the gas and NGLs. Under these types of Iarrzmgemems PVR’s revenues
and lgross margins increase as natural gas prices and NGL prices increase, and its revenues and gross margins
decrease as natural gas prices and NGL prices decrease.

Commodity derivative contracts. PVR utilizes swap derivative contracts to hedge against the variability in
cash flows associated with forecasted natural _gas midstream revenues and cost of gas purchased. While the use of
denvatwe instruments limits the risk of adverse price movements, their use also may limit future revenues or cost
savmgs from favorable price movements. With respect to a swap contract, the coulmerpany is required to make a
payment to PVR if the settlement price for any settlement period is less than the swap price for such contract, and
PVR is required to make a payment to the counterpar(y if the settlement price for any settlement period is greater
than the swap price for such contract, See Note 9 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a
descinpuon of PVR’s derivative program.

%Fee-based arrangements. Under fee-based arrangements, PVR receives fees for gathering, compressing and/
or processing natural gas. The revenue PVR ‘earns from these arrangements is directly dependent on the volume
of nzlatural gas that flows through its systems and is independent of commodity prices. To the extent a sustained
dechne in commodity prices results in a decline in volumes, however, PVR’s revenues from these arrangements
would be reduced due to the related reduction in drilling and development of new suppIy

In many cases, PVR provides services under contracts that contain a comblénaﬂon of more than one of the
arrarllgements described above. The terms of PVR’s contracts vary based o gas quality conditions, the
competitive environment at the time the conlracts were signed and customer requxrements The contract mix and,
accordmgly, exposure 1o natural gas and NGL prices, may change as a result of ch‘anges in producer preferences,
expansion in regions where some types of contracts are more common and other market factors.

'PVR is also engaged in natural gas marketing by aggregating third-party volumes and selling those volumes
into iinterstate and intrastate pipeline systems such as Enogex and ONEOK and at market hubs accessed by
various interstate pipelines. The largest third-party customer is Chesapeake |Energy Corp. with volumes
contracted through 2007. Revenue from this business does not generate qualifying income for a publicly traded
limited partnership, but PVR does not expect it to have an impact on its fax status, as it does not represent a
sngruﬁcanl percentage of its operating mcome For the year ended December 31,2006, this business generated
$2.2 million in net revenue. |
i
Part?ership Structure :

Penn Virginia, a publicly held energy corlnpany based in Radnor,'Pennsylvania;, has been engaged in the coal
royalty business since 1882 and is also engagéd in the exploration, development anld production of oil and natural
gas. Penn Virginia formed PVR in July 2001 to own and operate substantially all of the assets of and assume the

I

l% ‘

l i
. 1
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liabilities relating to Penn Virginia’s coal land management business. PVR completed its initial public offering in
October 2001, We were formed by Penn Virginia in June 2006 to hold the 2% general partner interest, the
incentive distributions rights and a significant number of limited partner interests in PVR. We completed our
initial public offering, or our IPO, in December 2006.

The following diagram depicts our and our affiliates’ current simplified organizational and ownership
structure as of December 31, 2006 (after giving effect to the exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase
additional commeon units granted in connection with our IFO):

our generat partner, PVG GP, LLC, which is an indirect wholly owned subsndlary of Penn Virginia,
owns a non-economic interest in us;

Penn Virginia and certain of its affiliates own 32,087,424 common units representing an approximately
82% limited partner interest in us;

we own 19,587,049 units of PVR, consisting of 15,541,738 commeon units and 4045,311 Class B units,
representing in the aggregate an approximately 42% limited partner interest in PVR;

we own a 100% membership interest in Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, which serves as PVR's
general partner and owns a 2% general partner interest and 100% of the incentive distribution rights in
PVR; .

PVR owns 100% of the membership interests in Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC, or the Operating
Company; and

the Operating Company owns 100% of the membership interests in its subsidiaries, which include
Fieldcrest LLC, K Rail LLC, Loadout LLC, PVR Midstream LLC, Suncrest LLC, Toney Fork LLC
and Wise LLC.

Penn Virginia Corporation
and its Affiliates

(NYSE: PVA)
32,087,424 PVG Common Units 1
- 304,888 PVR Common Units 82% Limited

| Partner Interest

100% Ownership Interest

|:’18% Litmited Non-sconomic General
artner interest —I Partner Interest

| .
Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P.
and its Affiliates 0.6% Limited
(NYSE: PVG) Partner Interest
15,541,738 PVR Common Units
4,045,31 1 PVR Class B Units 42% Limited
-Partner Interest

Public Unithelders
6,987,076
PVG Common Units

|
100% Qwnership Interest

Public Unitholders
26,214,348

Penn Virginia Resource
PVR Common Units ° ginia T2

PVR Incentive Distribution Rights

56% Limited
Partner Interest —-| 2% General Partner Interest

Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.
and its Subsidiaries
{NYSE: PVR)
46,106,285 Units Qutstanding




Relationship with Penn Virginia Corporati;on

Penn Virginia has a history of successfully completing energy acquisitions. PVR pursues acquisitions
independently and has the opportunity to participate jointly with Penn Vlrgmla in reviewing potential
acquisitions. These may include acquisitions of properties containing multiple natural resources, such as oil,
natural gas, coal and timber, as well as infrastructure related to those resources, such as natural gas gathering
systems and coal preparation plants and loading facilities. PVR would expect to retain all coal reserves and
related infrastructure, all timber resources Iand all natural gas gathering systems acquired in any such joint
acqmsmon and to allocate the remaining purchased assets between PVR and Penn Virginia as appropnate after
c0n51dermg each entity’s characteristics and strategies. PVR expects that its dbll:ty to participate in potential
acqulsnmns with, and its access to the expenenced management team and mdustry contacts of, Penn Virginia
will beneﬁt it.

|Our partnership agreement provides that our general partner is restricted from engaging in any business
acti\;ities other than those incidental to its ownership of interests in us. Under an omnibus agreement between
Penn Virginia, PVR and PVR’s general partner, to which we became subject afterlour 1PO, Penn Virginia and’its
afﬁllates including us, are restricted in their ability to engage in any coal-related ?usmess See Item 13, “Certain
Rela;mnshlps and Related Transactions, and Director lndependence—Transacuons‘ with Related Persons.”

Partnership Distributions

Cash Distributions i

i

We paid a cash distribution of $0.07 per common unit on February 14, 2007,|which represented a $0.96 per
unit 'distribution on an annualized basis that was prorated for the period beglnn}ng on December 5, 2006, the
initial trading date of our common units on the New York Stock Exchange, and ending on December 31, 2006.
For the remainder of 2007, we expect to make quarterly distributions of $0.24 ($O 96 on an annualized basis) or
more per common unit. {

PVR Cash Distributions

{Our only cash generating assets consist of our partnership interests in PVR. PVR paid cash distributions of
51 475 per common and subordinated unit during the year ended December 31, 2006 In the first quarter of 2007,
PVR! paid a quarterly distribution of $0.40 ($1.60 on an annualized basis) per common and Class'B unit with
respect to the fourth quarter of 2006. For the remainder of 2007, PVR expects to pay quarterly distributions of
50. 40 ($1.60 on an annualized basis) or more ‘per common and Class B unit. '

EPrior to our IPO in December 2006,' Penn Virginia indirectly owned common units representing an
approximately 37% limited partner interest in PVR, as well the sole 2% general|partner interest and all of the
incentive distribution rights in PVR. Penn Virginia received total distributions from PVR of $28.3 million and
$21. 2 million in 2006 and 2005, as shown in the following table (in thousands):

|
. Year Ended December 31,
' . | 2006 2005
) Limited partner units ........... e I $22,799 $19,281 -
General partner interest (2%} .. ... ... ..o 1,254 1,021
Incentive distribution rights . . ... ... ... ... .. oL 4,273 910
Total oo SRR $28.326  $21212
{

:In conjunction with our IPO, Penn Virginia contributed its limited partner interest and general partner
mterest including its incentive distribution rights, in PVR to us in exchange for a limited partner interest and the
genefal partner interest in us. We also purchased additional common units and Class B units of PVR with the
proceeds of our IPO. Consequently, we are currently entitled to reccive certdin cash distributions payable
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with respect to the common and Class B units of PVR, the 2% general partner interest in PVR and the incentive
distribution rights in PVR.

Subordinated Units

Until November 14, 2006, PVR had a separate class of subordinated units representing limited partner
interests in PVR, and the rights of holders of subordinated units to participate in distributions to limited partners
were subordinated to the rights of the holders of PVR’s common units. On November 14, 2006, all of PVR’s
subordinated units converted into common units on a one-for-one basis and no subordinated units remain
outstanding.

Class B Units

PVR currently has a separate class of units representing limited partner interests in PVR called Class B
units. Each Class B unit is currently entitled to receive 100% of the quarterly cash distribution paid in respect of
each common unit except that the Class B units are subordinated to the common units with respect to the
payment of the minimum quarterly distribution and any arrearages with respect to the payment of the minimum
quarterly disiribution. PVR is required to submit to a vote of its unitholders, as promptly as practicable, a
proposal to change the terms of the Class B units in order to provide that the Class B units will convert into
common units, on a one-for-one basis, immediately upon the approval by PVR’s unitholders. We, as the holder
of the Class B units, will not be entitled to vote upon the proposal to change the terms of the Class B units, but
otherwise will vote with the common units as a single class on each matter with respect to which the common
units are entitled to vote. If PVR’s unitholders do not approve the proposal to change the terms of the Class B
units before December 8, 2007, then each Class B unit will be entitled to receive 115% of the quarterly amount
PVR distributes in respect of each common unit on a subordinated basis to the payment of the minimum
quarterly distribution on the common units.

Upon the dissolution and liquidation of PVR, each Class B unit is currently entitled to receive 100% of the
amount distributed on each common unit, but only after each common unit has received an amount equal to its
capital account, plus the minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter in which the liquidation occurs, plus any
arrearages in the minimum quarterly distribution with respect to prior quarters. If, however, PVR’s unitholders
do not approve the proposal to change the terms of the Class B units to make them convertible into common
units, then each Class B unit will be entitled upon liquidation to receive 115% of the amount distributed in
respect of each common unit, but only after each common unit has received an amount equal to its capital
account, plus the minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter in which the liquidation occurs, plus any
arrearages in the minimum quarterly distribution with respect to prior quarters on a subordinated basis to
liguidating distributions on the common units.

Limited Call Right

If at any time our general partner and its affiliates own more than 90% of our outstanding common units,
our general partner has the right, which it may, assign in whole or in part to any of its affiliates or us, but not the
obligation, to acquire all, but not less than all, of the remaining common units held by unaffiliated persons as of a
record date to be selected by our general partner, on at least ten but not more than 60 days’ notice, at a price not
less than the then-current market price of the common units.

As a result of our general partner’s right to purchase outstanding common units, a holder of common units
may have his or her common units purchased at an undesirable time or price. The tax consequences to a
unitholder of the exercise of this call right are the same as a sale by that unitholder of his or her units in the
market.

As of February 28, 2007, Penn Virginia and its affiliates owned 32,087,424 common units, representing
approximately 82% of our outstanding common units.




t

Certain Conflicts of Interest |

Conflicts of interest exist and may arise in the future as a result of the relatlommps among Penn Virginia,
PVR and their respective general partners and affiliates, on the one hand, and us and our limited partrers, on the
other hand. Like PVR, our general partner is controlled by Penn Virginia. Accordlngly, Penn Virginia has the
ablllty to elect, remove and replace the directors and officers of our general partner and the directors and officers
of the general partner of PVR. The directors, and officers of our general partner have fiduciary duties to manage
our general partner in a manner beneficial to its owner, Penn Virginia. At the same time, our general partner has
a fidiucmry duty to manage us in a manner beneficial to us and our unitholders.

lCertain of the executive officers and. non-independent directors of our general partner also serve as
executive officers and directors of Penn Virginia and the general partner of PVR: Consequently, these directors
and officers may encounter situations in which their fiduciary obligations to Penn Virginia or PVR, on the one
hand, and us, on the other hand, are in conflict.

Limits on Fiduciary RESpOnSlbllltlES I

|Our partnership agreement limits the llablhty and reduces the fiduciary dllllfl:b owed by our general partner
to our unitholders. Our partnership agreement also restricts the remedies available to our unitholders for actions
that nught otherwise constitute breaches of our general partner’s ﬁduc1ary duty.

Our partnership agreement contains provisions that waive or consent to conduct by our general partner and
its affiliates that might otherwise raise issues about compliance with ﬁduciaryl duties or applicable law. For
example, our partnership agreement provides: that when our general partner is acting in its capacity as our general
partner, as opposed to in its individual capacity, it must act in “good faith” and will not be subject to any other
standard under applicable law. In addition, when our general partner is acung in its individual capacity, as
opposed to in its capacity as our general partner, it may act without any ﬁdumary obligation to us or the
unitholders whatsoever. These standards reduce the obligations to which our general partner would otherwise be
held!

i

In addition to the other more speciﬁc; provisions limiting the 0bligation§ of our general partner, our
partnership agreement further provides that our general partner and its officers and directors will not be liable for
monetary damages 10 us, our limited pariners or assignees for errars of judgmenl or for any acts or omissions
unle;ss there has been 2 final and non-appealable judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction determining that
the genera! partner or its officers and directors acted in bad faith or engaged in fraud or willful misconduct, or in
the case of a criminal matter, acted with the knowledge that such conduct was unlawful.

I
Our partnership agreement generally provides that affiliated transactions and resolutions of conflicts of
interest not involving a vote of unitholders and that are not approved by the conflicts committee of the board of
directors of our general partner must be:

* on terms no less favorable to us than those generally being provided to or available from unrelated
third parties; or

= “fair and reasonable” to us, taking into account the totality of the relationships between the parties
" involved (including other transactidns that may be particularly favorable lor advantageous to us).

H our general partner does not seek dpproval from the conflicts commmee and its board of directors
detel’"mmes that the resolution or course of action taken with respect to the conflict of interest satisfies either of
the standards set forth in the bullet points above, then it will be presumed that, injmaking its decision, the board
of d1rectors which may include board members affected by the conflict of mterest, acted in good faith and in any
proceedmg brought by or on behalf of any llrmted partner or the partnership, the person bringing or prosecuting
such proceeding will have the burden of overcommg such presumption. These standards reduce the obligations to
whleh our general partner would otherwise be held.




In order to become a limited partner of our partnership, a common unitholder is required to agree to be
bound by the provisions in our partnership agreement, including the provisions discussed above. This is in
accordance with the policy of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act favoring the principle of
freedom of contract and the enforceability of partnership agreements. The failure of a limited partner or assignee
to sign a partnership agreement does not render the partnership agreement unenforceable against that person.

We are required to indemnify our general partner and its officers, directors, managers and certain other
specified persons, to the fullest extent permitted by law, against liabilities, costs and expenses incurred by our
general partner or these other persons. We must provide this indemnification unless there has been a final and
non-appealable judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction determining that these persons acted in bad faith or
engaged in fraud or willful misconduct. We must also provide this indemnification for criminal proceedings
unless our general partner or these other persons acted with knowledge that their conduct was unlawful. Thus,
our general partner could be indemnified for its negligent acts if it met the requirements set forth above.

Competition
PVR Coal Segment

The coal industry is intensely competitive primarily as a result of the existence of numerous producers.
PVR’s lessees compete with both large and small coal producers in various regions of the United States for
domestic sales. The industry has undergone significant consolidation which has led to some of the competitors of
PVR’s lessees having significantly larger financial and operating resources than most of PVR’s lessees. PYR’s
lessees compete on the basis of coal price at the mine, coal quality (including sulfur content), transportation cost
from the mine to the customer and the reliability of supply. Continued demand for PVR’s coal and the prices that
PVR’s lessees obtain are also affected by demand for electricity, demand for metallurgical coal, access to
transportation, environmental and government regulations, technological developments and the availability and
price of alternative fuel supplies, including nuclear, natural gas, oil and hydroelectric power, Demand for PVR’s
low sulfur coal and the prices PVR’s lessees will be able to obtain for it will also be affected by the price and
availability of high sulfur coal, which can be marketed in tandem with emissions allowances which permit the
high sulfur coal to meet federal Clean Air Act requirements.

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment

The ability to offer natural gas producers competitive gathering and processing arrangements and
subsequent reliable service is fundamental to obtaining and keeping gas supplies for PVR’s gathering systems.
The primary concerns of the producer are: :

« the pressure maintained on the system at the point of receipt;

« the relative volumes of gas consumed as fuel and lost;

* the gathering/processing fees charged;

+ the timeliness of well connects;

« . the customer service orientation of the gatherer/processor; and

¢ the reliability of the field services provided.

PVR experiences competition in all of its midstream markets. PVR’s competitors include major integrated

oil companies, interstate and intrastate pipelines and companies that gather, compress, process, transport and

market natural gas. Many of PVR’s competitors have greater financial resources and access to larger natural gas
supplies than PVR does.

Government Regulation and Envirenmental Matters

The operations of PVR’s coal segment and natural gas midstream segment are subject to environmental laws
and regulations adopted by various governmental authorities in the jurisdictions in which these operations are
conducted,
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PVR Coal Segment :

General Regulation Applicable to Coal Lessees PVR s lessees are obllgated to conduct mining operations
in compllance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulauons These laws and regulations
include matters involving the discharge of materials into the environment, employee health and safety, mine
permits and other licensing requirements, reclamation and restoration of mmmg properties after mining is
completed management of materials generated by mining operations, surface subsndence from underground
mmllng, water pollution, legislatively mandated benefits for current and retired coal miners, air quality standards,
protection of wetlands, plant and wildlife protecuon limitations on land use, storage of petroleum products and
substances which are regarded as hazardous under applicable laws and management of electrical equipment
contammg polychlorinated biphenyls (or 'PCBs). Because of extensive and comprehensive regulatory
requ1rements violations during mining operations are not unusual in the |ndustry and, notwithstanding
comphance efforts, PVR does not believe violations by its lessees can be eliminated completely. However, none
of the violations to date, or the monetary penalties assessed, have been material to Ius, PVR or, to our knowledge,
to P\llR‘s lessees. PVR does not currently expect that future compliance will have a material adverse effect on
PVR! ) i ‘

IWhile it is not possible to quantify the costs of compliance by PVR’s lessees with all applicable federal,
state and local laws and regulations, those costs have been and are expected to continue to be significant. The
lessées post performance bonds pursuant to federal and state mining laws and regu]auons for the estimated costs
of reclamauon and mine closing; including the cost of treating mine water dlscharge when necessary. We do not
accrue for such costs because PVR’s lessees are contractually liable for all costs relzmng to their mining
operatlons, including the costs of reclamdtlon and mine closure. However, PVR does require some smalier
lessees to deposit into escrow certain funds for reclamation and mine closure costs or post performance bonds for
these costs. Although the lessees typically accrue adequate amounts for these costs, their future operating results
would be adversely affected if they later determined these accruals to be msufﬁmen‘l Compliance with these laws
and regulauons has substantlally increased the cost of coal mining for all domestic ¢oal producers.

In addition, the utility industry, which |s the most significant end-user of? coal is subject to extensive
regullmon regarding the environmental 1mpact of its power generation activities which could affect demand for
coal mined by PVR’s lessees. The possibility exists that new legislation or regulanons may be adopted which
have la significant impact on the mining operauons of PVR’s lessees or their custbmers’ ability to use coal and
may ?equxre PVR, its lessees or their customers to change operations significantly ori incur substantial costs.

l

1|4.rr Emissions. The federal Clean Air Act and corresponding state and local laws and regulations affect all
aspeclts of PVR’s business, The Clean Air Act directly impacts PVR’s lessee5| coal mining and processing
operations by imposing permitting requ:rements and, in some cases, requnemems to install certain emissions
control equipment, on sources that emit various hazardous and non-hazardous air pollutants The Clean Air Act
also 1'nd1rectly affects coal mining operations by extensively regulating the air emlssmns of coal-fired electric
power generating plants. There have been a series of recent federal rulemakings lhal are focused on emissions
froml coal-fired electric generating facilities. Installation of additional emlsslons control technology and
additional measures required under U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (or the EPA) laws and regulations
will rlaake it more costly to operate coal-fired power plants and, depending on the requirements-of individual state
1mplememauon plans, could make coal a less attractive fuel alternative in the plalnmng and building of power
plants in the future. Any reduction in coal’s share of power generating capacity could negatlvely impact PVR‘
lessees ab1l|ty to sell coal, which could have a material effect on PVR’s coal royalty revenues.

l

The EPA’s Acid Rain Program, prov1ded in Title IV of the Clean Air Act, regulates emissions of sulfur
dxox1de from electric generating facilities. Sulfur dioxide is a by-product of coal combustlon Affected facilities
purchlase or are otherwise allocated sulfur c[10x1de emissions allowances, which must be surrendered annually in
an amount equal to a facility’s sulfur dioxide Iemlssmns in that year. Affected fac111ues may sell or trade excess
allowances to other facilities that require addmonal allowances to offset their sulfur dioxide emissions.
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In addition to purchasing or trading for additional sulfur dioxide allowances, affected power facilities can satisfy
the requirements of the EPA’s Acid Rain Program by switching to lower sulfur fuels, installing pollution control
devices such as flue gas desulfurization systems, or “scrubbers,” or by reducing electricity generating levels.

The EPA has promulgated rules, referred to as the “NOx SIP Call,” that require coal-fired power plants and
other large stationary sources in 21 eastern states and Washington D.C. to make substantial reductions in nitrogen
oxide emissions in an effort to reduce the impacts of ozone transport between states. Additionally, in March
2005, the EPA issued the final Clean Air Interstate Rule (or CAIR), which will permanently cap nitrogen oxide
and sulfur dioxide emissions in 28 eastern states and Washington, D.C beginning in 2009 and 2010, respectively.
CAIR requires these states to achieve the required emission reductions by requiring power plants to either
participate in an EPA-administered “cap-and-trade” program that caps emission in two phases, or by meeting an
individual state emissions budget through measures established by the state.

In March 2005, the EPA finalized the Clean Air Mercury Rule (or CAMR), which establishes a two-part,
nationwide cap on mercury emissions from coal-fired power plants beginning in 2010. While currently the
subject of extensive controversy and litigation, if fully implemented, CAMR would permit states to implement
their own mercury control regulations or participate in an interstate cap-and-trade program for mercury emission
allowances.

The EPA has adopted new, more stringent national air quality standards for ozone and fine particulate
matter. As a result, some states will be required to amend their existing state implementation plans to attain and
maintain compliance with the new air quality standards. For example, in December 2004, the EPA designated
specific areas in the United States as in “non-attainment” with the new national ambient air quality standard for
fine particulate matter. In November 2005, the EPA published proposed rules addressing how states would
implement plans to bring applicable non-attainment regions into compliance with the new air quality standard.
Under the EPA’s proposed rulemaking, states would have until April 2008 to submit their implementation plans
to the EPA for approval. Because coal mining operations and coal-fired electric generating facilities emit
particulate matter, PVR’s lessees’ mining operations and their customers could be affected when the new
standards are implemented by the applicable states.

In June 2005, the EPA announced final amendments to its regional haze program originally developed in
1999 to improve visibility in national parks and wildemess areas. As part of the new rules, affected states must
develop implementation plans by December 2007 that, among other things, identify facilities that will have to
reduce emissions and comply with stricter emission limitations. This program may restrict construction of new
coal-fired power plants where emissions are projected to reduce visibility in protected areas. In addition, this
program may require certain existing coal-fired power plants to install emissions control equipment to reduce
haze-causing emissions such as sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxide and particulate matter.

The U.S. Department of Justice, on behalf of the EPA, has filed lawsuits against a number of coal-fired
electric generating facilities alleging violations of the new source review provisions of the Clean Air Act. The
EPA has alleged that certain modifications have been made to these facilities without first obtaining certain
permits issued under the new source review program. Several of these lawsuits have settled, but others remain
pending. Depending on the ultimate resolution of these cases, demand for PVR’s coal could be affected, which
could have an adverse effect on PVR’s coal royalty revenues,

Carbon Dioxide Emissions. The Kyoto Protocol to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate
Change calls for developed nations to reduce their emissions of greenhouse gases to 5% below 1990 levels by
2012, Carbon dioxide, which is a major byproduct of the combustion of coal and other fossil fuels, is subject to
the Kyoto Protocol. The Kyoto Protocol went into effect on February 16, 2005 for those nations that ratified the
treaty.

In 2002, the United States withdrew its support for the Kyoto Protocol. Since the Kyoto Protocol becomes
effective, there has been increasing international pressure on the United States to adopt mandatory restrictions on
carbon dioxide emissions. The United States Congress has considered bills in the past that would regulate
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domesuc carbon dioxide emissions, but such bills have not yet received sufficient Congressional support for
passage into law. Several states have also either passed legislation or announced mlttatlves focused on decreasing
or stablllzmg carbon dioxide emissions assoc1ated with the combustion of fossﬂ fuels, and many of these
measures have focused on emissions from coal-fired electric generating facilities. For example, in December
2005 seven northeastern states agreed to implement a regional cap-and-trade prog}am to stabilize carbon dioxide
emissions from regional power plants beginning in 2009. This initiative aims to reduce emissions of carbon
dloxlde to levels roughly corresponding to.average annual emissions betWeenlz()OO and 2004. Receatly, in
February 2007, Massachusetts and Rhode Island agreed to join this group. Maryland is required to Jom the group
by June 2007, but implementing regulations h'ave not been finalized as of yet.

1t is possible that future federal and state initiatives to control carbon dioylude emissions could result in
1ncreased costs associated with coal consumption, such as costs to install addmonal controls to reduce carbon
dioxide emissions or costs to purchase emissions reduction credits to comply 'with future emissions trading
programs. Such increased costs for coal consumption could result in some customers switching to alternative
sources of fuel, which could negatively impact PVR’s lessees coal sales, and thereby have an adverse affect on
PVR’s coal royalty revenues. .

!

:Surface Mining Control and Reclamanon Act of 1977. The Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of
1977 (or SMCRA) and similar state statutes impose on mine operators the responi51b1hty of restoring the land to
its ongmal state and compensating the landowner for types of damages occumng as a result of mining
operauons and require mine operators 0 post performance bonds to ensure compllance with any reclamation
oblléatlons Regulatory authorities may attempt to assign the liabilities of PVR’s c'oal lessees to it if any of those
lessees are not financially capable of fulfilling those obligations. In conjunction w1th mining the property, PVR’s
coal|lessees are coniractually obligated under the terms of their leases to comply with all state and local laws,
including SMCRA, with obligations including the reclamation and restoration of the mined areas by grading,
shaping and reseeding the soil. Upon completion of the mining, reclamation generally is completed by seeding
with! grasses or planting trees for use as pasture or timberland, as specified in the approved reclamation plan.

I

|Hazardous Materials and Wastes. The Federal Comprehensive Env1ronmemal Response, Compensation and
Liability Act {or CERCLA or the Superfund law), and analogous state laws, 1rnpose liability, without regard to
fault or the legality of the original conduct; on certain classes of persons that are lcc>n51dered to have contributed
to the release of a “hazardous substance” mto the environment. These persons mclude the owner or operator of
the sne where the release occurred and compames that disposed or arranged for, the disposal of the hazardous
substances found at the site. Persons who are or were responsible for releases of hazardous substances under
CERCLA may be subject to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning up the hazardous substances that
have been released i into the environment and Ifor damages to natural resources.

Some products used by coal companies in operations generate waste contammg hazardous substances PVR
cou]d become liable under federal and state Superfund and waste management statutes if PVR’s lessees are
unable to pay environmental cleanup costs. CERCLA authorizes the EPA and, in some cases, third parties, to
take| actions in response to threats to the public health or the environment and to seek recovery from the
responsible classes of persons the costs theynlncurred in connection with such response It is not uncommon for
nelghbormg landowners and other third parties to file claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly
caused by hazardous substances or other wastes released into the environment.

|

1 . "
Water Discharges. PVR’s coal lessees’, operations can result in discharges{of pollutants into waters. The

Clean Water Act and analogous state laws and regulations impose restrictions and strict controls regarding the
dlSChﬂIgC of pollutants into waters of the United States or state waters. The unpermltted discharge of pollutants
such as from spill or leak incidents is prohibited. The Clean Water Act and regulatlons implemented thereunder
also| prohibit discharges of fill material and certain other activities in wetlands- unless authorized by an
appropriately issued permit. - !

[
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PVR’s lessees’ mining operations are strictly regulated by the Clean Water Act, particularly with respect to
the discharge of overburden and fill material into jurisdictional waters, including wetlands. Recent federal district
court decisions in West Virginia, and related litigation filed in federal district court in Kentucky, have created
uncertainty regarding the future ability to obtain certain general permits authorizing the construction of valley
fills for the disposal of overburden from mining operations. A July 2004 decision by the Southern District of
West Virginia in Ohio Valley Environmental Coalition v. Bulen enjoined the Huntington District of the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers from issuing further permits pursuant to Nationwide Permit 21, which is a general
permit issued by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to streamline the process for obtaining permits under
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. While the decision was vacated by the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals in
November 2003, a similar lawsuit has been filed in federal district court in Kentucky that seeks to enjoin the
issuance of permits pursuant to Nationwide Permit 21 by the Louisville District of the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers. In the event similar lawsuits prove to be successful in adjoining jurisdictions, PVR’s lessees may be
required to apply for individual discharge permits pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act in areas where
they would have otherwise utilized Nationwide Permit 21. Such a change could result in delays in PVR’s lessees
obtaining the required mining permits to conduct their operations, which could in turn have an adverse effect on
PVR'’s coal royalty revenues. Moreover, such individual permits are also subject to challenge. Alex Energy, Inc.,
a PVR lessee operating the Republic No. 2 Mine in Kanawha County, West Virginia, is currently a defendant in
Ohio Valley Environmental Coalition vs. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, a lawsuit in the Southern District of
West Virginia in which environmental groups challenged the issuance of individual valley fill permits to multiple
coal operators in the state. On June 13, 2006, the Corps of Engineers suspended the valley fill permits at issue in
the case, including the permit under which PVR’s lessee operates. The court has since stayed all proceedings
pending further action by the Corps on these permits. Although portions of the Republic No. 2 Mine continue to
operate under separate authorizations, delays in securing additional permit authorization for the areas affected by
the aforementioned permit withdrawal could have an adverse effect on PVR’s coal royalty revenues.

The Clean Water Act also requires states to develop anti-degradation policies to ensure non-impaired
watetbodies in the state do not fall below applicable water quality standards. These and other regulatory
developments may restrict PVR’s lessees’ ability to develop new mines or could require its lessees to modify
existing operations, which could have an adverse effect an PVR’s coal business.

The Federal Safe Drinking Water Act (or the SDWA) and its state equivalents affect coal mining operations
by imposing requirements on the underground injection of fine coat slurries, fly ash and flue gas scrubber sludge,
and by requiring permits to conduct such underground injection activities. In addition to establishing the
underground injection control program, the SDWA also imposes regulatory requirements on owners and
operators of “public water systems.” This regulatory program could impact PVR’s lessees’ reclamation
operations where subsidence or other mining-related problems require the provision of drinking water to affected
adjacent homeowners.

Mine Health and Safety Laws. The operations of PVR’s lessees are subject to stringent health and safety
standards that have been imposed by federal legislation since the adoption of the Mine Health and Safety Act of
1969. The Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969 resulted in increased operating costs and reduced productivity.
The Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977, which significantly expanded the enforcement of health and safety
standards of the Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969, imposes comprehensive health and safety standards on all
mining operations. In addition, as part of the Mine Health and Safety Acts of 1969 and 1977, the Black Lung
Acts require payments of benefits by all businesses conducting current mining operations to coal miners with
black lung or pneumoconiosis and to some beneficiaries of miners who have died from this disease.

Recent mining accidents in West Virginia and Kentucky have received national attention and instigated
responses at the state and national level that are likely to result in increased scrutiny of current safety practices
and procedures at all mining operations, particularly underground mining operations. In January 2006, West
Virginia passed a law imposing stringent new mine safety and accident reporting requirements and increased
civil and criminal penalties for violations of mine safety laws. On March 7, 2006, New Mexico Governor Bill
Richardson signed into law an expanded miner safety program including more stringent requirements
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for accident reporting and the installation of additional mine safety equipment at underground mines. Similarly,
on Apnl 27, 2006, Kentucky Governor ErmeiFletcher signed mine safety leglslanon that includes requirements
for increased inspections of underground mmes and additional mine safety equ1pment and authorizes the
assessment of penalties of up to $5,000 per incident for violations of mine ventilation or roof control
requirements. i
I

On June 15, 2006, the President signed new mining safety legislation that mandates similar improvements in
mine | safety practices, increases civil and criminal penalties for non- comphance requires the creation of
addrtronal mine rescue teamns, and expands the scope of federal oversight, inspection and enforcement activities.
Earller the federal Mine Safety Health Adnnmstratlon announced the promulgatldn of new emergency rules on
mine Isafety that took effect immediately upon their publication in the Federal Regrsrer on March 9, 2006. These
rules |address mine safety equipment, training, and emergency reporting requirements. Implementing and
complying with these new laws and regulations could adversely affect PVR’s lessees’ coal production and could
therefore have an adverse affect on PVR’s coal royalty revenues.

. : _

Mining Permits and Approvals. Numerous governmental permits or approvals are required for mining
operaﬂons In connection with obtaining these permits and approvals, PVR’s lessees may be required to prepare
and present to federal, state or local authontles data pertaining to the effect or impact that any proposed
production of coal may have upon the env1ronment The requirements imposed l:oyI any of these authorities may
be co'stly and time consuming and may delay commencement or continuation of mining operations.

!

In order to obtain mining permits and approvals from state regulatory authorities, mine operators, including
PVR’s lessees, must submit a reclamation plan for restoring, upon the completion of mining operations, the
mmed property to its prior condition, productlve use or other permitted conditibn. Typically, PVR’s lessees
subrmt the necessary permit applications between 12 and 24 months before they plaln to begin mining a new area.
In PYR s experience, permits generally are approved within 12 months after, a completed application is
submitled In the past, PVR’s lessees have generally obtained their mining permits without significant delay.
PVR’ s lessées have obtained or applied for pemnts to mine a majority of the reserves that are currently planned
to be |mmed over the next five years. PVR’s lessees are also in the planning phase for obtaining permits for the
additional reserves planned to be mined over the following five years. However, there are no assurances that they
will not experience d1fﬁculty in obtammg m1n1ng permits in the future. See 1pVR Coal Segment—Water
Discharges.” ;

OSHA. PVR’s lessees and its own busrness are subject to the Occupanonal Safety and Health Act {or
OSHA) and comparable state laws that regulate the protection of the health and safety of workers. In addition,
the OSHA hazard communication standard reqmres that information be mamtamed about hazardous materials
used or produced in PVR’s operations and that this information be prov1ded to employees, state and local
government authorities and citizens. ] i

|

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segmem l

General Regulation. PVR s natural gas gathenng facilities generally are exempt from the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission’s (or the FERC) _]unsdlctlon under the Natural Gas Act of 1938 (or the NGA), but FERC
regulanon nevertheless could significantly affect PVR’s gathering business and the market for its services. In
recent years, the FERC has pursued pro- competltlve policies in its regulation of 1nterstate natural gas pipelines
into whrch PVR’s gathering pipelines deliver. However, we cannot assure you that the FERC will continue this
approach as it considers matters such as prpelme rates and rules and policies that may affect rights of access to
natural gas transportation capacity. | .

For example, the FERC will assert Junsdxcnon over an affiliated gatherer that acts to benefit its pipeline
affihate in a manner that is contrary to the FERC’s policies concerning Junsdrcnonal services adopted pursuant to
the NGA. In addition, natural gas gathermg may receive greater regulatory scrutiny at both the state and
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federal levels now that the FERC has taken a less stringent approach to regulation of the gathering activities of
interstate pipeline transmission companies and a number of such companies have transferred gathering facilities
to unregulated affiliates. PVR’s gathering operations could be adversely affected should they be subject in the
future to the application of state or federal regulation of rates and services. PVR’s gathering operations also may
be or become subject to safety and operational regulations relating to the design, installation, testing,
construction, operation, replacement and management of gathering facilities. Additional rules and legislation
pertaining to these matters are considered or adopted from time to time. We cannot predict what effect, if any,
such changes might have on PVR’s midstream operations, but the industry could be required to incur additional
capital expenditures and increased costs depending on future legislative and regulatory changes.

In Texas, PVR’s gathering facilities are subject to regulation by the Texas Railroad Commission, which has
the authority to ensure that rates, terms and conditions of gas utilities, including certain gathering facilities, are
just and reasonable and not discriminatory. PVR’s operations in Oklahoma are regulated by the Oklahoma
Corporation Commission, which prohibits PVR from charging any unduly discriminatory fees for its gathering
services. PVR cannot predict whether its gathering rates will be found to be unjust, unreasonable or unduly
discriminatory.

PVR is subject to ratable take and common purchaser statutes in Texas and Oklahoma. Ratable take statutes
generally require gatherers to take, without undue discrimination, natural gas production that may be tendered to
the gatherer for handling. Similarly, common purchaser statutes generally require gatherers to purchase without
undue discrimination as to source of supply or producer. These statutes have the effect of restricting PVR’s right
as an owner of gathering facilities to decide with whom it contracts to purchase or transport natural gas. Federal
law leaves any economic regulation of natural gas gathering to the states, and Texas and Oklahoma have adopted
complaint-based regulation that generally allows natural gas producers and shippers to file complaints with state
regulators in an effort to resolve grievances relating to natural gas gathering rates and access. We cannot assure
you that federal and state authorities will retain their current regulatory policies in the future.

Texas and Oklahoma administer federal pipeline safety standards under the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act
of 1968, as amended (or the NGPSA), which requires certain pipelines to comply with safety standards in
constructing and operating the pipelines, and subjects pipelines to regular inspections. In response to recent
pipeline accidents, Congress and the U.S. Department of Transportation have recently instituted heightened
pipeline safety requirements. Certain of PVR’s gathering facilities are exempt from these federal pipeline safety
requirements under the rural gathering exemption. We cannot assure you that the rural gathering exemption will
be retained in its current form in the future.

Failure to comply with applicable regulations under the NGA, the NGPSA and certain state laws can result
in the imposition of administrative, civil and criminal remedies.

Air Emissions. PYR’s midstream operations are subject to the Clean Air Act and comparable state Jaws and
regulations. See “—PVR Coal Segment—Air Emissions.” These laws and regulations govermn emissions of
pollutants into the air resulting from the activities of PVR’s processing plants and compressor stations and also
impose procedural requirements on how PVR conducts its midstream operations. Such laws and regulations may
include requirements that PVR obtain pre-approval for the construction or modification of certain projects or
facilities expected to produce air emissions, strictly comply with the emissions and operational limitations of air
emissions permits PVR is required to obtain or utilize specific equipment or technologies to control emissions,
PVR’s failure to comply with these requirements could subject PVR to monetary penalties, injunctions,
conditions or restrictions on operations, and potentially criminal enforcement actions. PVR will be required to
incur certain capital expenditures in the future for air pollution control equipment in connection with obtaining
and maintaining operating permits and approvals for air emissions.

Hazardous Materials and Wastes, PVR’s midstream operations could incur liability under CERCLA and
comparable state laws resulting from the disposal or other release of hazardous substances or wastes originating
from properties PVR owns or operates, regardless of whether such disposal or release occurred during or prior to
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PVR’s acquisition of such properties. See “—PVR Coal Segment—Hazardous Materials and Waste.” Although
petroleum including natural gas and NGLs are generally excluded from CERCLA s definition of “hazardous
substance ” PVR’s midstream operations do generate wastes in the course of ordmary operations that may fall
within the definition of a “hazardous substance.”

l

‘PVR'S midstream operations generate wastes, including some hazardous wastes, that are subject to the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (or RCRA) and comparable state laws. However, RCRA currently
exempts many natural gas gathering and field processing wastes from class1ﬁcat10n as hazardous waste.
Specnﬁcally, RCRA excludes from the definition of hazardous waste produced waters and other wastes
assocrated with the exploration, development or production of crude oil, natural gas or geothermal energy.
Unrecovered petroleum product wastes, however, may still be regulated under RCRA as solid waste. Moreover,
ordmary industrial wastes such as paint wastes, waste solvents, laboratory wastes and waste compressor oils may
be regulated as hazardous waste. The lransportatlon of natural gas and NGLs in plplelmes may also generate some
hazardous wastes. Although PVR believes it is unlikely that the RCRA exemption will be repealed in the near
future repeal would increase costs for waste d1sposal and environmental remediation at PVR’s facilities.

IPVR currently owns or leases numerous properties that for many years have bleen used for the measurement,
gathering, field compression and processing of natural gas and NGLs. Although we believe that the operators of
such|properties used operating and disposal practices that were standard in the industry at the time, hydrocarbons
or wastes may have been disposed of or released on or under such properties or on or under other locations where
such|wastes have been taken for disposal. These properties and the substances disposed or released on them may
be subject to CERCLA, RCRA and analogous state laws. Under such laws, PVR could be required to remove or
remediate previously disposed wastes (including waste disposed of or released byl prior owners or operators) or
property contamination (including groundwater contamination, whether from prior owners or operators or other
hlstonc activities or spills) or to perform: remedial plugging or pit closure |operations to prevent future
comammauon PVR has ongoing remediation projects underway at several sites, but it does not believe that the
costs associated with such cleanups will have ‘a material adverse impact on PVR’s operauons Or revenues.

lWarer Discharges. PVYR’s midstream operauons are subject to the Clean Water Act. See “—PVR Coal
Segment—Water Discharges.” Any unpermitted release of pollutants, mcludmg NGLs or condensates, from
PVR’s systems or facilities could result in fines or penalties as well as significant remedtal obligations.

| SHA PVR midstream’s operations are subject to OSHA. See “—PVR Coal ISegment—OSHA.”
! | '

Employees and Labor Relations

Nelther we nor PVR have any employees. To carry out PVR’s operatlons, our general partner and its
afﬁhates employed 122 employees who directly supported PVR’s operations at December 31, 2006. Our general
partner considers current employee relations to be favorable.

Availlahle Information

:0ur internet address is www.pvgpholdings.com. We make available free of charge on or through our
website, our Corporate Governance Principles, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Executive and Financial
Ofﬁder Code of Ethics and Audit Committee Charter, and we will provide coples of such documents to any
umtholder who so requests. We also make available free of charge on or through our website our Annual Report
on Form 10- K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports
filed |or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (or the Exchange
Act) as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such matenal with, or furnish it to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission. All references in this Annual Report or Formh 10-K to the “NYSE?” refer to
the New York Stock Exchange, and all reference to the “SEC” refer to the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Item 1A Risk Factors

Our business and operations are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties as described below.
_However, the risks and uncertdinties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and
uncertainties that we are unaware of, or that we may currently deem immaterial, may become important factors
that harm our business, financial condition or resuits of eperations. If any of the following risks actually occur,
our business, financial condition or results of operations could suffer.

Risks Inherent in an Investment in Us
Our cash flow initially will be entirely dependent upon the ability of PVR to make cash distributions to us.

Our earnings and cash flow consist exclusively of cash distributions from PVR. Consequently, a significant
decline in PVR’s earnings or cash distributions would have a negative impact on us. The amount of cash that
PVR will be able to distribute to its partners, including us, each quarter principally depends upon the amount of
cash it generates from its coal and natural gas midstream businesses. The amount of cash that PVR will generate
will fluctuate from quarter to quarter based on, among other things:

+  the amount of coal its lessees are able to produce;
¢ the price at which its lessees are able to sell the coal;
"« the lessees’ timely receipt of payment from their customers;
e the amount of natiral gas transported in its gathering systems;
e the amount of thfoughput in itg processing plants;
* the price of natural gas;
. the price of NGLs; }
+ the relationship between natural gas and NGL prices;
« the fees it charges and the margins it realizes for its midstream services; and
¢ its hedging activities. .
In addition, the actual amount of cash that PVR will have available for distribution will depend ‘on other
factors, some of which are beyond its control, including: )
» the level of capital expenditures it makes;
» the cost of acquisitions, if any;
*  its debt service requirements;
» fluctuations in its working capital needs;
» restrictions on distributions contained in its debt agreements;
» prevailing economic conditions; and
» the amount of cash reserves established by its general partner in its sole discretion for the proper

conduct of its business.

Because of these factors, PYR may not have sufficient available cash each quarter to continue paying
distributions at their current level or at all. If PVR reduces its per unit distribution, we will have less cash
. available for distribution to you and would probably be required to reduce our per unit distribution to-you. You
should also be aware that the amount of cash PVR has available for distribution depends primarily upen PVYR’s
cash flow, including cash flow from financial reserves and working capital borrowings, and is not solely a
function of profitability, which will be affected by non-cash items. As a result, PVR may make cash distributions
during periods when it records losses and may not make cash distributions during periods when it records profits.
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ln addition, the timing and amount, if any, of an increase or decrease m distributions by PVR to its
unitholders will not necessarily be comparable to the timing and amount of any ch[anges in distributions made by
us. Our ability to distribute cash received from PVR to our unitholders is limited by a number of factors,

I

mclqdmg. ‘ |
« restrictions on distributions contained in any future debt agreements;
+ our estimated general and administrative expenses, including expenses we will incur as a result of
being a public company as well as ?ﬂler operating expenses;

» expenses of PVR’s general partner and PVR;

+ reserves necessary for us to make the necessary capital contributions to maintain our 2% general
partner interest in PVR, as l'BqUII'ed by PVR’s partnership agreement upon the issuance of additional
partnership securities by PVR; and,

= reserves our general partner beheves prudent for us to maintain the proper conduct of our business or to
provide for future distributions by us.

In addition, prior to making any distributions to our unitholders, we will reimburse our general partner and
its affiliates for all direct and indirect expenses incurred by them on our behalf. Our general partner will
determme the amount of these reimbursed expenses. In addition, our general[parmer and its affiliates may
perfonn other services for us for which we will be charged fees as determined by our general partner. The
reimbursement of these expenses, in addition to the other factors listed above, could adversely affect the amount
of dlstnbutmns we make to our unitholders: The actual amount of cash that is z{vallable for distribution to our
umtholders will depend on numercus factors many of which are beyond our control or the control of our general

partner. II

1
Qur rate of growth may be reduced to the extent we purchase additional units from PVR, which will reduce the
p}ércenmge of the cash we receive from the incentive distribution rights.

| Our business strategy includes supporting the growth of PVR by purchasmg PVR units or lending funds to
PVR to provide funding for the acquisition of a business or asset or for an internal growth project. To the extent
we ipurchase common units or securities not entitled to a current dlsmbumfn from PVR, the rate of our
dlstnbutmn growth may be reduced, at least i in the short term, as less of our cash distributions will come from our
ownershlp of PVR incentive distribution nghts whose distributions increase atja faster rate than those of our
other securities. !

1
b

Our ability 1o meet our financial needs mdy be adversely affected by our cash distribution policy and our lack
af operational assets. :

i Our cash distribution policy, which is con51stent with our partnership agreement, requires us to distribute all
of our available cash quarterly. QOur only cash generating assets are panners'hlp interests in PVR, and we
currently have no independent operations separate from those of PYR. Moreover,jas discussed below, a reduction
in PVR’S distributions will disproportionately affect the amount of cash distributions we receive. Given that our
cash distribution pollcy is to distribute available cash and not retain it and that our only cash generating assets are
pannershlp interests in PVR, we may not have enough cash to meet our needs if any of the following events
oceur;

1
* an increase in our operating expenses;
» anincrease in general and administrative expenses;
* anincrease in working capital requirements; or

« an increase in cash needs of PVR or its subsidiaries that reduces PVR's distributions.

' 19




PVR's general partner, with our consent but without the consent of our unitholders, may limit or modify the
incentive distributions we are entitled to receive, which may reduce cash distributions to you.

We own PVR’s general partner, which owns the incentive distribution rights in PVR that entitle us to
receive increasing percentages, up to a maximum of 48% of any cash distributed to PVR as certain target
distribution levels are reached in excess of $0.375 per PVR unit in any quarter. A substantial portion of the cash
flow we receive from PVR is provided by these incentive distribution rights. Because of the high percentage of
PVR’s incremental cash flow that is distributed to the incentive distribution rights, certain potential acquisitions
might not increase cash available for distribution per PVR unit. In order to facilitate acquisitions by PVR, the
board of directors of the general partner of PVR may elect to reduce the incentive distribution rights payable to
us with our consent, which we may provide without the approval of our unitholders if our general partner
determines that such reduction does not adversely affect our limited partners in any material respect. These
reductions may be permanent reductions in the incentive distribution rights or may be reductions with respect to
cash flows from the potential acquisition. If distributions on the incentive distribution rights were reduced for the
benefit of the PVR units, the total amount of cash distributions we would receive from PVR, and therefore the
amount of cash distributions we could pay to our unitholders, would be reduced.

A portion of our partnership interests in PVR are subordinated to PVR's common units, which would result in
decreased distributions to us if PVR is unable to meet its minimum gquarterly distribution,

We own 19,587,049 units representing limited partner interests in PVR, of which approximately 79.3% are
common units and 20.7% are Class B units. Currently, the Class B units will not receive any distributions in a
quarter until PVR has paid the minimum quarterly distribution of $0.25 per PVR unit, plus any arrearages in the
payment of the minimum quarterly distribution from prior quarters, on all of the outstanding PVR common units.
Distributions on the Class B units are, therefore, more uncertain than distributions on PYR’s common units.
Furthermore, no distributions may be made on the incentive distribution rights until the minimum quarterly
distribution has been paid on all outstanding PVR units. Therefore, distributions with respect to the incentive
distribution rights are even more uncertain than distributions on the Class B units. Neither the Class B units nor
the incentive distribution rights are entitled to any arrearages from prior quarters.

A reduction in PVR's distributions will disproportionately affect the amount of cash distributions to which we '
are currently entitled.

Our ownership of the incentive distribution rights in PVR, through our ownership interests in PVR’s general
partner, the holder of the incentive distribution rights, entitles us to receive our pro rata share of specified
percentages of total cash distributions made by PVR with respect to any particular quarter only in the event that
PVR distributes more than $0.275 per unit for such quarter. As a result, the holders of PVR’s common units and
Class B units have a priority over the holders of PVR’s incentive distribution rights to the extent of cash
distributions by PVR up to and including $0.275 per unit for any quarter.

Our incentive distribution rights entitle us to receive increasing percentages, up to 48%, of all cash
distributed by PVR. Because we are at the maximum target cash distribution level on the incentive distribution
rights, future growth in distributions we receive from PVR will not result from an increase in the target cash
distribution level associated with the incentive distribution rights. Furthermore, a decrease in the amount of
distributions by PVR to less than $0.375 per unit per quarter would reduce our percentage of the incremental cash
distributions above $0.325 per common unit per quarter from 48% to 23%. As a result, any such reduction in
quarterly cash distributions from PVR would have the effect of disproportionately reducing the amount of all
distributions that we receive from PVR based on our ownership interest in the incentive distribution rights in
PVR as compared to cash distributions we receive from PVR with respect to our 2% general partner interest in
PVR and our PVR units.
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If dzstrzbuuons on our common units are not paid with respect to any fiscal quarter, including those at the
anlt:capared initial distribution rate, our unitholders will not be entitled to rece:ve such payments in the future.

Our distributions to our unithotders will not be cumulative. Consequently, if] distributions on our common
unitsare not paid with respect to any fiscal quarter, including those at the anticipated initial distribution rate, our
unitholders will not be entitled to receive such payments in the future.

Our cash distribution policy limits our ability to grow.

Because we distribute all of our available cash, our growth may not be as fast as businesses that reinvest
their avallable cash to expand ongoing operations. In fact, our growth initially will be completely dependent upon
PVR}s ability to increase its quarterly distribution per unit because currently our oply cash-generating assets are
partnership interests in PVR. If we issue additional units or incur debt to fund acqunsmons and growth capital
expenditures, the payment of distributions on those additional units or interest on thlat debt could increase the risk
that we will be unable to maintain or increase our per unit distribution level.

Consnstent with the terms of its partnersh:p agreement, PVR distributes to its partners its available cash each
quarter In determining the amount of cash available for distribution, PVR sets a51de cash reserves, which it uses
to fund its growth capital expenditures. Additionally, PVR has relied upon external financing sources, including
commerc1al borrowings and other debt and equity issuances, to fund its acquisition capital expenditures.
Accolrdmgly, to the extent PVR does not have sufficient cash reserves or is unable: to finance growth externally,
its cash distribution policy will significantly impair its ability to grow. In addition, to the extent PVR issues
addmonal units in connection with any acquisitions or growth capital expenditures, the payment of distributions
on those additional units may increase the risk that PVR will be unable to mam[am or increase its per unit
dlsmPuuon level, which in turn may impact the available cash that we have to dlstnbute to our unitholders. The
incurrence of additional debt to finance its growth strategy would result in mcreased interest expense to PVR,
which in tumn may reduce the available cash that we have to distribute to our unitholders.

the we or PVR may incur debt to pay dtsmbunons to our and its unitholders, respectively, the agreements
goslfemmg such debt may restrict or limit the distributions we pay 10 our umrho[dfrs

\lNhlle we or PVR are permitted by our partnership agreements to incur debt to pay distributions to our
umtholders respectively, our or PVR's payment of principal and interest on such' indebtedness will reduce our
cash available for distribution on our unitholders. We anticipate that any credit falmllty we enter into will limit
our ability to pay distributions to our umtholders during an event of default or if aré event of default would result
from the distributions. In addition, any future levels of indebtedness may adversely affect our ability to obtain
additional financing for future operaticns or capital needs, limit our ability to pursue acquisitions and other
business opportunities, or make our results of operations more susceptible to adiverse economic or operating
condilions.

Furthermore PVR’s debt agreementq 1ncludmg its revolving credit fac111ty and senior notes, contain
covenants limiting its ability to incur indebtedness, grant liens, engage in transactions with affiliates and make
dlsmbunons to us. They also contain covenants requiring PVR to maintain certain financial ratios. PVR is
prohlbned from making any distribution to its partners if such distribution would cause an event of default or
olhenlmse violate a covenant under these agreements. See Item 7, “Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources——Long -Term Debt,” for more
information about PVR’s revolving credit facility and senior notes. !

Ouir unitholders do not elect our general partner or vote on our general partner’s directors. The owner of our
general partner owns a sufficient number of common units to allow it to prevent rihe removal of our general

partner. ;

IlJnlike the holders of common stock in a corperation, our unitholders have only limited voting rights on
mattelrs affecting our business and, therefore, limited ability to influence managen}ent's decisions regarding our
business. Our unitholders do not have the ability to elect our general partner or the directors of our general
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partner and will have no right to elect our general partner or the directors of our general partner on an annual or
other continuing basis in the future. The board of directors of our general partner, including our independent
directors, is chosen by Penn Virginia, its sole member. Furthermore, if our public unitholders are dissatisfied
with the performance of our general partner, they will have little ability to remove our general partner. Our
general partner may not be removed except upon the vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding
common units. Because Penn Virginia owns more than one-third of our outstanding units, our general partner
currently cannot be removed without its consent. As a result of these provisions, the price at which our common
units will trade may be lower because of the absence or reduction of a takeover premium in the trading price.

Our general partner may cause us to issue additional common units or other equity securities without your
approval, which would dilute your ownership interesis.

Our general partner may cause us to issue an unlimited number of additional common units or other equity
securities of equal rank with the common units, without unitholder approval. The issuance of additional common
units or other equity securities of equal rank will have the following effects:

» our unitholders’ proportionate ownership interest in us will decrease;

* the amount of cash available for distribution on each common unit may decrease;

= the relative voting strength of each previously outstanding common unit may be diminished;
* the ratio of taxable income to distributions may increase; and

= the market price of the common units may decline.

The control of our general partner may be transferred to a third party who could replace our current
management team, in either case, without unitholder consent.

Our general partner may transfer its general partner interest to a third party in a merger or in a sale of all or
substantially all of its assets without the consent of our unitholders. Furthermore, Penn Virginia, the owner of our
general partner, may transfer its ownership interest in our general partner to a third party. The new owner of our
general partner would then be in a position to replace the board of directors and officers of our general partner
and to contrel the decisions taken by the board of directors and officers.

If PVR’s unitholders remove PVR's general partner, we would lose our genem[ pariner interest and incentive
distribution rights in PVR and the ability to marage PVR.

We currently manage PVR through Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, PVR’s general partner and our
wholly-owned subsidiary. PVR’s partnership agreement, however, gives unitholders of PVR the right to remove
the general partner of PVR upon the affirmative vote of holders of two-thirds of PVR’s outstanding units. If Penn
Virginia Resource GP, LLC were removed as general partner of PVR, it would receive cash or common units in
exchange for its 2% general partner interest and the incentive distribution rights and would lose its ability to
manage PVR. While the common units -or cash we would receive are intended under the terms of PVR’s
partnership agreement to fully compensate us in the event such an exchange is required, the value of these
common units or investments we make with the cash over time may not be eqmvalent to the value of the general
partner interest and the incentive distribution rights had we retained them.

In addition, if Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLLC is removed as general partner of PVR, we would face an
increased nisk of being deemed an investment company. See “—If in the future we cease to manage and control
PVR, we may be deemed to be an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940.”

Our ability to sell our partnership interests in PVR may be limited by securities law restrictions and liquidity
constraints.

We own 15,541,738 common units and 4,045,311 Class B units of PVR, all of which are unregistered and
restricted securities within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933. Unless we were 1o register
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these units, we are limited to selling into the market in any three-month period an amount of PVR common units
that does not exceed the greater of 1% of the total number of common units outstandmg or the average weekly
reponed trading volume of the common units for the four calendar weeks prior té) the sale. Furthermore, there is
no public market for PVR’s Class B units aqd we do not expect one to develop. Ilf we were required to sell Class
B units for any reason, we likely would receive a discouiit to the current market price of PVR’s common units,
andl that discount may be substantial. In addition, we face contractual limitations {Jn our ability to sell our general
partner interest and incentive distribution rights and the market for such interests ils illiquid.
| | |

. You may not have limited liability if a court finds that unitholder action constitutes control of our business.

Under Delaware law, you could be held liable for our obligations to the same extent as a general partner if a
court determined that the right or the exercise of the right by our unitholders as ajgroup to remove or replace our
general partner, to approve some amendments to the partnership agreement orlto take other action under our
partnershlp agreement constituted participation in the “control” of our business. Addmonally, the limitations on
the liability of holders of limited partner mterests for the liabilities of a limited pannershlp have not been clearly
established in many jurisdictions.

I Furthermore, Section 17-607 of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Pam'lership Act provides that, under
some circumnstances, a unitholder may be liable to us for the amount of a distribution for a period of three years
from the date of the distribution.

|
i
If in the future we cease to manage and control PVR, we may be deemed to be an investment company under
tl?e Investment Company Act of 1940,

| If we cease to manage and control PVR and are deemed to be an investmentjcompany under the Investment
Company Act of 1940, we would either have to register as an investment company under the Investment
Conllpany Act of 1940, obtain exemptive relief from the SEC or modify our !:;rganizationa] structure or our
coniractual rights to fall outside the definition of an investment company. Regisiering as an investment company
could among other things, materially limit our ability to engage in lransacuons with affiliates, including the
purchase and sale of certain securities or other property to or from our afﬁlmtes restrict our ability to borrow
funds or engage in other transactions involving leverage and require us to add additional directors who are
independent of us and our affiliates, and adversely affect the price of our commonlumts.

; .

O'ur partnership agreement restricis the rights of unitholders owning 20% or mcln'e of our units.

Our unitholders™ voting rights are restricted by the provision in our partnership agreement generally
providing that any units held by a person that owns 20% or more of any class 5f units then outstanding, other
than our general partner, its affiliates, their transferees and persons who acqu1red such units with the prior
approval of the board of directors of the general partner, cannot be voted on any matter. In addition, our
partnership agreement contains provisions limiting the ability of our unitholders' to call meetings or to acquire
mfolrmatlon about our operations, as well as other provisions limiting our unitholders’ ability to influence the
manner or direction of our management. As a result, the price at which our common units will trade may be
lower because of the absence or reduction of a takeover premium in the trading pn;:e

1
i

I
PVR may issue additional limited partner interests or other equity securities, which may increase the risk that
PVR will not have sufficient available cash to maintain or increase its cash distfibution level.

PVR has wide latitude to issue addmorlal limited partner interests on the terms and conditions established by
its general partner. We receive cash distributions from PVR on the geneml partner interests, incentive
distribution rights and the limited partner interests that we hold. Because a majority of the cash we receive from
PVR is attributable to our ownership of the incentive distribution rights, payment of distributions on additional
PVR limited partner interests may increase the risk that PVR will be unable to m!umam or increase its quarterly
cash distribution per unit, which in urn may reduce the amount of incentive dlStnbuthl‘lS we receive and the
available cash that we have to distribute o our unitholders.
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If PVR's general partner is not fully reimbursed or indemnified for obligations and liabilities it incurs in
managing the business and affairs of PVR, its value, and, therefore, the value of our common units, could
decline.

The general partner of PVR may make expenditures on behalf of PVR for which it will seek reimbursement
from PVR. Under Delaware partnership law, the general partner, in its capacity as the general partner of PVR,
has unlimited liability for the obligations of PVR, such as its debts and environmental liabilities, except for those
contractual obligations of PVR that are expressly made without recourse to the general partner. To the extent its
general partner incurs obligations on behalf of PVR, it is entitled to be reimbursed or indemnified by PVR. If
FVR is unable or unwilling to reimburse or indemnify its general partner, PVR’s general partner may not be able
to satisfy those liabilities or obligations, which would reduce its cash flows to us.

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest
PVR’s general partner owes fiduciary duties to PVR’s unitholders that may conflict with our interests.

Conflicts of interest exist and may arise in the future as a result of the relationships between us and our
affiliates, including PVR’s general partner, on one hand, and PVR and its unitholders, on the other hand. The
directors and officers of PVR’s general partner have fiduciary duties to manage PVR in a manner beneficial to
us, the owner of PVR’s general partner. At the same time, PVR’s general partner has a fiduciary duty to manage
PVR in a manner beneficial to PVR and its unitholders. The board of directors of PYR’s general partner or its
conflicts committee will resolve any such conflict and they have broad latitude to consider the interests of all
parties to the conflict. The resolution of these conflicts may not always be in our best interest or that of our
unitholders.

For example, conflicts of interest may arise in the following situations:

» the terms and conditions of any coatractual agreements between us and our affiliates, on-the one hand,
and PVR, on the other hand;

« the interpretation and enforcement of contractual obligations between us and our affiliates, on one
hand, and PVR, on the other hand;

« the determination of the amount of cash to be distributed to PVR’s partners and the amount of cash to
be reserved for the future conduct of PVR’s business;

* the determination of whether PVR should make acquisitions and on what terms;

» the determination of whether PVR should use cash on hand, borrow or issue equity to raise cash to
finance acquisitions or expansion capital projects, repay indebtedness, meet working capital needs, pay
distributions or otherwise;

« any decision we make in the future to engage in business activities independent of PVR; and

= the allocation of shared overhead expenses to PVR and us.

Potential conflicts of interest may arise among our general partner, its affiliates and us. Our general partner
has limited fiduciary duties to us and our unitholders, which may permit it to favor its own interests to the
detriment of us and our unitholders.

Penn Virginia and its affiliates own an approximately 82% limited partner interest in us and own and control
our general partner. Conflicts of interest may arise among our general partner and its affiliates (including Penn
Virginia}, on the one hand, and us and our unitholders, on the other hand. As a result of these conflicts, our
general partner may favor its own interests and the interests of its affiliates over the interests of our unitholders.
These conflicts include, among others, the following situations:

*  QOur general partner is allowed to take into account the interests of parties other than us in resolving
conflicts of interest, which has the effect of limiting its fiduciary duty to our unitholders.
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*  Our general partner determines whether or not we incur debt and that decision may affect our or PVR’s
credit ratings. '

*  QOur general partner may limit its llablllly and will reduce its fiduciary duties under our partnership
agreement, while also restricting the remedies available o our umtho}ders for actions that, without
these limitations and reductions, might constitute breaches of fiduciary duty. As a result of purchasing
units, our unitholders consent to some actions and conflicts of interest th'at might otherwise constitute a
breach of fiduciary or other duties u;nder applicable state law.

*  Qur general partner controls the enforcement of obligations owed to us by it and its affiliates.

. . : I
* Our-general partner decides whether to retain separate counsel, accountants or others to perform
services for us.

*  Qur partnership agreement gives our general partner broad discretion in establishing financial reserves
for the proper conduct of our business. These reserves also will affect the amount of cash available for
distribution. l

. [ - - .
* Qur general partner determines the amount and timing of asset purchases and sales, capital
expenditures, borrowings, issuances of additional partnership securities a:nd reserves, each of which can
affect the amount of cash that is available to be distributed to our unitholders.

«  Our general partner determines which costs incurred by it and its affiliates are reimbursable by us.

* * Our partnership agreement does nol: restrict our general partner from causl,ing us to pay it or its affiliates
for any services rendered on temlls that are fair and reasonable to us or entering into additional
contractual arrangements with any (If these entities on our behalf.

The fiduciary duties of our general partner’s officers and directors may conflict with those of PVR's general
partner, and our partnership agreement hmrrs the ligbility and reduces the fi ductary duties of our general
partner to us.

Our general partner’s officers and directors have fiduciary duties to manage our business in a manner
beneficial to us and our unitholders and the owner of our general partner, Penn Vlrglma However, a majority of
our general partner’s directors and all of its officers are also directors or officers ofiPVR’s general partner, which
has ﬁduc1ary duties to manage the business: of PVR in a manner beneficial to 1PVR and PVR’s unitholders.
Consequently. these directors and officers may encounter situations in which [hClI; fiduciary obligations to PVR
on the one hand, and us, on the other hand, are in conflict. The resolution of these conflicts may not always be in
our best interest or that of our unitholders. 1

}n addition, our partnership agreement Iimits the liability and reduces the ﬁ;duciary duties of our general
partaer to our unitholders. Our partnership agreement also restricts the remedies available to unitholders for
actions that might otherwise constitute a breach of our general partner’s fiduciary duues owed to unitholders. By
purchasing our units, you are treated as having consented to various actions comemplated in the partnership
agreement and conflicts of interest that might otherwise constitute a breach of ﬁ]ducmry or other duties under
appllcable state law. !

We may face conflicts of interest in the allocation of administrative time among Fenn Virginia's business, our
buiiness and PVR's business.

Qur general partner shares administrative personnel with Penn Virginia arll'd PVR’s general partner to
operate Penn Virginia's business, our business and PVR’s business. Qur general pzimncr’s officers, who are also
the officers of PVR’s general partner and/or Penn Virginia, will have responsibility for overseeing the allocation
of time spent by administrative personnel on our behalf and on behalf of PVR land/or Penn Virginia. These
ofﬁce'rs face conflicts regarding these time fallocations that may adversely affect our or PVR’s results of
operanons cash flows and financial condmon It is unlikely that these allocatmn‘s will be the result of arms-
Iength negotiations among Penn Virginia, our general partner and PVR’s general partner
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Our general partner has a ¢all right that may require you to sell your common units at an undesirable time or
price.

If at any time more than 90% of our outstanding units are owned by our general partner and its affiliates, our
general partner will have the right, which it may assign to any of its affiliates or to us, but not the obligation, to
acquire all, but not less than all, of the remaining units held by unaffiliated persons at a price equal to the greater
of (x) the average of the daily closing prices of the common units over the 20 trading days preceding the date
three days before notice of exercise of the call right is first mailed and (y) the highest price paid by our general
partner or any of its affiliates for common units during the 90 day period preceding the date such notice is first
mailed. As a result, you may be required to sell your common units at an undesirable time or price and may not
receive any return on your investment. You may also incur a tax liability upon a sale of your common units.
Affiliates of our general partner currently own approximately 82% of our outstanding common units.

Our general partner may mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or grant a security interest in all or substantially all
of our assets without prior approval of our unitholders.

Qur general partner may mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or grant a security interest in all or substantially all
of our assets without prior approval of our unitholders. If our general partner at any time decided to incur debt
and secures its obligations or indebtedness by all or substantially all of our assets, and if our general partner is
unable to satisfy such obligations or repay such indebtedness, the lenders could seek to foreclose on our assets.
The lenders may also sell all or substantially all of our assets under such foreclosure or other realization upon
those encumbrances without prior approval of our unitholders, which would adversely affect the price of our
coOmmon units.

Risks Related to PVR’s Coal Business

If PVR’s lessees do not manage their operations well, their production volumes and PVR's coal royalty
revenues could decrease.

PVR depends on its lessees to effectively manage their operations on its properties. PVR’s lessees make
their own business decisions with respect to their operations, including decisions relating to:

+ the method of mining;
» credit review of their customers;
= marketing of the coal mined;
« coal transportation arrangements,
¢ negotiations with unions;
* employee wages,
«  permitting;
» surety bonding; and
» mine closure and reclamation.
If PVR’s lessees do not manage their operations well, their production could be reduced, which would result

in lower coal royalty revenues to PVR and could adversely affect PVR’s ability to make its quarterly
distributions.
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The coal mining operations of PVR’s lessees are subject to numerous operational risks that could result in
fower coal rovalty revenues.

PVR’s coal royalty revenues are largely dependent on the level of production from its coal reserves
achleved by its lessees. The level of PVR’s lessees’ production is subject to opefatmg conditions or events that
may increase PVR’s lessees’ cost of mining ‘and delay or halt production at particular mines for varying lengths
of time and that are beyond their or its control, including:

» the inability to acquire necessary permits;

* changes or variations in geologic conditions, such as the thickness of the coal deposits and the amount
' of rock embedded in or overlying the coal deposit;

» changes in governmental regulation of the coal industry;
» mining and processing equipment failures and unexpected maintenance problems
* adverse claims to title or existing defects of title;

* interruptions due to power outages;;

1
* adverse weather and natural disasters, such as heavy rains and flooding;
* labor-related interruptions;

* employee injuries or fatalities; and i

= fires and explosions.

Any interruptions to the production of coal from PVR’s reserves could reduce its coal royalty revenues and
adversely affect its ability to make its quarterly distributions. In addition, PVR’s coal royalty revenues are based
upon sales of coal by its lessees to their customers. If PVR’s lessees do not recelve payments for delivered coal
on altimely basis from their customers, their, cash flow would be adversely affected which could cause PVR’s

cashiflow to be adversely affected and could adversely affect PVR’s ability to maké its ‘quarterly distributions.
I
‘ ‘
A substantial or extended decline in coal prices could reduce PVR's coal royalty revenues and the value of
PVR's coal reserves.

‘A substantial or extended decline in coal prices from recent levels could have a material adverse effect on
PVR's lessees’ operations and on the quantities of coal that may be economlcally produced from its properties.
Thls in tumn, could reduce PVR’s coal royalty revenues, its coal services revenues and the value of its coal
reserves Additionally, volatility in coal prices could make it difficult to estimate with precision the value of
PVR’s coal reserves and any coal reserves tha‘t PVR may consider for acquisition.

PVR depends on a limited number of pn’ma'ry operators for a significant portion of its coal royalty revenues
and the loss of or reduction in production from any of PVR’s major lessees could reduce its coal royalty
revenues.

PVR depends on a limited number of primary operators for a significant pomon of its coal royalty revenues.
Dunrllg 2006, five primary operators, each with multiple leases, accounted for{ 78% of PVR’s coal royalty
revenues and 12% of our total consolidated revenues. If any of these operators enters bankruptcy or decides to
cease operations or significantly reduce its producuon PVR’s coal royalty revenues: could be reduced.

A failure on the part of PVR’s lessees 1o make coal royalty payments could give PVR the right to terminate
the Iease repossess the property or obtain liquidation damages andfor enforce p'ayrnem obligations under the
]leaseI If PVR repossessed any of its properties, FVR would seek to find a replace'mem lessee. PYR may not be
able to find a replacement lessee and, if it ﬁnds a replacement lessee, PVR may not be able to enter into a new
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lease on favorable terms within a reasonable period of time. In addition, the outgoing lessee could be subject to
bankruptcy proceedings that could further delay the execution of a new lease or the assignment of the existing
lease to another operator. If PVR enters into a new lease, the replacement operator might not achieve the same
levels of production or sell coal at the same price as the lessee it replaced. In addition, it may be difficult for PVR
to secure new or rteplacement lessees for small or isolated coal reserves, since industry trends toward
consolidation favor larger-scale, higher technology mining operations to increase productivity rates.

PVR's coal business will be adversely affected if PVR is unable to replace or increase its coal reserves
through acquisitions.

Because its reserves decline as its lessees mine its coal, PVR’s future success and growth depends, in part,
upon its ability to acquire additional coal reserves that are economically recoverable. If PVR is unable to
negotiate purchase contracts to replace or increase its coal reserves on acceptable terms, its coal royalty revenues
will decline as its coal reserves are depleted. In addition, if PVR is unable to successfully integrate the
companies, businesses or properties it is able to acquire, its coal royalty revenues may decline and PVR could,
therefore, experience a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results of operations. If PVR
acquires additional coal reserves, there is a possibility that any acquisition could be dilutive to earnings and
reduce its ability to make distributions to unitholders or to pay interest on, or the principal of, its debt obligations.
Any debt PVR incurs to finance an acquisition may similarly affect its ability to make distributions to unitholders
or to pay interest on, or the principal of, its debt obligations. PVR’s ability to make acquisitions in the future also
could be limited by restrictions under its existing or future debt agreements, competition from other coal
companies for attractive properties or the lack of suitable acquisition candidates.

PVR’s lessees could satisfy obligations to their customers with coal from properties other than PVR’s,
depriving PVR of the ability to receive amounts in excess of the minimum coal royalty payments.

PVR does not control its lessees’ business operations. [ts lessees’ customer supply contracts do not
generally require its lessees to satisfy their obligations to their customers with coal mined from PVR's reserves.
Several factors may influence a lessee’s decision to supply its customers with coal mined from properties PVR
does not own or lease, including the royalty rates under the lessee’s lease with PVR, mining conditions,
transportation costs and availability and customer coal specifications. If a lessee satisfies its obligations to its
customers with coal from properties PVR does not own or lease, production under its lease will decrease, and
PVR will receive lower coal royalty revenues.

Fluctuations in transportation costs and the availability or reliabiliry of transportation could reduce the
production of coal mined from PVR's properties.

Transportation costs represent a significant portion of the total cost of coal for the customers of PVR’s
lessees. Increases in transportation costs could make coal a less competitive source of energy or could make coal
produced by some or all of PVR’s lessees less competitive than coal produced from other sources. On the other
hand, significant decreases in transportation costs could result in increased competition for PVR’s lessees from
coal producers in other parts of the country.

PVR's lessees depend upon rail, barge, trucking, overland conveyor and other systems to deliver coal to
their customers. Disruption of these transportation services due to weather-related problems, strikes, lockouts,
bottlenecks and other events could temporarily impair the ability of PVR’s lessees to supply coal to their
customers. PVR’s lessees’ transportation providers may face difficulties in the future and impair the ability of its
lessees to supply coal to their customers, thereby resulting in decreased coal royalty revenues to PVR.

PVR’s lessees could experience labor disruptions, and PVR’s lessees’ workforces could become increasingly
unionized in the future.

Two of PVR’s lessees each have one mine operated by unionized employees. One of these mines was
PVR'’s second largest mine on the basis of coal production as of December 31, 2006. All of PVR’s lessees could
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become increasingly unionized in the future. If some or all of PVR’s lessees’ noln unionized operations were to
become unionized, it could adversely affect their productivity and increase the risk of work stoppages. In
addmon PVR’s lessees’ operations may be adversely affected by work stoppages at unionized companies,
parqcular]y if union workers were to orchestrate boycotts against its lessees’ operzltuons. Any further unionization
of PVR’s lessees’ employees could adversely affect the stability of production from its reserves and reduce its
coal royalty revenues,

¥

PVR's coal reserve estimates depend on many assumptions that may be inaccurate, which could materially
adversely affect the quantities and value of PVR’s coal reserves.

PVR’s estimates of its coal reserves may vary substantially from the actual ailmounts of coal its lessees may
be able to economically recover. There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of reserves,
mclll.:dmg many factors beyond its control. Estimates of coal reserves necessanly depend upon a number of
vanables and assumptions, any one of which may, if incorrect, result in an esnmate that varies considerably from
actual results. These factors and assumpnons ‘relate to:

» geological and mining conditions, Wthh may not be fully identified by available exploration data;
1
» the amount of ultimately recoverable coal in the ground;

* the effects of regulation by governmentai agencies; and

|

|

L » future coal prices, operating costs, capital expenditures, severance and|excise taxes and development
| and reclamation costs.

f

Actual production, revenues and expenditures with respect to PVR’s coal reserves will likely vary from
esumatﬁs and these variations may be matenal As a result, you should not place undue reliance on the coal
rese?'e data provided by PVR. .

Any change in fuel consumption patterns by electric power generators away from the use of coal could affect
the ability of PVR's lessees to sell the coal they produce and thereby reduce PVR’s coal royalty revenues.
|

{According to the U.S. Department of Energy, domestic electric power generation accounts for
approximately 90% of domestic coal consumption. The amount of coal consumed for domestic electric power
generation is affected primarity by the overall demand for electricity, the price{and availability of competing
fuelsI for power plants such as nuclear, natural gas, fuel oil and hydroelectric power and environmental and other
govemmental regulations. PYR believes that most new power plants will be built to produce electricity during
peal-:i periods of demand. Many of these new power plants will likely be fired b}lr natural gas because of lower
construcuon costs compared to coal-fired ‘plants and because natural gas isla cleaner burning fuel. The
mcreasmgly stringent requirements of the Clean Air Act may result in more electric power generators shifting
from coal to natural gas-fired power plants, See Item 1, “Business—Government Regulauon and Environmental
Matters—PVR Coal Segment—Air Emissions.”

|

|
Exrenswe environmental laws and regulations affecting electric power generaiors could have corresponding
eﬁ'ecxs on the ability of PVR’s lessees to sell the coal they produce and thereby reduce PVR's coal royalty
revenues, : i

Federal, state and local laws and regulations extensively regulate the amoum of sulfur dioxide, particulate
matter nitrogen oxides, mercury and other compounds emitted into the air from elecmc power plants, which are
the ulumate consumers of the coal PVR’s léssees produce. These laws and regulatlons can require significant
emlssmn control expenditures for many coal-fired power plants, and various new and proposed laws and
regulatlons may require further emission reductions and associated emission control expenditures. There is also
contiinuing pressure on state and federal regulators to impose limits on carbon dioxide emissions from electric

l
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power plants, particularly coal-fired power plants. As a result of these current and proposed laws, regulations and
trends, electricity generators may elect to switch to other fuels that generate less of these emissions, possibly
further reducing demand for the coal that PVR’s lessees produce and thereby reducing its coal royalty revenues.
See Item 1, “Business—Government Regulation and Environmental Matters—PVR Coal Segment—Air
Emissions.”

Delays in PVR'’s lessees obtaining mining permits and approvals, or the inability to obtain required permits
and approvals, could have an adverse effect on PVR's coal royalty revenues.

Mine operators, including PVR’s lessees, must obtain numerous permits and approvals that impose strict
conditions and obligations relating to various environmesntal and safety matters in connection with coal mining.
The permitting rules are complex and can change over time. The public has the right to comment on permit
applications and otherwise participate in the permitting process, including through court intervention.
Accordingly, permits required by PVR’s lessees to conduct operations may not be issued, maintained or renewed,
or may not be issued or renewed in a timely fashion, or may involve requirements that restrict PVR’s lessees’
ability to economically conduct their mining operations. Limitations on PVR’s lessees™ ability to conduct their
mining operations due to the inability to obtain or renew necessary permits could have an adverse effect on its
coal royalty revenues. See Item 1, “Business—Government Regulation and Environmental Matters—PVR Coal
Segment—Mining Permits and Approvals.”

PVR’s lessees’ mining operations are subject to extensive and costly laws and regulations, which could
increase operating costs and limit its lessees’ ability to produce coal, which could have an adverse effect on
PVR's coal royalty revenues.

PVR’s lessees are subject to numerous and detailed federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting
coal mining operations, including laws and regulations pertaining to employee health and safety, permitting and
licensing requirements, air quality standards, water pollution, plant and wildlife protection, reclaration and
restoration of mining properties after mining is completed, the discharge of materials into the environment,
surface subsidence from underground mining and the effects that mining has on groundwater quality and
availability. Numerous governmental permits and approvals are required -for mining operations. PVR’s lessees
are required to prepare and present to federal, state or local authorities data pertaining to the effect or impact that
any proposed exploration for or production of coal may have upon the environment. The costs, liabilities and
requirements associated with these regulations may be significant ‘and time-consuming and may delay
commencement or continuation of exploration or production operations. The possibility exists that new laws or
regulations (or judicial interpretations of existing laws and regulations) may be adopted in the future that could
materially affect PVR’s lessees’ mining operations, either through direct impacts such as new requirements
impacting its lessees’ existing mining operations, or indirect impacts such as new laws and regulations that
discourage or limit coal consumers’ use of coal. Any of these direct or indirect impacts could have an adverse
effect on PVR’s coal royalty revenues. See Item 1, “Business—Government Regulation and Environmental
Matters—PVR Coal Segment.”

Because of extensive and comprehensive regulatory requirements, violations during mining operations are
not unusual in the industry and, notwithstanding compliance efforts. PVR does not believe violations by its
lessees can be eliminated completely. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result in the
assessment of administrative, civil and criminal penalties, the imposition of cleanup and site restoration costs and
liens and, to a lesser extent, the issuance of injunctions to limit or cease operations. PVR’s lessees may also incur
costs and liabilities resulting from claims for damages to property or injury to persons arising from their
operations. If PVR’s lessees are required to pay these costs and liabilities and if their financial viability is
affected by doing so, then their mining operations and, as a result, PVR’s coal royalty revenues and its ability to
make distributions to us, could be adversely affected. :

Recent mining accidents in West Virginia and Kentucky have received national attention and instigated
responses at the state and national level that have resulted in increased scrutiny of current safety practices and
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procedures at all mining operations, particularly underground mining operalmns See ltem I, “Business—
Govemmem Regulation and Environmental Matters—PVR Coal Segment—Mine lHealth and Safety Laws,” for a
more detailed discussion of recently enacted legislation that addresses mine safety equipment, training and
emergency reporting requirements. Implementing and complying with these new laws and regulations could
adve:rsely affect PVR’s lessees’ coal production and could therefore have an adver$e affect on PVR’s coal royalty
revenues and its ability to make distributions to us.

RlSkS Related to PVR’s Natural Gas Mldstream Business

The success of PVR's natural gas midstream business depends upon its ability to find and contract for new
soiurces of natural gas supply. i

'

iIn order to maintain or increase throughput levels on PVR’s gathering systems and asset utilization rates at
its processmg plants, PVR must contract for new natural gas supplies. The prllmary factors affecting PVR’s
ablh}y to connect new supplies of natural gas to its gathering systems include the level of drilling activity
creating new gas supply near its gathering systems, PVR’s success in contracting for existing natural gas supplies
that are not committed to other systems and PVR’s ability to expand and increase the capacity of its systems.
PVR may not be able to obtain additional contracts for natural gas supplies.

!Fluctuatlons in energy prices can greatly affect production rates and investments by third parties in the
devellopment of new oil and natural gas reserves. Drilling aclivity generally decreases as oil and natural gas
prices decrease. PVR has no control over the level of drilling activity in its areas of operations, the amount of
reserves underlying the wells and the rate at which production from a well will decline. In addition, PVR has no
Control over producers or their production décisions, which are affected by, among other things, prevailing and
projected energy prices, demand for hydrocarbons, the level of reserves, geological considerations, governmental
regulation and the availability and cost of capital. i

PVR’s midstream assets, including its gathering systems and processing plants, are connected to natural gas
reserves and wells for which the production will naturally decline over time. PVR’s cash flows associated with
these systems will decline unless it is able to secure new supplies of natura]lgab by connecting additional
production to these systems. A material decrease in natural gas production in FVR’s areas of operation, as a
result of depressed commodity prices or otherwise, would result in a decline in the volume of natural gas PVR
handles, which would reduce its revenues and operating income. In addition, PVlll’s future growth will depend,
in part, upon whether it can contract for addmonal supplies at a greater rate than the rate of natural decline in
PVR s currently connected supplies. :

The prof tability of PVR's natural gas m:dstream business is dependent upon pnlces and market demand for
natural gas and natural gas liquids, which are beyond PVR's control and have been volatile.

PVR is subject to significant risks due to fluctuations in natural gas commodity prices. During 2005, PVR
generated a majority of its gross margin from two types of contractual arrangements under which its margin is
exposed to increases and decreases in the price of natural gas and natural gas liquids (or NGLs)}—
percentage of-proceeds and keep-whole arrangements See hem 1, “Business—PVR’s Contracts—PVR Natural
Gas Midstream Segment.” _ |

Vlrtually all of the natural gas gathered on PVR’s Crescent System and Hamlin System is contracted under
percentage of-proceeds arrangements. The natural gas gathered on PVR’s Beaver System is contracted primarily
under either percentage-of proceeds or gas purchase/keep-whole arrangemlents Under both types of
a.rrangements PVR provides gathering and processing services for naturdl gas received. Under
percentage of-proceeds arrangements, PVR generally sells the NGLs produced from the processing operations
and the remaining residue gas at market pnces and remits to the producers an agreed upon percentage of the
proceeds based upon an index price for.the gas and the price received for the NGLs. Under these
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percentage-of-proceeds arrangements, revenues and gross margins decline when natural gas prices and NGL
prices decrease. Accordingly, a decrease in the price of natural gas or NGLs could have a material adverse effect
on PVR’s results of operations. Under gas purchase/keep-whole arrangements, PVR generally buys natural gas
from producers based upon an index price and then sells the NGLs and the remaining residue gas to third parties
at market prices. Because the extraction of the NGLs from the natural gas during processing reduces the volume
of natural gas available for sale, profitability is dependent on the value of those NGLs being higher than the value
of the volume of gas reduction or “shrink.” Under these arrangements, revenues and gross margins decrease
when the price of natural gas increases relative to the price of NGLs. Accordingly, a change in the relationship
between the price of natural gas and the price of NGLs could have a material adverse effect on PVR’s results of
operalions.

In the past, the prices of natural gas and NGLs have been extremely volatile, and PVR expects this volatility
to continue. The markets and prices for residue gas and NGLs depend upon factors beyond PVR’s control. These
factors include demand for oil, natural gas and NGLs, which fluctuates with changes in market and economic
conditions, and other factors, including: '

¢ the impact of weather on the demand for oil and natural gas;

« the level of domestic o1l and natural gas production;

* the availability of imported oil and natural gas;

* actions taken by foreign oil and gas producing nations;

= the availability of local, intrastate and interstate transportation systems;
» the availability and marketing of competitive fuels;

« the impact of energy conservation efforts; and

» the extent of governmental regulation and taxation.

Acquisitions and expansions may daffect PVR's business by substantially increasing the level of its indebtedness
and contingent liabilities and increasing the risks of being unable to effectively integrate these new operations.

From time to time, PVR evaluates and acquires assets and businesses that it believes compliment its existing
operations. PVR may encounter difficulties integrating these acquisitions with its existing businesses without a
loss of employees or customers, a loss of revenues, an increase in operating or other costs or other difficulties. In
addition, PVR may not be able to realize the operating efficiencies, competitive advantages, cost savings or other
benefits expected from these acquisitions. Future acquisitions may require substantial capital or the incurrence of
substantial indebtedness. As a result, PVR’s capitalization and results of operations may change significantly
following an acquisition, and you will not have the opportunity to evaluate the economic, financial and other
relevant information that PVR will consider in determining the application of these funds and other resources.
Future PVR acquisitions might not generate increases in PVR’s pro forma available cash per unit, and may not
increase cash distributions to PVR’s unitholders.

Expanding PVR's natural gas midstream business by constructing new gathering systems, pipelines and
processing facilities subjects PVR to construction risks.

One of the ways PVR may grow its midstream business is through the construction of additions to existing
gathering, compression and processing systems. The construction of a new gathering system or pipeline, the
expansion of an existing pipeline through the addition of new pipe or compression and the construction of new
processing facilities involve numerous regulatory, environmental, political and legal uncertainties beyond PVR’s
control and require the expenditure of significant amounts of capital. If PVR undertakes these projects, they may
not be completed on schedule, or at all, or at the budgeted cost. Moreover, PVR’s revenues may not increase
immediately upon the expenditure of funds on a particular project. For example, the construction of gathering
facilities requires the expenditure of significant amounts of capital, which may exceed PVR’s estimates.
Generally, it may have only limited natural gas supplies committed to these facilities prior to their construction.
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‘Moreover, PVR may construct facilities to capture anticipated future growth in production in a region in
which anticipated production growth does not materialize. As a result, there is the risk that new facilities may not
be-able to attract enough natural gas to achieve PVR’s expected investment returrll, which could adversely affect
its financial position or results of operations and its ability to make distributions 1o us.

IfiPVR is unable to obtain new rights-af-way or the cost of renewing existing rights-of-way increases, then it
may be unable to fully execute its growth strategy and its cash flows could be reduced,

The construction of additions to PVER’S existing gathering assets may |require PVR to obtain new
rights-of-way before constructing new pipelines. PYR may be unable to obtain|rights-of-way to connect new
natural gas supplies to its existing gathering lines or capitalize on other attractive expansion opportunilies.
Additionally, it may become more expensive for PVR to obtain new rightsl—of—way Or 0 renew existing
nghts of-way. If the cost of obtaining new nghts -of-way or renewing existing rights-of-way increases, then
PVR’s cash flows could be reduced. ' '

PVR is exposed to the credit risk of its coal lessees and midstream customers, and nonpayment or
nonpe:formance by PVR's lessees or customers could reduce its cash flows.

PVR is subject to risk of loss resulting from nonpayment or nonperformancle by its midstream customers.
For ?006 two customers represented 49% of our total natural gas midstream revenues and 38% of our total
consohdated revenues. Any nonpayment or nonpcrfonndnce by midstream customers could reduce its cash flows.
Any reduction in the capacity of. or the allocations to, PVR in interconnecting third-party pipelines could
cuse a reduction of velumes processed, whrch would adversely affect PVR's revenues and cash flow.

PVR is dependent upon connections to thlrd—party pipelines to receive and deliver residue gas and NGLs.
Anylreduction of capacities of these interconnecting pipelines due to testing, line repair, reduced operating
pressures or other causes could result in reduced volumes gathered and processed i m PVR’s midstream facilities.
Sllmlarly if additional shippers begin transporting volumes of residue gas and NGLs on interconnecting
pipelines, its allocations in these pipelines would be reduced. Any reduction in volumes gathered and processed
in PYR’s facilities would adversely affect its revenues and cash flow.

~ Natural gas hedging transactions may limit PVR’s potential gains and involve other risks.

In order to manage PVR’s exposure to price risks in the marketing of its! natural gas and NGLs PVR
penodlcally enters into natural gas and NGL price hedging arrangements with respect to a portion of its expected

| ] .
productlon PVR’s hedges are limited in duration, usually for periods of two years or less. However, in
connection with acquisitions, sometimes PVR’s hedges are for longer periods. These hedging transactions may
limit|PVR’s potential gains if natural gas or NGL prices were to rise over the pncc established by the hedging
arrangements. In trying to maintain an appropnale balance, it may end up hedgmg too much or too little,
depending upon how natural gas or NGL prices fluctuate in the future. PVR’s. hedgmg transactions may not
reduce the risk or minimize the effect of any decline in natural gas or NGL prices. -

In addition, hedging transactions may expose PVR to the risk of financial loss in certain circumstances,
mcludmg instances in which:
* PVR’s production is less than expected;

* there is a widening of price basis differentials between delivery points for PVR’s production and the
delivery point assumed in the hedge arrangement;

* the counterparties to PVR’s futures contracts fail to perform under the contracts; or

* asudden, unexpected event materially impacts natural gas or NGL prices!
1

|
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In addition, hedging transactions using derivative instruments involve basis risk. Basis risk in a hedging
contract occurs when the index upon which the contract is based is more or less variable than the index upon
which the hedged asset is based, thereby making the hedge less effective. For example, a NYMEX index used for
hedging certain volumes of production may have more or less variability than the regional price index used for
the sale of that production.

PVR’s natural gas midstream business involves many hazards and operational risks, some of which may not be
Sully covered by insurance.

PVR’s midstream operations are subject to the many hazards inherent in the gathering, compression,
treating, processing and transportation of natural gas and NGLs, including:

+ damage to pipelines, related equipment and surrounding properties caused by hurricanes, tornadoes,
floods, fires and other natural disasters and acts of terrorism,;

= inadvertent damage from construction and farm equipment;
» leaks of natural gas, NGLs and other hydrocarbons; and

» fires and explosions,

These risks could result in substantial losses due to personal injury or loss of life, severe damage to and
destruction of property and equipment and pollution or other environmental damage and may result in
curtailment or suspension of PVR’s related operations. PVR’s midstream operations are concentrated in Texas
and Oklahoma, and a natural disaster or other hazard affecting these areas could have a material adverse effect on
PVR’s operations. PVR is not fully insured against all risks incident to its midstream business. PVR does not
have property insurance on all of its underground pipeline systems that would cover damage to the pipelines.
PVR is not insured against all environmental accidents that might occur, other than those considered to be sudden
and accidental. If a significant accident or event occurs that is not fully insured, it could adversely affect PVR’s
operations and financial condition.

Federal, state or local regulatory measures could adversely affect PVR’s natural gas midstream business.

PVR owns and operates an | |-mile interstate natural gas pipeline that, pursuant to the NGA, is subject to the
jurisdiction of the FERC. The FERC has granted PVR waivers of various requirements otherwise applicable to
conventional FERC-jurisdictional pipelines, including the obligation to file a tariff governing rates, terms and

- conditions of open access transportation service. The FERC has determined that PVR will have to comply with
the filing requirements if the natural gas company ever desires to apply for blanket transportation antherity to
transport third-party gas on the | 1-mile pipeline. The FERC may revoke these PYR waivers at any time.

PVR’s natural gas gathering facilities generally are exempt from the FERC’s jurisdiction under the NGA,
but FERC regulation nevertheless could change and significantly affect PYR’s gathering business and the market
for its services. For a more detailed discussion on how regulatory measures affect PVR’s natural gas gathering
systems, see Item 1, “Business—Government Regulation and Environmental Matters—PVR Natural Gas
Midstream Segment.”

Failure to comply with applicable federal and state laws and regulations can result in the imposition of
administrative, civil and criminal remedies.

PVR’s natural gas midstream business is subject to extensive environmental regulation.

Many of the operations and activities of PVR’s gathering systems, plants and other facilities are subject to
significant federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. These include, for example, laws and
regulations that impose obligations related to air emissions and discharge of wastes from its facilities and the
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cleanup of hazardous substances that may have been released at properties currently or previously owned or
operated by Cantera or locations to which it has sent wastes for disposal. These laws and regulations can restrict
or'ir'npact PVR's business activities in many ways, including restricting the manner in which it disposes of
substances requiring pre-approval for the construction or modification of certain prO_jCC[S or facilities expected to
produce air emissions, requiring remedial action to remove or mitigate comammauon and requiring capital
expejndltures to comply with control requlrements Failure to comply with these la;ws and regulations may trigger
a variety of administrative, civil and criminal enforcement measures, including the assessment of monetary
penalues the imposition of remedial requirements and the issuance of orders enjommg future operations. Certain
environmental statutes impose strict, joint and several liability for costs required to clean up and restore sites
where substances and wastes have been disposed or otherwise released. Moreover, it is not uncommon for
nelngonng landowners and other third partles to file claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly
caused by the release of substances or wasteslmto the environment,

{There is inherent risk of the incurrence ‘of environmental costs and liabilities in PVR’s midstream business
due 1ts handling of natural gas and other petroleum products, air emissions related to its midstream operations,
historical industry operations, waste disposal practices and Cantera’s prior uste of natural gas flow meters
containing mercury. For example, an accidental release from one of PVR’s pipelines or processing facilities
could subject it to substantial liabilities arising from environmental cleanup,|restoration costs and natural
resource damages, claims made by neighboring landowners and other third parties for personal injury and
property damage, and fines or penaliies for related violations of environmental laws or regulations. Moreover, the
possﬂ:uhty exists that stricter laws, regulations or enforcement policies could! significantly increase PVR’s
comphance costs and the cost of any remediation that may become necessary. PVR may incur material
en\n{onmental costs and liabilities. Insurance may not provide sufficient cow:rageI in the event an environmental
claim is made. See Item i, “Busmess—Govemment Regulation and Environmental Matters—PVR Natural Gas
MldSI[l'EﬂlTl Segment.” ,

Tax Risks to OQur Common Unitholders

If we or PVR were to become subject to entity-level taxation for federal or state tax purposes, then our cash
available Sfor distribution to you would be subsmnnal!y reduced.

1The value of our investment in PVR depends largely on PVR being treated as a partnership for federal
income tax purposes, which requires that 90% or more of PVR’s gross income for every taxable year consist of
quahfymg income, as defined in Section 7704 of the Internal Revenue Code. PVR may not meet this requirement
or current law may change so as to cause, in either event, PVR 10 be treated as a corporation for federal income
tax purposes or otherwise subject to federal income tax. Moreover, the anlncnpated after-tax economic benefit of
an investment in our common units depends largely on our being treated as a partnershlp for federal income tax
purposes. We have not requested, and do not plan to request, a ruling from the Intérnal Revenue Service, or IRS,
on [hlS or any other matter affecting us. . _

| : I

If PVR were treated as a corporation for federa] income tax purposes, it would pay federal income tax on its
Idxabile income at the corporate tax rate, Wthh is currently a maximum of 35%. Distributions to us would
gene{al]y be taxed again as corporate distributions, and no income, gains, losses: deductions or credits would
flow through to us. As a result, there would be a material reduction in our anuc:patjed cash flow and distributions
to unjitholders, likely causing a substantiat reduction in the value of our units. ’
iIf we were treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes, we wouldipay federal income tax on our
taxable income at the corporate tax rate. Distributions to you would generally be taxed again as corporate
dlS[l’lbll[lOl’]b and no income, gains, losses, deductions or credits would flow through to you. Because a tax would
be 1mposed upon us as a corporation, our cash available for distribution to you would be substantially reduced.
Thus! treatment of us as a corporation would result in a material reduction in our anticipated cash flow, likely
causi'ng a substantial reduction in the value of our units. )

|
! 35
|




Current law may change, causing us or PVR to be treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes
or otherwise subjecting us or PVR to entity level taxation. In addition, because of widespread state budget
deficits and other reasons, several states are evaluating ways to subject partnerships to entity level taxation
through the imposition of state income, franchise or other forms of taxation. For example, PVR will be subject to
a new entity level tax on the portion of its income that is generated in Texas beginning in its tax year that ends
December 31, 2007. Imposition of such tax on us or PVR by Texas, or any other state, will reduce our cash
available for distribution to you.

PVR’s partnership agreement provides that if a law is enacted or existing law is modified or interpreted in a
manner that subjects PVR to taxation as a corporation or otherwise subjects PVR to entity-level taxation for
federal, state or local income tax purposes, then the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target
distribution amounts will be adjusted to reflect the impact of that law on PVR. Likewise, our cash distributions to
you will be reduced if we or PVR is subjected to any form of such an entity-level taxation,

If the IRS contests the federal income tax positions that we or PVR take, it may adversely affect the market for
our common units or PVR limited partner units, and the costs of any contest will reduce cash available for
distribution to our unitholders.

We have not requested a ruling from the IRS with respect to our treatment as a parinership for federal
income tax purposes or any other matter that affects us. Moreover, PVR has not requested any ruling from the
IRS with respect to its treatment as a partnership for federal income tax purposes or any other matter that affects
it. The IRS may adopt positions that differ from the positions we or PVR take. It may be necessary to resort to
administrative or court proceedings to sustain some or all of the positions we or PVR take. A court may disagree
with some or all of the positions we or PVR take. Any contest with the IRS may materially and adversely impact
the market for our common units or PVR’s common units and the price at which they trade. In addition, the cost
of any contest between PVR and the IRS will result in a reduction in cash available for distribution to PVR
unitholders and thus indirectly by us, as a unitholder and as the owner of the general partner of PVR. Moreover,
the costs of any contest between us and the IRS will result in a reduction in cash available for distribution to our
unitholders and thus will be borne indirectly by our unitholders.

You may be required to pay taxes on your share of our income even if you do not receive any cash
distributions from us.

Because our unitholders will be treated as partners to whom we will allocate taxable income which could be
different in amount than the cash we distribute, you will be required to pay any federal income taxes and, in some
cases, state and local income taxes on your share of our taxable income, whether or not you receive cash
distributions from us. You may not receive cash distributions from us equal to your share of our taxable income
or even equal to the tax liability that results from the taxation of your share of our taxable income.

Tax gain or loss on disposition of our comman units could be more or less than expected.

If you sell your common units, you will recognize a gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount
realized and the adjusted tax basis in those common units. Prior distributions to you in excess of the total net
taxable income allocated to you, which decreased the tax basis in your common units, will, in effect, become
taxable income to you if the common units are sold at a price greater than your tax basis in those common units,
even if the price you receive is less than the original cost. A substantial portion of the amount realized, whether
or not representing gain, may be ordinary income to you. In addition, if you sell your units, you may incur a tax
liability in excess of the amount of cash you receive from the sale.

Tax-exemp! entities and foreign persons face unique tax issues from owning common units that may result in
adverse 1ax consequences to them.

Investment in common units by tax-exempt entities, including employee benefit plans and individual
retirement accounts (known as IRAs), and non-U.S. persons raises issues unique to them. For example, virtually
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all of our income allocated to orgamzanons exempt from federal income tax, including individual retirement
accounts and other retirement plans, will be unrelated business taxable income|and will be taxable to such a
unitholder. Distributions to non-U.S. persons will be reduced by withholding Itaxes imposed at the highest
effe(:‘tive applicable tax rate, and non-U.S. 'persons will be required to file United States federal income tax
returns and pay tax on their share of our taxable income.

i

We treat each purchaser of our common units as having the same tax benefits warhaur regard to the common
units purchased. The IRS may challenge this treatment, which could adversely affect the value of our common
units.

'Because we cannot match transferors and transferees of common units, we will adopt depreciation and
amortization positions that may not conform with all aspects of existing Tre.isurleegulanons A successful IRS
challenge to those positions could adversely affect the amount of tax benefits available to our unitholders. It also
could affect the timing of these tax beneﬁtslor the amount of gain from your salc of common units and could
have a negative impact on the value of our common units or result in audits of and adjustments to our

unitholders’ tax returns.
]

T?ie sale or exchange of 50% or more of our caprra! and profits interests during any twelve-month period will
result in the termination of our partnership for federal income tax purposes.

We will be considered to have been lermmated for federal income tax purposcs if there is a sale or exchange
of 50% or more of the total interests in our capital and profits within a twelve- month period. A sale or exchange
would occur, for example, if we sold our business or merged with another company, or if any of our unitholders,
mcludmg Penn Virginia or any of its affiliates, sold or transferred their partnership interests in us. Our
temunauon would, among other things, result in the closing of our taxable year, for all unitholders and could
result in a deferral of depreciation deductions allowable in computing our taxable income.

Our ratio of taxable income to cash distributions will be much greater than the ratio applicable to holders of

common units in PVR. '
t

Our ratio of taxable income to cash distributions will be much greater than the ratio applicable to holders of
common units in PVR, Other holders of common units in PVR will receive reme'dlal allocations of deductions
from|PVR Remedial allocations of deductions to us will be very limited. In addmon our ownership of PVR
incentive distribution rights will cause more taxable income to be allocated to us from PVR than will be allocated
o holders who hold only common units in PVR If PVR is successful in increasing its distributions over time, our
1ncomc allocations from our PVR incentive dlsmbuuon rights wil! increase, and, therefore, our ratio of taxable
mconlle to cash distributions will increase. Because our ratio of taxable income, to cash distributions will be
greater than the ratio applicable to holders of common units in PVR, your allocable taxable income will be
significantly greater than that of a holder of common units in PVR who receives cash distributions from PVR
equal‘l to the cash distributions you receive from us.

1
You will likely be subject to state and local taxes and return filing requirements in states where you do not live

as a result of investing in our common units.
f

In addition to federal income taxes, our unitholders will likely be subject to other 1axes, including state and
local |taxes, unincorporated business taxes and estate, inheritance or intangible taxes that are imposed by the
Vanous Jjurisdictions in which we or PVR do Pusmess Or OWN property now or in Ithc future, even if you do not
rebldc in any of those jurisdictions. You likely will be required to file state and local income tax returns and pay
state and local income taxes in some or all of thcsc jurisdictions. Further, umtholde’rs may be subject to penalties
for fallure to comply with those requirements. It your responsibility to file all United States federal, state and
local lax returns that may. be required of you. Qur counsel has not rendered an oplmon on the state or local tax
consequences of an investment in our common units.
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Item 1B Unresolved Staff Comments

We reccived no written comments from the SEC staff regarding our periodic or current reports under the Exchange
Act within 180 days before the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Item 2 Properties
Title to Properties Owned or Controlled by PVR

The following maps show the general locations of PVR’s coal reserves and related infrastructure investments and
PVR's natural gas gathering and processing systems as of December 31, 2006:

; 'i : o S Radnor, PA
f % ] | E ......... Charieston, Wv
V | ‘ V\J ............ Kingsport, TN
.
@ 5 |

% Headquarters
a Regional Office

1. Coal Land Management 2. Cdal Land Management 4 h!atural Gas Midstream

Central Appalachla Illinois Basin Mid-Continent Natural Gas Midstream Operations

559 million tons of high-quality coal reserves: 113 million tong of high suttur
coal reserves

coal services and infrastructure investments

Beaver/Perryton System Crescent System
Gathering plpelines - 1,377 miles  Gathering pipelines — 1,679 miles

Northern Appalachia . h
36 million tonsT:m‘d tohigh sulfur coal reserves 3. Coal Land Management Processing plant - 100 MMcfd Processing plant — 40 MMcid
Hamlin System Arkoma System

San Juan Basin

Gathering pipelines — 497 miles Gathering pipelines — 78 miles

58 million tons of midsulfur Processing plant — 20 MMefd

coal reserves

PVR believes that it has satisfactory title to all of its properties and the associated coal reserves in accordance with
standards generally accepted in the coal and natural gas midstream industries.

Facilities 7
PVR'’s general partner provides all of PVR’s office space, except for a field office that PYR owns near Charleston,
West Virginia.
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Coal Reserves and Production

As of December 31, 2006, PVR owned or controlled approximately 7635 million tons of proven and probable
coal reserves located on approximately 379,000 acres (including fee and leased acreage) in Kentucky, New
Mexxco Virginia and West Virginia. PVR’S coal reserves are in various surface and underground mine seams
located on the following properties:

+ Central Appalachia Basin: propemes located in Buchanan, Lee and Wise Counties, Virginia; Floyd,
Harlan, Knott and Letcher Counties, Kentucky; and Boone, Fayette, Kanawha Lincoln, Logan and
Raleigh Counties, West Virginia; *

+ Northern Appalachia Basin: properties located in Barbour, Harrison, Itewis, Moncngalia and Upshur
i Counties, West Virginia;

* San Juan Basin: properties located in McKinley County, New Mexico; and

« llinois Basin: properties located in Henderson and Webster Counties, Kentucky.

Coal reserves are coal tons that can be econorrucally extracted or produced at the time of determination
consrdenng legal, economic and technical limitations. All of the estimates of PVR s coal reserves are classified
as proven and probable reserves. Proven and.probable reserves are defined as follows:

| Proven Reserves. Proven reserves are reserves for which: (i) quantity is computed from dimensions revealed
in outerops, trenches, workings or drill holes; (i) grade andfor quality are compulted from the results of detailed
samplmg, and (iii) the sites for inspection, sampling and measurement are spaced so closely, and the geologic
character is so well defined, that the size, shape depth and mineral content of reserves are well-established.

Probable Reserves. Probable reserves ae reserves for which quannty and grade and/or quality are computed
from information similar to that used for proven reserves, but the sites for inspection, sampling and measurement
are more widely spaced or are otherwise less adequately spaced. The degree of gissurance although lower than
that!for proven reserves, is high enough to assurne continuity between points of observation.

In areas where geologic conditions indicate potential inconsistencies related to coal reserves, PVR performs
addiltional exploration to ensure the continuity and mineability of the coal reserves. ?onsequently, sampling in those
areas involves drill holes or channel samples that are spaced closer together than those distances cited abave,

Coal reserve estimates are adjusted annually for production, unmineable areas, acquisitions and sales of coal
in place. The majority of PVR’s reserves are high in energy content, low in sulfur and suitable for either the
steam or metallurgical market.

|
The amount of coal that a lessee can prbﬁtably mine at any given time is subject to several factors and may
be substantially different from “proven and probable reserves.” Included among the factors that influence
proﬁtabrhty are the existing market price, coal quality and operating costs,

PVR’s lessees mine coal using both underground and surface methods. As of December 31, 2006, PVR's
lessees operated 29 surface mines and 39 underground mines. Approximately 73% of the coal produced from
PVR’s properties in 2006 came from underground mines and 27% came from surface mines. Most of PVR’s
lessees use the continuous mining method in all of their underground mines localed on PVR’s properties. In
continuous mining, main airways and transportatlon entries are developed and‘ remote-controlled continuous
miners extract coal from “rooms,” leaving “pillars” to support the roof. Shuttle cars transport coal to a conveyor
belt |for transportation to the surface. In several underground mines, our lessces use two continuous miners
running at the same time, also known as a supersection, to improve productivity and reduce unit costs.

Two of PVR’s lessees use the longwall mining method to mine undergroulnd reserves. Longwall mining
uses hydraulic jacks or shields, varying from four feet to twelve feet in height, to support the roof of the mine
while a mobile cutting shearer advances through the coal. Chain conveyors then move the coal to a standard deep
mme conveyor belt system for delivery to the surface. Continuous mining is used to develop access to long

1
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rectangular panels of coal that are mined with longwall equipment, allowing controlled caving behind the advancing
machinery. Longwall mining is typically highly productive when used for large blocks of medium to thick coal
seams.

Surface mining methods used by PVR’s lessees include auger and highwall mining to enhance production,
improve reserve recovery and reduce unit costs. On PVR’s San Juan Basin property, a combination of the dragline
and truck-and-shovel surface mining methods is used to mine the coal. Dragline and truck-and-shovel mining uses
large capacity machines to remove overburden to expose the coal seams. Wheel loaders then load the coal in haul
trucks for transportation to a loading facility.

PVR’s lessees” customers are primarily electric utilities, also referred to as “steam™ markets. Coal produced
from PVR’s properties is transported by rail, barge and truck, or a combination of these means of transportation.
Coal from the Virginia portion of the Wise property and the Buchanan property is primarily shipped to electric
utilities in the Southeast by the Norfolk Southern railroad. Coal from the Kentucky portion of the Wise property is
primarily shipped to electric utilities in the Southeast by the CSX railroad. Coal from the Coal River and Spruce
Laurel properties is shipped to steam and metallurgical customers by the CSX railroad, by barge along the Kanawha
River and by truck or by a combination thereof. Coal from the Northern Appalachia property is shipped by barge on
the Moncngahela River, by truck and by the CSX and Norfolk Southern railroads. Coal from the Illinois Basin
property is shipped by barge on the Green River and by truck. Coal from the San Juan Basin property is shipped to
steam markets in New Mexico and Arizona by the Burlington Northern Santa Fe railroad. All of PVR's properties
contain and have access to numercus roads and state or interstate highways.

The following table shows PVR’s most important coal producing seams by property:

Height Range
(fr.)

Area Property State Producing Mine Types Seam Name
Central Appalachia  Wise Virginia, Kentucky Surface, Underground  U. Parsons 1.00 - 6.00
Phillips 1.50 - 6.00
Low Splint 1.00- 5.50
Taggart/Marker 1.50 - 9.00
U. Wilson 1.50 - 5.50
: Kelly/Imboden 1.00 - 7.50
Buchanan Virginia Surface, Underground  Hagy 2.50-3.50
Splashdam 2.50-4.00
Wayland Kentucky Underground U. Elkhom No. 2 2.33-4.00

Coal River,

Fields Creek West Virginia Surface, Underground  Stockton 4.00 - 12.00
Coalburg 1.00 - 11.00
Winifrede 1.00 - 7.00
Chilton 1.00 - 4.00
Cedar Grove 1.00 - 5.50
No. 2 Gas 1.50 - 8.00
Toney Fork West Virginia Surface Coalburg 5.00 - 16.00
Spruce Laurel West Virginia Underground Coalburg 3.00-6.00
Winifrede 2.50-4.00
Chilton 2.50-4.00
‘ Alma 2.50-7.00
Northern Appalachia Federal West Virginia Underground Pittsburgh 6.50 -9.50
Upshur West Virginia Surface, Underground  Redstone 3.00-6.50
Pittsburgh 2.00-9.00
San Juan Basin Lee Ranch New Mexico Surface Cleary Group Seams 8.00 - 16.00
Nineis Basin Green River Kentucky - Surface, Underground  KY No. 9 3.00-5.00
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The following tables set forth production data and reserve information with respect 1o each of PVR’s
properties: '

! . Production

! Year Ended December 31,
Property 1 | 2006 2005 2004
l {tons in millions)
Central Appalachia . ... . . e 20.2 19.0 20.1
Nor{!hem Appalachia .. ................. e b 5.0 5.0 56
Mlinois Basin ...y P .. 2.5 1.4 —
SanJuanBasin ....................... e e e i 5.1 4.8 5.5
*'Total ................................ e } 7 30.2 31.2
i Proven andPProbable Reserves at
. December 31, 2006 '
: Under- |
Property ground Surface Total Steam Metallurgical Total
(tmés in millions)
Central Appalachia ......................... ... 4253 1336 5589 4590 99.9 558.9
Northern Appalachia ................... e 33.8 22 360 360 — 36.0
Iinis Basin ..........c..c..oooo.... AU 99.6 130 1126 1126  — 1126
San {uan Basin........................ e — 5719 579 579 — 579
Total ... 5587 206.7 765.4 665.5 999 765.4

Of the approximately 765 million tons of proven and probable coal reserves to which PVR had rights as of
December 31, 2006, PVR owned the mineral interests and the related surface nghts to 461 million tons, or 60%,
and PVR owned only the mineral interests to 164 million tons, or 22%. PVR léases the mineral rights to the
remammg 140 million tons, or 18%, from unaffiliated third parties and, in tum subleases these reserves to
PVR s lessees. For the reserves PVR leases from third parties, PVR pays royalues to the owner based on the
amount of coal preduced from the leased reserves. Additionally, in some instances; PVR purchases surface rights
or otherw:se compensates surface right owners for mining activities on their properties. In 2006, PVR’s
aggregate expenses to third-party surface and mineral owners were $6.9 million.

The following table sets forth the coal‘ reserves PVR owns and leases with respect to each of its coal
properties as of December 31, 2006:

Property - ' Owned Leased Total
[ ' (tons in millions)

Centfal Appalachia ... ... U SO 4227 1362 5589

NortllxemAppalachia....................‘_..............................!.... 36.0 — 36.0
[Mlinois Basin . .............ooooiioni... D b nze — 126
San Juan Basin ... ST Lo s 39 579
TUTOtAl L o S5 Taon Tesa

PVR s coal reserve estimates are prepared from geological data assembled and analyzed by PVR’s general
panner s and its affiliates’ geologists and engineers. These estimates are compiled using geological data taken
from|thousands of drill holes, geophysical logs, adjacent mine workings, outcrop; prospect openings and other
sources. These estimates also take into account legal, qualitative technical and e'conomic limitations that may
keep lcoal from being mined. Coal reserve estimates will change from time to Ume due to mining activities,
analysns of new engineering and geological data, acquisition or divestment of reserve holdings, modification of
mmmg plans or mining methods and other fdctors
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PVR classifies low sulfur coal as coal with a sulfur content of less than 1.0%, medium sulfur coal as coal
with a sulfur content between 1.0% and 1.5% and high sulfur coal as coal with a sulfur content of greater than
1.5%. Compliance coal is that portion of low sulfur coal that meets compliance standards for the Clean Air Act.
As of December 31, 20006, approximately 27% of PVR’s reserves met compliance standards for the Clean Air
Act and 42% were low sulfur. The following table sets forth PVR’s estimate of the sulfur content and the typical
clean coal quality of its recoverable coal reserves at December 31, 2006:

Typical Clean
Sulfur Content Coal Quality
Reserves as of December 1, 2006 Heat Content
Low Medium  High Sulfur g;: Sulfur Ash
Property Compliance (1) Soifur(2) Sulfur  Sulfur Unclassified Total Pound(3) (%) (%)
(tons in millions} -
Central
Appalachia ...... 210.1 285.5 149.1 30.7 93.6 5589 12,350 1.03 6.46
Northern
Appalachia ...... — — — 36.0 — 36.0 12900 258 880
Ilinois Basin ...... — — — 112.6 — 112.6 11,034 296 8.32
San Juan Basin . .... — 34.6 18.6 4.7 — 57.9 9,200 0.89 17.80
Total ......... 210.1 320.1 167.7 184.0 93.6 765.4 ‘

H

{I} Compliance coal is low sulfur coal which, when burned. emits less than 1.2 pounds of sulfur dioxide per
million BTU. Compliance coal meets the sulfur dioxide emission standards imposed by the Clean Air Act
without blending in other coals or using sulfur dioxide reduction technologies. Compliance coal is a subset
of low sulfur coal and is, therefore, also reported within the amounts for low sulfur coal.

(2) Includes compliance coal. ) .

(3) As-received BTU per pound includes the weight of moisture in the coal on an as sold basis.

The following table shows the proven and probable coal reserves PVR leases to mine operators by property:

Proven and Probable Reserves As of
December 31, 2006

Total Leased Percentage

Property Controlled to Operators Leased

{tons in millions)

Central Appalachia........ ... ... . .. .. .o S 558.9 479.5 86%
Northern Appalachia ....... .. ... ... ... .. ... .. . .. .. 36.0 352 98%
IHinois Basin .. ... .. it 112.6 40.5 36%
SanJuan Basin ... ... . e 579 57.9 @_%
Total ... e 7654 613.1 80%

Coal Preparation and Loading Facilities

PVR generates coal services revenues from fees it charges to its lessees for the use of its coal preparation
and loading facilities. The facilities provide efficient methods to enhance lessee production levels and exploit
PVR’s reserves. Historically, the majority of these fees have been generated by PVR’s unit train loadout facility
on its Central Appalachia property, which accommodates 108 car unit trains that can be loaded in approximately
four hours. Some of PVR’s lessees utilize the unit train loadout facility to reduce the delivery costs incurred by
their customers. The coal service facility PVR purchased in November 2002 on its Coal River property in West
Virginia began operations late in the third quarter of 2003. In the first quarter of 2004; PVR placed into service a
newly constructed coal loadout facility for another lessee in West Virginia for $4.4 million. In September 2006,
PVR completed construction of a new preparation and loading facility on property it acquired in 2005 in eastern
Kentucky.
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Natural Gas Midstream Systems

PVR’s midstream operations currentlyinclude three natural gas gathering ‘and processing systems and a
standalone natural gas gathering system, mcludmg (i) the Beaver/Perryton gathe:;mg and processmg facilities in
the ;I‘exasIOkIahoma panhandle area, (ii) the Crescent gathering and processing facilities in central Oklahoma,

(iii) the Hamlin gathering and processing facnhtles in west-central Texas and (iv) the Arkoma gathering system in
eastem Oklahoma. These systems include apprommalely 3,631 miles of natural gas gathering pipelines and three
natural gas processing facilities, which have 160 MMeid of total capacity. PVR’s hatural gas midstream business
derives revenues primarily from gas process‘mg contracts with natural gas producers and from fees charged for
gath:ering natural gas volumes and providing!lother related services. PVR owus, leases or has rights-of-way to the
properties where the majority of its midstream facilities are located.

l

The following table sets forth information regarding our natural gas midstream assets:

‘ o Year Ended
| ' December 31, 2006
) Utilization
i Current  Average of
) o Approximate Approximate Processing System Processing
i Length Welis Capacity Throughput Capacity
ﬂ_ Type | {Miles) Connected  (Mmcfd)  (Mmcfd) (%)
Bea\lfer/Perryton System ... Gathering pipeiines and '
processing facility 1,377 934 100 113.0(1)  100.0%
Crescent System ......... Gathering pipelines and
: - processing facility 1,679 ~ BE8 40 18.4 46.0%
Hamlin System .......... Gathering pipelines and .
processing facility 497 231 20 7.2 36.0%
Arkoma System . .. ....... Gathering pipelines 78 78 11— 14.7(2)
3,631 2,131 .} 160 153.3(3)

—_— | . :

(1) iIncludes gas processed at other systemsiconnected to the Beaver/Perryton System via the pipeline acquired
lin June 2006.

{2) iiGathering only volumes.

(3) Total average system throughput would
‘had occurred on January 1, 2000,

¢ 163 MMcfd if the acquisition of addllmnal plpellne in June 2006

e e e e

Beaver/Perryton System

(General. The Beaver/Perryton System i i§ a natural gas gathering system stretching over ten counties in the
Anacllarko Bagsin of the panhandle of Texas and Oklahoma. The system consists of approximately 1,377 miles of
natural gas gathering pipelines, ranging in slze from two to 16 inches in dlameter and the Beaver natural gas
processing plant. Included in the system is an I1-mile, 10-inch diameter, FERC-_]unsdlcuonal residue line. Also
included is the non-jurisdictional 115-mile. plpelme that was recently acqulred from Transwestern Pipeline
Confpany, LLC and serves to connect a number of PVR’s gathering systems dlrectly to the Beaver plant.

i

IThe Beaver/Perryton System is compn'!sed of a number of major gathering systems and sixleen related
compressor stations that gather natural gas directly or indirectly, to the Beaver plant in Beaver County,
Oklahoma These include the Beaver, Perryton, Spearman, Wolf Creek/Kiowa Cireek and Ellis systems. These
gathermg systems are located in Beaver, Ellis and Harper Counties in Oklahoma and Hansford, Hutchinson,
Lipscomb, Ochiltree and Roberts Counties in Texas
|
ilhe Beaver natural gas processing platllt has 100 MMcid of inlet gas capacity. The plant is capable of
relatlvely high ethane recovery, and is mstrun}ented to allow for unattended operations 16 hours per day.
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Natural Gas Supply. The supply in the Beaver/Perryton System comes from approximately 166 producers
‘pursuant to 323 contracts. The average gas quality on the Beaver/Perryton System for 2006 was 3.6 gallons of
NGLs per delivered Mcf.

Markets for Sale of Natural Gas and NGLs. The residue gas from the Beaver plant can be delivered into
Northern Natural Gas, Southern Star Central Gas or ANR Pipeline Company pipelines for sale or transportation
to market. The NGLs produced at the Beaver plant are delivered into Koch Hydrocarbon’s plpelme system for
transportation to and fractionation at Koch’s Conway fractionator.

Crescent System

General. The Crescent System is a natural gas gathering system stretching over seven counties within
central Oklahoma’s Sooner Trend. The system consists of approximately 1,679 miles of natural gas gathering
pipelines, ranging in size from two to 10 inches in diameter, and the Crescent gas processing plant located in
Logan County, Oklahoma. Sixteen compressor stations are operating across the Crescent System.

The Crescent plant is a NGL recovery plant with current capacity of approximately 40 MMcfd. The
Crescent facility also includes a gas engine-driven generator which is routinely operated, making the plant self-
sufficient with respect to electric power. The cost of fuel {residue gas) for the generator is borne by the producers
under the terms of their respective gas contracts.

Natural Gas Supply. The gas supply on the Crescent System is primarily gas associated with the production
of oil or “casinghead gas” from the mature Sooner Trend. Wells in this region producing casinghead gas are
generally characterized as low volume, long-lived producers of gas with large quantities of NGLs. The supply in
the Crescent System comes from approximately 257 producers pursuant to 409 contracts. The average gas quality
on the Crescent System for 2006 was 5.5 gallons of NGLs per delivered Mcf.

Markets for Sale of Natural Gas and NGLs. The Crescent plant’s connection to the Enogex and ONEOK
Gas Transportation pipelines for residue gas and the Koch Hydrocarbon pipeline for NGLs give the Crescent
System access to a variety of market outlets.

Hamlin System

General. The Hamlin System is a natural gas gathering system stretching over eight counties in West
Central Texas. The system consists of approximately 497 miles of natural gas gathering pipelines, ranging in size
from two to 12 inches in diameter and with current capacity of approximately 20 MMcfd, and the Hamlin natural
gas processing plant located in Fisher County, Texas. Eight compressor stations are operating across the system.

Natural Gas Supply. The gas on the Hamlin System is primarily gas associated with the production of oil or
“casinghead gas.” The supply on the Hamlin System comes from approximately 111 producers pursuant to 140
contracts. The average gas quality on the Hamlin System for 2006 was 9.8 gallons of NGLs per delivered Mcf.

Markets for Sale of Natural Gas and NGLs. The Hamlin System delivers the residue gas from the Hamlin
System into the Enbridge or Atmos pipelines. NGLs from the Hamlin plant are tendered into a line operated by
TEPPCO.

Arkoma System

General. The Arkoma System is a stand-alone gathering operation in southeastern Oklahoma’s Arkoma
Basin and is comprised of three separate gathering systems, two of which are 100% owned with the third system
being 49% owned. PVR operates and maintains all three systems. The Arkoma System consists of a total of
approximately 78 miles of natural gas gathering pipelines, ranging in size from three to 12 inches in diameter.
Three compressor stations are operating across the Arkoma System.
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to 29 contracts.

and 1{\1 GPL pipelines.

Ilem 3 Legal Proceedings

We are not currently a party to any hugauon Although PVR may, from
lltlgatlon and claims arising out of its operations in the normal course of business,

Natural Gas Supply. The supply on the Arkoma System comes from approximately 16 producers pursuant

\Markets for Sale of Natural Gas and NGLs The Arkoma System lines deliver gas into the Ozark, Noram

time to time, be involved in
PVR is not currently a party to

any matenal legal proceedings. In addition, PVR is not aware of any material legal or governmental proceedings
agamst it, or contemplated to be brought against it, under the various environmental protection statutes to which

it is subjcct See Item |, “Business—Government Regulation and Environmental
discussion of our material environmental obllgatlons

I
Item 4  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
i

Matters,” for a more detailed

There were no matiers submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2006.
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PARTII

Item 5  Market for the Registrant’s Common Eqmty, Related Unitholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information

Our common units began trading on the NYSE under the symbol “PVG” on December 6, 2006. The high
and low sales prices (composite transactions) for the fourth quarter of 2006 were $20.45 and $18.00.

Equity Holders

As of February 21, 2007, there were 33 record holders and appmxlmately 3,400 beneficial owners (held in
street name) of our common units.

Distributions

We paid a cash distribution of $0.07 per common unit on February 14, 2007, which represented a $0.96 per
unit distribution on an annualized basis that was prorated for the period beginning on December 5, 2006, the
initial trading date of our common units of the NYSE, and ending on December 31, 2006. For the remainder of
2007, we expect to pay quarterly distributions of $0.24 ($0.96 on an annualized basis) or more per common unit.

There is no guarantee that we will pay quarterly cash distributions on our common units in any quarter, and
we will be prohibited from making any distributions to our unitholders if it would cause an event of default under
any debt we might incur in the future, although we do not currently have any indebtedness.

Item 6 Selected Financial Data

On December 8, 2006, we completed our IPO whereby we became the successor to Penn Virginia Resource
GP, LLC on a combined basis (predecessor). For the purposes of this selected financial data, we refer to the
predecessor for the periods prior to December 8, 2006 and to us for the periods beginning on December 8, 2006.
The financial data present our results of operations and financial position as if we had existed as a single entity,
separate from Penn Virginia, for the periods prior to December 8, 2006.

Because we own and control the general partner of PVR, we reflect our ownership interest in PVR on a
consolidated basis, which means that our financial results are combined with PVR’s financial results and the
results of our other subsidiaries. We have no separate operating activities apart from those conducted by PVR,
and our cash flows consist solely of distributions from PVR on the partnership interests, including incentive
distribution rights, that we own in PVR. Accordingly, the selected historical financial data set forth in the
following table primarily reflect the operating activities and results of operations of PVR. The limited partner
interests in PVR not owned by our affiliates are reflected as minority interest on our balance sheet and the
non-affiliated partners’ share of income from PVR is reflected as an expense in our results of operations.

The following selected historical financial information was derived from our audited financial statements as
of December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and for each of the years then ended. The selected financial
data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes in
Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” and Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
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| : Year Ended December 31,

', 2006 2005 (1) } 2004 2003 2002

; {(in thousands, except per unit data)
Revenues ...............ccoooviii b, $517,891 $446,348 $75630 §$ 55,642 5 38,608
EXPENSES .+« « v v v e $415468 $368,258 $|35111 $ 29,082 $ 14,181
Ope'{ating income ..................... l ....... $102,423 $ 78,090 $140,519 $ 26,560 $ 24,427
Netincome ..ot e $ 32,048 §$ 20,769 $i15289 $ 10,180 § 12,792
Totall assets (2) . ... ... .. ... L $716,269 $659,947 $285,470 $261,267 3266,975
Longtermdebt ........ ... . o il $207.214 $246,846 $112,926 § 50,286 $ 90,887
Casﬁ flows provided by operating activities ' ....... $100,683 $ 94,450 $|53,852 §$ 40,770 % 31,579

) 'The 2005 column includes the results of operations of the natural gas mldstream segment since March 3,
2005, the closing date of the Cantera Acquisition (as defined in Item 7, “Management s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Acquisitions and Investments”™).

(2) |Total assets in 2005 reflect the Cantera Acquisition.

Item 7  Management’s Discussion and Ahalysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following review of the financial éondition and results of operations of Penn Virginia GP Holdings,
L.P.|and its subsidiaries should be read in conjunction with our (:omohddted1 financial statements and the
accompanying notes in Item 8, “Financial Statemente and Supplementary Data. * Qur discussion and analysis
include the following items:

= Overview of Business ;
* Acquisitions and Investments i
+  Current Performance i
*  Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
+ Liquidity and Capital Resources
+ Contractual Obligations i
= Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements [

* Results of Operations ;
+  Environmental Matters |
» Recent Accounting Pronouncements

» Forward-Looking Statements i

Overview of Qur Business

General

We are a publicly traded Delaware limitéd partnership formed in June 2006. Our only cash generating assets
consist of our partnership interests in PYR which consist of the following:

e a 2% general partner interest in PVR, which we hold through our 100% ownership interest in Penn
Virginia Resource GP, LLC, PVR’si general partner;

+ all of the incentive distribution righits in PVR, which we hold through our 100% ownership interest in
PVR’s general partner; and |

» 19,587,049 units of PVR, consisliné of 15,541,738 commeoen units and 4,?45,31 1 Class B units of PVR,
representing in the aggregate an approximately 42% limited partner interest in PVR.
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All of our cash flows are generated from the cash distributions we receive with respect to the PVR
partnership interests we own. PVR is required by its partnership agreement to distribute, and it has historically
distributed within 45 days of the end of each quarter, all of its cash on hand at the end of each quarter, less cash
reserves established by its general partner in its sole discretion to provide for the proper conduct of PVR’s
business or to provide for future distributions. While we, like PVR, are structured as a limited partnership, our
capital structure and cash distribution policy differ materially from those of PVR. Most notably, our general
partner does not have an economic interest in us and is not entitled to receive any distributions from us and our
capital structure does not include incentive distribution rights. Therefore, our distributions are allocated
exclusively to our common units, which is our only class of security currently outstanding.

Qur ownership of PVR’s incentive distribution rights entitles us to receive the following percentages of cash
distributed by PVR as it reaches the following target cash distribution levels:

* 13% of all incremental cash distributed in a quarter after $0.275 has been distributed in respect of each
common unit and Class B unit of PVR for that quarter;

*  23% of all incremental cash distributed after $0.325 has been distributed in respect of each common
unit and Class B unit of PVR for that quarter; and

= the maximum sharing level of 48% of all incremental cash distributed after $0.375 has been distributed
in respect of each common unit and Class B unit of PVR for that quarter.

Since 2001, PVR has increased its quarterly cash distribution eight times from $0.25 per unit ($1.00 on an
annualized basis) to $0.40 per unit ($1.60 on an annualized basis), which is the most recently declared
distribution. These increased cash distributions by PVR have placed us at the third and maximum target cash
distribution level as described above. As a consequence, any increase in cash distribution level from PVR will
allow us to share at the 48% level and the cash distributions we receive from PVR with respect to our indirect
ownership of the incentive distribution rights will increase more rapidly than those with respect to our ownership
of the general partner interest and limited partner interests. Because we are at the maximum target cash
distribution level on the incentive distribution rights, future growth in distributions we receive from PVR will not
result from an increase in the target cash distribution level associated with the incentive distribution rights.

Financial Presentation

We reflect our ownership interest in PVR on a consolidated basis, which means that our financial results are
combined with PVR’s financial results and the results of our other subsidiaries. The 58% limited partner interest
in PVR that we do not own, after the effect of incentive distribution rights, is reflected as a minority interest in
our results of operations. We have no separate operating activities apart from those conducted by PVR, and our
cash flows currently consist of distributions from PVR on the partnership interests, including the incentive
distribution rights, that we own. Accordingly, the discussion of our financial position and results of operations in
this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ reflects the
operating activities and results of operations of PVR. The historical results of our operations do not reflect the
incremental expenses we expect to incur as a result of being a publicly traded partnership.

Overview of PYR’s Business

PVR is a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership formed by Penn Virginia in 2001 that is principally
engaged in the management of coal properties and the gathering and processing of natural gas in the United
States. Both in its current limited partnership form and in its previous corporate form, PVR has managed coal
properties since 1882. Since the acquisition of a natural gas midstream business in March 2005, PVR conducts
operations in two business segments: coal and natural gas midstream. In 2006, approximately 72%, or
$73.4 million, of our operating income was attributable to PVR's coal segment, and approximately 29%, or
$29.4 million, of our operating income was attributable to PVR’s natural gas midstream segment.
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PVR Coal Segment '

As of December 31, 2006, PVR owned or controlled approximately 765 millilon tons of proven and probable
coal reserves in Central and Northern Appalachia, the San Juan Basin and the lllirllois Basin. As of December 31,
2006, approximately 87% of PVR’s proven and probable coal reserves was “steam” coal used primarily by
electlic generation utilities, and the remaining 13% was metallurgical coal used pr;'imarily by steel manufacturers.
PVR enters into long-term leases with experienced third-party mine operators providing them the right to mine
its coal reserves in exchange for royalty payments PVR does not operate any [mmes In 2006, PVR’s lessees
produced 32.8 million tons of coal from its propertles and paid to PVR coal royalty revenues of $98.2 million, for
an average gross coal royalty per ton of $2. 99, Approiimately 84% of PVR’s coal royalty revenues in 2006 and
83% of PVR’s coal rovalty revenues in 2005 were derived from coal mmedlon its properties under leases
contalmng royalty rates based on the higher of a fixed base price or a percentage of the gross sales price. The
balance of PVR’s coal royalty revenues for the respective periods was derived from coal mined on its properties
under leases containing fixed royalty rates that escalate annually.

Coal prices, especially in Central Appalachla where the majority of PVR’s coal is produced, increased
significantly from the beginning of 2004 through most of 2006. The price increase stems from several causes,
including increased electricity demand and decreasing coal production in Central Appalachia.

Substantially all of PVR’s leases require the lessee to pay minimum rental payments to PVR in monthly or
annual installments. PVR actively works with its lessees to develop efficient methods to exploit its reserves and
to maxirmize production from its properties. PVR also earns revenues from providing fee-based coal preparation
and|transportatton services to its lessees, which enhance their production level‘q and generate additional coal
royalty revenues, and from industrial third party coal end-users by owning and operatmg coal handling facilities
through its joint venture with Massey. In addition, PVR earns revenues from oil and gas royalty interests it owns,
fron't wheelage rights and from the sale of standing timber on its properties. Dunr'tg 2006, five lessees accounted
for 78% of PVR’s coal royalty revenues.

IPVR’s management continues to focus on acquisitions that increase and diversify its sources of cash flow.
Durmg 2006, PVR increased its coal reserves by 96 million tons, or 14%,,from its coal reserves as of
December 31, 2005, by completing three coal reserve acquisitions in 2006 with an aggregate purchase price of
approxlmate]y $76 miilion. For a more detailed discussion of PVR’s acqu1smon<; see “—Acquisitions and
Investments !

L

]Coal royalties are impacted by several factors that PVR generally cannot control The number of tons mined
anndally is determined by an operator’s mining efficiency, labor availability, geologlc conditions, access to
capital, ability to market coal and ability to mange reliable transportation to the end user. The possibility exists
that new legislation or regulations have or may be adopted which may have a s:gmﬁcant impact on the mining
operatlons of PVR’s lessees or their customers’ ability to use coal and which ma): require PVR, its lessees or its
lessee’s customers to change operations significantly or incur substantial costs. See Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”

| |

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment

PVR owns and operates midstream asséts that include approximately 3,631 miles of natural gas gathering
pipelines and three natural gas processing facilities located in Oklahoma and the panhandle of Texas, which have
160 IMMcfd of total capacity. PVR’s midstream business derives revenues p{nmarlly from gas processing
contracts with natural gas producers and from fees charged for gathering natural gas volumes and providing other
related services. PVR also owns a natural gas marketing business, which aggregates third-party volumes and sells
those volumes into intrastate pipeline systems and at market hubs accessed by vanous interstate pipelines. PVR
acqu1red its natural gas midstream assets through the acquisition of Cantera in letrch 2005. PVR’s management
bel:eves that this acquisition established a platform for future growth in the natural gas midstream sector and
dlversxﬁed its cash flows into another long- llved asset base. Since acquiring these assets, PVR has expanded its
natural gas midstream business by adding 181 miles of new gathering lines.
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For the year ended December 31, 2006, inlet volumes at PVR’s gas processing plants and gathering systems,
including gathering-only volumes, were 56.0 Bcf, or approximately 153 MMcfd. Two of PVR’s natural gas
midstream customers, ConocoPhillips Company and BP Canada Energy Marketing Corp., accounted for 32%
and 17% of our natural gas midstream revenues in 2006.

PVR continually seeks new supplies of natural gas to both offset the natural declines in production from the
wells currently connected to its systems and to increase throughput velume. New natural gas supplies are
obtained for all of PVR’s systems by contracting for production from new wells, connecting new wells drilled on
dedicated acreage and by contracting for natural gas that has been released from competitors’ systems.

Revenues, profitability and the future rate of growth of the natural gas midstream segment are highly
dependent on market demand and prevailing NGL and natural gas prices. Historically, changes in the prices of
most NGL. products have generally correlated with changes in the price of crude oil. NGL and natural gas prices
have been subject to significant volatility in recent years in response to changes in the supply and demand for
NGL products and natural gas market uncertainty.

PVR Unit Split

On February 23, 2006, the board of directors of PVR’s general partner declared a two-for-one split of PVR’s
common and subordinated units. On April 4, 2006, PVR completed the split by distributing one additional
common unit and one additional subordinated unit (a total of 16,997,325 common units and 3,824,940
subordinated units) for each common unit and subordinated unit, respectively, held of record at the close of
business on March 28, 2006. -

Conclusion of Subordination Period

The subordination period with respect to 7,649,880 PVR subordinated units expired on October 1, 2006. As
a result, all of the outstanding PVR subordinated units converted into PVR common units on a one-for-one basis
in accordance with their terms when PVR paid its third quarter distribution on November 14, 2006.

Acquisitions and Investments
PVR Coal Segment

LG&E Acquisition. In December 2006, PVR acquired ownership and lease rights to approximately
22 million tons of coal reserves. The reserves are located in Henderson County, Kentucky. The purchase price

“was $9.3 million and was funded with cash.

Coal Infrastructure Construction. In September 2006, PVR completed construction of a new 600-ton per
hour coal processing plant and rail loading facility for one of its lessees located in Knott County in eastern
Kentucky. The facility began operations in October 2006. Since acquiring fee ownership and lease rights to the
property’s coal reserves in July 2005, PVR made cumulative capital expenditures of $15.4 million related to the
construction of the facility.

Huff Creek Acquisition. In May 2006, PVR acquired the lease rights to approximately 69 million tons of
coal reserves located on approximately 20,000 acres in Boone, Logan and Wyoming Counties, West Virginia.
The purchase price was $65.0 million and was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility.

Green River Acquisition. In July 2005, PVR acquired fee ownership of approximately 94 million tons of
coal reserves located along the Green River in the westem Kentucky portion of the Illinois Basin for
$62.4 million in cash and the assumption of $3.3 million of deferred income. This coal reserve acquisition was
PVR’s first in the [llinois Basin and was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility.

50




Currently, approximately 41 million tons of these coal reserves are leased to afﬁllates of Peabody. PVR expects
the rJemmmng coal reserves to be leased over the next several years, with a gradual increase in coal productlon
and related cash flow from the property.

Wayland Acquisition. In July 2005, PYR acquired a combination of fee lownership and lease rights to
approxlmately 16 million tons of coal reserves for $14.5 million. The reserv'es are located in the eastern
Kentucky portion of Central Appalachia. The acquisition was funded with $4.0 million of cash and the issuance
by PVR to the seller of approximately 209, 000 common units,

!Alloy Acquisition. In April 2005, PVRlacqmred fee ownership of approximately 16 million tons of coal
reserves for $15.0 million in cash. The reserves, located near Alloy, West Virginia on approximately 8,300 acres
in the Central Appalachia region of West Vlrgmla will be produced from deep Iand surface mines. Production
sta:ted in late 2005. Revenues were earned mmally from wheelage fees on coal mrned from an adjacent property,
followed by royalty revenues as the mines on 'PVR’s property commenced productlon The seller remained on the
property as the lessee and operator. The -acquisition was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving
credit facility. . -

Coal River Acquisition. In March 200? PVR acquired lease rights to approximately 36 million tons of
undeveloped coal reserves and royalty mterests in 73 producing oil and natural gas wells for $9.3 miilion in cash.
The coal reserves are located in the Central Appalachla region of West Virginia. The oil and gas wells are located
in eastern Kentucky and southwestern Virginia, The acquisition was funded w1th long-term debt under PVR's
revolvmg credit facility. The coal reserves are predominantly low sulfur and high l|3TU content, and development
will occur in conjunction with PVR’s adjacent reserves and a related loadout facility that was placed into service
in 2004 The oil and gas property contamed approximately 2.8 billion cubic feket equivalent (or Bcfe) of net
proved o0il and gas reserves with net prOdUCtl(I)l'l of approximately (.2 Bcfe on an annualized basis.

Coal Handling Jomt Venture. In July ZOIO4 PVR acquired from affiliates of Massey a 50% interest in a joint
venture formed to own and operate end-userjcoal handling facilities. The purchase price was $28.4 million and
was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility. The joint venture owns coal handling
fa(:llmes which unload shipments and store and transfer coal for three industrial cbal consumers in the chemical,
paper and lime production industries localed in Tennessee, Virginia and Kentlllcky A combination of fixed
monthly fees and per ton throughput fees 1s,pa1d by those consumers under long-term leases expiring between
2007 and 2019. PVR recognized equity earnings of $1.3 million in 2006, $1.1 m11110n in 2005 and $0.4 million in
2004 related to its ownership in the joint venture PVR received joint venture distributions of $2.7 nulhon in
2006, $2.3 million in 2005 and $1.0 million in 2004.

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment

Transwestern Acquisition. In June 200I6 PVR completed the acquisition of approximately 115 miles of
gathering pipelines and related compressnonl facilities in Texas and Oklahoma. These assets are contiguous to
PVRi s Beaver/Perryton System. PVR pald $14.7 million in cash for the acqu151t10n Subsequently, PVR
borrowed $14.7 rmlhon under its revolving credit facility to replenish the cash used for the acquisition.

Cantera Acquisition. In March 2005, PVR completed its acquisition of Cantera, a midstream gas gathering
and processing company with primary locations in the Mid-Continent area of Oklahoma and the panhandle of
Texas Cash paid in connection with the adqmsntron was $199.2 million, net of cash received and including
capltahzed acquisition costs, which PVR funded with a $110 million term loan and with long-term debt under its
revo]vmg credit facility. PVR used the proceeds from its sale of common units in a subsequent public offering in
Mardh 2005 to repay the term loan in full Iand to reduce outstanding mdebtedriess under its revolving credit
facili ty. See Note 4 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for pro forma financial information.
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Current Performance

Operating income for 2006 was $102.4 million. The PVR coal segment contributed $73.4 million, or 71%,
to operating income, and the PVR natural gas midstream segment contributed $29.4 million, or 29%. Corporate
and other functions resulted in approximately $0.4 million of operating expenses. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, we had a 42% interest in PVR’s net income, including incentive distribution rights. The
following table presents a summary of certain financial information relating to our segments (in thousands):

Natural Gas
Coal Midstream {1} Other Consolidated

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006:

REVEIUBS . ... ..ttt ittt e e $112,981  $404,910 § — $517,891
Cost of midstream gas purchased ... ........... ... ... ... — 334,594 — 334,594
Operating costs and eXpPenses . ..........oueeieiiiiien., 19,138 23,846 397 43,381
| Depreciation, depletion and amortization ................... 20,399 17,094 _— 37493
f Operating inCome .. ........ .o iiiiieeiiaa $ 73444  $ 29,376  $(397) $102.423
.For the Year Ended December 31, 2005:
REVEMUES . ...ttt ttiee ettt ie e $ 95,755  $350,593 $—  $446,348
Cost of midstream gas purchased ........................ . — 303912 — 303912
Operating costs and expenses ............ e 16,121 17,597 — 33,718
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ................... 17,890 12,738 — 30,628
TOperating ifCoIME .. ..ottt $ 61,744 § 16346 $ — $ 78,090
_For the Year Ended December 31, 2004: : '
REVENUES . oo ittt i e e $ 75630 § @ — $— $ 75,630
Cost of midstream gas purchased ......................... —_ — — —
Operating costs and expenses . ................coiiennnnn 16,479 —_ — 16,479
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ................... 18,632 — — 18,632
Operating iNCOME .. ..\ vev ettt niaans $ 40,519 § — $— $ 40,519

(1) Reflects the results of operations of the natural gas midstream segment since March 3, 2003, the closing
date of the Cantera Acquisition.

-

PVR Coal Segment

In 2006, coal royalty revenues increased 19%, or $15.5 million, over 2005 due to acquisitions, more coal
being mined by PVR’s lessees and increasing coal prices. Tons produced by PVR’s lessees increased from
30.2 million tons in 2005 to 32.8 million tons in 2006, and PVR’s average gross royalties per ton increased from
$2.74 in 2005 to $2.99 in 2006. Generally, as coal prices change, PVR’s average royalties per ton also change
because the majority of PVR’s lessees pay royalties based on the gross sales prices of the coal mined. Most of
PVR’s coal is sold by its lessees under contracts with a duration of one year or more; therefore, changes to PVR’s
average royalties occur as PVR’s lessees’ contracts are renegotiated. The Illinois Basin coal reserves that PVR
acquired in July 2005 resulted in $4.8 million of coal royalty revenues in 2006 compared to $2.7 million in 2005.
The Huff Creek Acquisition in May 2006 resulted in $4.8 million of coal royalty revenues in 2006.

Coal services revenues increased to $5.9 million in 2006 from $5.2 million in 2005. In September 2006,
PVR completed construction of a coal service facility in Knott County, Kentucky, which began operations in
October 2006. The newly constructed facility contributed $0.2 million to coal services revenues in 2006, PVR
believes that these types of fee-based infrastructure assets provide good investment and cash flow opportunities,
and PVR continues to look for additional investments of this type, as well as other primarily fee-based assets.
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The following table summarizes coal prdduction and coal royalty revenues by,property:

'
1

| Coal Production  Coeal Royalty Revenues

Year Ended Year Ended
_ December 31, December 31,
Property 2006 | 2005 2006 2005
‘ ' ‘ (tons in ;thousands) (in thousands)
Central Appalachia .................... e 20,156 18,996 $76,542 364,645
Norﬂilem Appalachia ................... e e e 5 009: 4,958 7314 6,973
Nlinois Basin ..................... ... R R R R EEREERITRE, 2,540, 1,449 4,768 2,709
San Jjuan Basin . ... .. 5 073] 4,824 9,539 8,398
TOtal ..ot L 32,778) 30227 $98,163 $82.725

i

PTR Natural Gas Midstream Segment

The gross processing margin for PVR’s natural gas midstream operations mcreased from $44.7 million in
2005'to $68.1 million in 2006. This increase was due primarily to higher NGL prlces and the contribution of the
Transwestern Acquisition. Inlet volumes at PYR’s gas processing plants and gmhenng systems were 153 MMcfd
in 2006 an increase over 127 MMcfd in 2005, primarily due to additional well clonnecuons in the area. PVR’s
mldstream business generates revenues primarily from gas purchase and processmg contracts with natural gas
producers and from fees charged for gathering natural gas volumes and prov1d|ng other related services. During
the year ended December 31, 2006, PVR’s natural gas midstream business generated a majority of its gross
margin from contractual arrangements under which its margin is exposed to mcreases and decreases in the price
of natural gas and NGLs. See Item 1, “Business—PVR's Contracts—PVR Natural 'Gas Midstream Segment,” for
a discussion of the types of contracts utilized by the natural gas midstream segment. As part of PVR’s risk
management strategy, PVR uses denvanve financial instruments to economically hedge NGLs sold and natural
gas p‘urchased See the tables in “—Results of Operations—PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment—Expenses”
for the effects of PVR’s derivative program on gross processing margin.

PVR’S natural gas midstream assets are primarily located in the Mld-Contmem area of Oklahoma and the
panhandle of Texas. The following table sets forth information regarding PVR’s natural gas midstream assets as
of December 31, 2006:

i

1

Year Ended
December 31, 2006
Utilization
Current Average of
| Approximate Approximate Processmg System Processing
Length Wells Capacity  Throughput  Capacity
ﬂ Type (Miles}) Connected {Mmcfd) (Mmcfd} (%)
Beaver/Perryton System ...... Gathering l
| pipelines ‘and
processing
facility 1,377 934 100 113.0(1y 100.0%
Crescent System ............ Gathering
‘ pipelines” and
processing,
facility 1,679 888 40 18.4 46.0%
Hamlin System ............. Gathering
f pipelines and
I processing
facility 497 231 20 7.2 36.0%
Arkoma System ............. Gathering i
pipelines 78 78 -— 14.7(2)
3,631 2,131 16 153.3(3)
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(1) Includes gas processed at other systems connected to the Beaver/Perryton System via the pipeline acquired
in June 2006.

(2) Gathering only volumes.

(3) Total average system throughput would be 163 MMecfd if the acquisition of additional pipeline in June 2006
had occurred on January 1, 2006.

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The process of preparing financial staiements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires our management to make estimates and judgments regarding certain
items and transactions. It is possible that materially different amounts could be recorded if these estimates and
judgments change or if the actual results differ from these estimates and judgments. We consider the following to
be the most critical accounting policies which involve the judgment of our management.

Natural Gas Midstream Revenues

Revenues from the sale of NGLs and residue gas are recognized when the NGLs and residue gas produced
at PVR’s gas processing plants are sold. Gathering and transportation revenues are recognized based upon actual
volumes delivered. Due to the time needed to gather information from various purchasers and measurement
locations and then calculate volumes delivered, the collection of natural gas midstream revenues may take up to
30 days fotlowing the month of production. Therefore, accruals for revenues and accounts receivable and the
related cost of midstream gas purchased and accounts payable are made based on estimates of natural gas
purchased and NGLs and natural gas sold, and our financial results include estimates of production and revenues
for the peried of actual production. Any differences, which we do not expect to be significant, between the actual
amounts ultimately received or paid and the original estimates are recorded in the period they become finalized.

Coal Royalty Revenues

Coal royalty revenues are recognized on the basis of tons of coal sold by PVR’s lessees and the
corresponding revenues from those sales. Since PVR does not operate any mines, it does not have access to
actual production and revenue information until approximately 30 days following the month of production.
Therefore, PVR’s financial results include estimated revenues and accounts receivable for the month of
production. Any differences, which we do not expect to be significant, between the actual amounts ultimately
received and the original estimates are recorded in the period they become finalized.

Derivative Activities

PVR historically has entered into derivative financial instruments that would qualify for hedge accounting
under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities. Hedge accounting affects the timing of revenue recognition and cost of midstream gas
purchased in PVR’s consolidated statements of income, as a majority of the gain or loss from a contract
qualifying as a cash flow hedge is deferred until the hedged transaction settles. Because during the first quarter of
2006 PVR’s natural gas derivatives and a large portion of PYR’s NGL derivatives no longer qualified for hedge
accounting and to increase clarity in its consolidated financial statements, PVR elected to discontinue hedge
accounting prospectively for its remaining and future commodity derivatives beginning May 1, 2006.
Consequently, from that date forward, PVR began recognizing mark-to-market gains and losses in eamings
currently, rather than deferring such amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income (partners’ capital).
Because PVR no longer uses hedge accounting for its commodity derivatives, it could experience significant
changes in the estimate of derivative gain or loss recognized in revenues and cost of midstream gas purchased
due to swings in the value of these contracts. These fluctuations could be significant in a volatile pricing
environment.
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The net mark-to-market loss on PVR‘s| outstanding derivatives at April 30, 2006, which was included in
accumulaled other comprehensive income, will be reported in future eammgslthrough 2008 as the original
hedged transactions settle. This change in reporting will have no impact on PVR’s reported cash flows, although
future results of operations will be affected by the potential volatility of mark-to- market gams and losses which
ﬂuct:uale with changes in NGL, oil and gas pnces

t

Depletion !
Coal properties are depleted on an area!—by -area basis at a rate based on the]cost of the mineral properties

and the number of tons of estimated provenand probable coal reserves comamed therein. Proven and probable
coal{reserves have been estimated by PVR’s own geclogists and outside consultants PVR’s estimates of coal
resetves are updated annually and may result in adjustments to coal reserves and depletion rates that are
recogmzed prospectively.

Goodwill

Under SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and SFAS No. 142, Goodw:ll and Other Intangible Assets,
goodwﬂl recorded in connection with a busmess combination is not amortized, bult tested for impairment at least
annually Accordingly, PVR does not amomze goodwill. PVR tests goodwill for impairment during the fourth
quaner of each fiscal year. Based on the results of the test during the fourth|quarter of 2006, no goodwill
mpalrmcnl was recognized in 2006. ‘
i
Intangibles '

t

Intangible assets are primarily associated with assumed contracts, customer refationships and rights-of-way.
The s intangible assets are amortized over penods of up to 15 years, the penod in which benefits are derived
from the contracts, relationships and rights-of-way, and are reviewed for lmpalrrnenl under SFAS No. 144,

Accéummg Jor the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.
|

i
:
t

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We rely excluswely on distributions ﬁl'om PVR to fund any cash requ1remenls for our operations. PVR
generally satisfies its working capital requlrements and funds its capital expendltures and debt service obligations
fl‘01’1!l cash generated from its operations and borrowings under its revolving credit facility. PVR believes that the
cash generated from PVR’s operations and 1ts borrowing capacity will be sufficient to meet its working capital
requlrements anticipated capital expendltures {other than major capital improvements or acquisitions), scheduled
debtI payments and distribution payments. PVR’s ability to satisfy its obllgallom.| and planned expenditures will
depend upon PVR’s future operating performance which will be affected by, among other things, prevailing
economxc conditions in the coal industry and natural gas midstream market, some of which are beyond PVR’s
control. ~
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Summarized cash flow statements for 2006 and 2005, consolidating our segments, are set forth below (in
thousands):

Natural Gas

For the year ended December 31, 2006 Coal (1) Midstream (1) Other Consolidated
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income contribution . ........ ... ... .. ... a... $23274 § 8001 $ 773 % 32,048

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities (summarized) ............... 54,219 21,790 243 76,252

Net change in operating assets and liabilittes ... ......., 1,450 (1,390  (7,677) (7.617)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities .......... $78943 $§ 28401 $(6,661) 100,683
Net cash used in investing activities ... .. e $(92,692) $ (36984) § — (129,676)
Net cash provided by financing activities .................. 19,530
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ., ............... $ (9.463)

Natural Gas

For the year ended December 31, 2005 Coal (1) Midstream (1) Other Consolidated
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income contribution ...........c.ouuenenennn.. $19642 & 1,130 § (3 $ 20,769

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities (summarized) ............... 49,624 22,681 1,620 73,925

Net change in operating assets and liabilities ........... 2,333 (1,698) (879 {244)
Net cash provided by operating activities . ................. $71599 § 22,113 § 738 94,450
Net cash used in investing activities ...................... $(97.109y $(206,512) $§ — (303,621)
Net cash provided by financing activities .................. . 211,376
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ................. $ 2205

(1) Net income, adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities and net change
in operating assets and liabilities for PVR’s coal and natural gas midstream segments have been adjusted for
minority interest and income taxes.

Cash Flows

Cash provided by operating activities increased $6.2 million, or 7%, to $100.7 million for the vear ended
December 31, 2006 from $94.5 million for 2005. The overall increase in cash provided by operating activities in
2006 compared to 2005 was primarily attributable to higher average gross coal royalties per ton and accretive
cash flows from PVR’s natural gas midstream business, which was acquired in March 2005, partially offset by
increased cash outflows for derivative settlements. Cash provided by operating activities increased $40.6 million,
or 75%, to $94.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $53.9 million for 2004, The overall
increase in cash provided by operating activities in 2005 compared to 2004 was primarily attributable to higher
average gross coal royalties per ton and accretive cash flows from PVR’s newly acquired natural gas midstream
business.

PVR made cash investments in 2006 primarily for coal reserve acquisitions, coal loadout facility
construction and natural gas midstream acquisitions and gathering system expansions. PVR made cash
investments in 2005 primarily for the acquisition of our natural gas midstream business and coal reserve
acquisitions. Other investments in 20035 included a $4.1 million purchase of railcars that PVR previously leased
and $4.4 million of gathering systemn additions. Cash investments in 2004 primarily related to PVR’s investment
in the coal handling joint venture with Massey, which has been accounted for as an equity investment.
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iCapital expenditures, including noncash ;items, for each of the three years ended December 31, 2006 were as
follows: ‘

Year Ended December 31,
2006 | 2005 2004
. {in thousands}
Coal .
Acquisitions (1) .. ...... . $ 75, 182 $ 92,003 $28,675
Expansion capital expenditures ... .................... 15,103 5,657 783
Other property and equipment expenditures ............. 100 351 72
! Total «o ot e 90,385 98,101 29,530
Natural gas midstream ! '
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired ..................... 14,626 199,223 —
Expansion capital expenditures ....................... 15,39|4 3,324 —
Other property and equipment expenditures . ............ 9414 4264 —
TOML « o eveeeee e 39434 206,811 —
' Total capital expenditures ........... ... .. .. o i $l29,8179 $304,912  $29,530

|
(1) { Amount in 2006 excludes acqu1smon of assets and liabilities other than property or equipment of
$1.2 million. Amount in 2005 excludes noncash expenditure of $11.1 mllhon to acquire coal reserves in
Kentucky in the Wayland Acquisition in exchange for $10.4 million of equny issued in the form of PVR
l common units and $0.7 million of labilities assumed. Amount in 2005 also excludes the noncash portion of
I

l

the Green River Acquisition, in which PYR assumed $3.3 million of deférred income. Amount in 2004
excludes noncash expenditures of $1.1 million to acquire additional reserves lon PVR’s Northern Appalachia
properties in exchange for equity issued in the form of PVR common and Class B units.

PVR funded capital expenditures in 2006, including three acquisitions and coal infrastructure construction,
w1th cash flows from operations, borrowmgs under its revolving credit fac111ty, proceeds from the sale of
common and Class B units to us and a contribution from us to maintain our 2% general partner interest in PVR.
To!ﬁnance its 2005 acquisitions, PVR borrowed $137.2 million, net of rep%lyments received proceeds of
$126 4 million from its secondary public offering of common units and received a $2.6 million contribution from
its general partner. To finance its equity investment in the Massey coal hand]mg joint venture in 2004, PVR
borrowed $26.0 million, net of repayments. Distributions to PVR’s partners mcreased to $67.0 million in 2006
frml'n $51.9 mitlion in 2005 and $39.2 million in 2004 because PVR increased the’quarterly distribution per unit.

]
Long-Term Debt

l As of December 31, 2006, we had no outstanding borrowings other than the borrowings of PVR discussed
below which are included in our consolidated financial statements.

As of December 31, 2006, PVR had outstanding borrowings of $218.0 n'ulhlon consisting of $143.2 million
borrowed under its revolving credit famllty and $74.8 million of senior unsecured notes (or the Notes). The
current portion of the Notes as of December 31, 2006 was $10.8 million.

PVR Revolving Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2006, PVR had $143 2 million outstanding under its
unsecured $300 million revolving credit facility (or the Revolver) that matures m December 2011. PVR used the
proceeds from the sale of common units and Class B units to us in December 2006 to pay down $114.6 million of
the Revolver. The Revolver is available to PVR for general purposes, 1ncludmg working capital, capital
expendllures and acquisitions, and includes a $10 million sublimit for the 1ssua1]10e of letters of credit. PVR had
Oulslandlng letters of credit of $1.6 million as of December 31, 2006. In 2006, PVR incurred commitment fees of
$0.4 million on the unused portion of the Revolver. PVR has a one-time opnon to expand the Revolver by
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$150 million upen receipt by the credit facility’s administrative agent of commitments from one or more lenders.
The interest rate under the Revolver fluctuates based on PVR’s ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA. Interest is
payable at a base rate plus an applicable margin of up to 0.75% if PVR selects the base rate borrowing option
under the Revolver or at a rate derived from the London Inter Bank Offering Rate (or LIBOR) plus an applicable
margin ranging from 0.75% to 1.75% if PVR selects the EIBOR-based borrowing option.

The financial covenants under the Revolver require PVR to maintain specified levels of debt to consolidated
EBITDA and consolidated EBITDA to interest. The financial covenants restricted PVR’s borrowing capacity
under the Revolver to approximatety $257.0 million as of December 31, 2006. At the current $300 million limit
on the Revolver, and given the outstanding balance of $143.2 million, net of $1.6 million of letters of credit, PVR
could borrow up to $155.2 million without exercising its one-time option to expand the Revolver. In order to
utilize the full extent of the $257.0 million borrowing capacity, PVR would need to exercise its one-time option
1o expand the Revolver by $150 million. The Revolver prohibits PVR from making distributions to its partners if
any potential default or event of default, as defined in the Revolver, occurs or would result from the distribution.
In addition, the Revolver contains various covenants that limit, among other things, PVR’s ability to incur
indebtedness, grant liens, make certain loans, acquisitions and investments, make any material change to the
nature of its business, acquire another company or enter into a merger or sale of assets, including the sale or
transfer of interests in its subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2006, PYR was in compliance with all of its
covenants under the Revolver.

PVR Senior Unsecured Notes. As of December 31, 2006, PVR owed $74.8 million under the Notes. The
Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.02% and mature in March 2013, with semi-annual principal and interest
payments. The Notes are equal in right of payment with all of PVR’s other unsecured indebtedness, including the
Revolver. The Notes require PVR to obtain an annual confirmation of its credit rating, with a 1.00% increase in
the interest rate payable on the Notes in the event its credit rating falls below investment grade. In March 2006,
PVR’s investment grade credit rating was confirmed by Dominion Bond Rating Services. The Notes contain
various covenants similar to those contained in the Revolver. As of December 31, 2006, PVR was in compliance
with all of its covenants under the Notes.

PVR Interest Rate Swap. In September 2005, PVR entered into interest rate swap agreements (or the
Revolver Swaps) with notional amounts totaling $60 million to establish fixed rates on the LIBOR-based portion
of the outstanding balance of the Revolver until March 2010. PVR pays a weighted average fixed rate of 4.22%
on the notional amount plus the applicable margin, and the counterparties pay a variable rate equal to the three-
month LIBOR. Settlements on the Revolver Swaps are recorded as interest expense. The Revolver Swaps were
designated as cash flow hedges. Accordingly, the effective portion of the change in the fair value of the swap
transactions is recorded each period in other comprehensive income. The ineffective portion of the change in fair
value, if any, is recorded to current period earnings in interest expense. After considering the applicable margin
of 0.75% in effect as of December 31, 2006, the total interest rate on the $60 million portion of Revolver
borrowings covered by the Revolver Swaps was 4.97% at December 31, 2006.

Future Capital Needs and Commitments

Part of PVR’s strategy is to make acquisitions which increase cash available for distribution to its
unitholders. Long-term cash requirements for asset acquisitions are expected to be funded by several sources,
including cash flows from operating activities, borrowings under credit facilities and the issuance of additional
equity and debt securities. PVR’s ability to make these acquisitions in the future will depend in part on the
availability of debt financing and on its ability to periodically use equity financing through the issuance of new
common units, which will depend on various factors, including prevailing market conditions, interest rates and its
financial condition and credit rating at the time.

PVR anticipates making capital expenditures, excluding acquisitions, in 2007 of approximately $3.6 million
to $4.7 million for coal services projects and other property and eguipment and approximately $47 million to
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$52 million for natural gas midstream projects. PVR intends to fund these|capital expenditures with a
combination of cash flows provided by operating activities and borrowings under the Revolver, under which
PVRlhad $155.2 million of borrowing capacity as of December 31, 2006. PVR belleves that it will continue to
have iadequate liquidity to fund future recurring operating and investing activities. lShort -term cash requirements,
such as operating expenses and quarterly distributions to PVR’s general partner and unitholders, are expected to
be funded through operating cash flows. Funding sources for future acquisitions are dependent an the size of any
such facquisitions and are expected to be provided by a combination of cash ::ﬂows provided by operating
activities and borrowings, and potentially Witl’il the proceeds trom the issuance of additional equity.
|
In the future, we may decide to facilitatel PVR acquisitions by providing additional debt or equity capital to

PVR.!

Contractual Obligations y
}rVe did not have any contractual obligaﬁons as of December 31, 2006. PVR’s contractual obligations as of
Dece;rnber 31, 2006 are summarized in the following table:

‘ Payments Due by Period
1 Less than l
I Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5Years  Thereafter
j (in thousands)
Revolving credit facility .......................... $143200 § — § — $143200 $§ —
Scni(;)r unsecured NOteS ... ... ...l e 75400 11,000 26,800 24,200 13,400
Rental commitments (1) ............... T 5208 1329 {2069 1,810 —_

Totall contractual obligations (2} .......... U $223.808 $12,329 3328,869 $169.210  $13,400
1

{1} PVR’s rental commitments primarily relate to equipment, buildings and coal rleserve based properties which
we sublease, or intend to sublease, to third parties. The obligation expires when the property has been mined
to exhaustion or the lease has been canceled. The timing of mining by third party operators is difficult to
estimate due to numerous factors. See Item 1A, “Risk Factors.” PVR beheves that the future rental
commitments cannot be estimated w1th certainty; however, based on current knowledge and historical
ltrends PVR believes that it will incur approxlmately $0.9 million in rental commitments annually until the
reserves have been exhausted.

() IThe total contractual obligations do not mclude reimbursements to Penn Virginia. Penn Virginia is entitled
to receive reimbursement of direct and indirect expenses incurred on PVR’s behalf until PVR is dissolved.

Neither we nor PVR have employment agreements with executive officers and neither of us have any other
employees. Our and PVR’s compensation obligations with respect to our and fits executive officers can be
sngm|ﬁcant]y different from one year to another and is based on variables such as PVR’s performance for the
given year. For more a more detailed discussion on our and PVR’s executive compensation, see Item 11,
“Exe:cuuve Compensation.”

Off-halance Sheet Arrangements '

At December 31, 2006, neither we nor PVR had any relationships with unconsohdated entities or financial
pannershlps such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have
been!estabhshed for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements orjother contractually narrow or
11mlted purposes. We are, therefore, not matenally exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that
could arise if we had engaged in such relationships.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth a summary of certain financial data for the periods indicated:

Selected Financial Data—Consolidated

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands except per unit data)
RV OIIIES .+ o ot v oottt e et e e e e et e e e $517.891 $446,348 $75,630
EXPENSES - .« oot ettt e et $415,468 $368,258 $35,111
Operating iNCOMIE . . ... ..ottt aa e $102,423 $ 78,090 340,519
T Ter) 117 =J AU A $ 32048 §$ 20,769 $15,289
Cash flows provided by operating activities ............................ $100,683 § 94450 §$53,352

The increase in 2006 net income compared to 2005 net income was primarily attributable to a $24.3 million
increase in operating income, a $2.8 million decrease in derivative losses in PVR’s natural gas midstream
segment and a $1.2 million gain on the sale of securities, partially offset by a $4.8 million increase in interest
expense. Operating income increased in 2006 primarily due to increased coal royalty revenues resulting from
higher commodity prices and related services income and increased gross margin from PVR’s natural gas
midstream business, which was acquired in March 2005.

The increase in 2005 net income compared to 2004 net income was primarily attributable to a $37.6 million
increase in operating income, which was partially offset by a $14.0 million unrealized loss on derivatives in
PVR’s natural gas midstream segment and a $6.7 million increase in interest expense. Operating income
increased in 2005 primarily due to increased coal royalty revenues resulting from higher commodity prices and
related services income and the contribution of PVR’s natural gas midstream business, which was acquired in
March 2005.

The assets, liabilities and earnings of PVR are fully consolidated in our financial statements, with the public

unitholders’ interest (589, after effect of incentive distribution rights, as of December 31, 2006) reflected as
minority interest in our financial statements.
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PVR Coal Segment }

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared With Year Ended Dec;ember 31, 2005

i
The following table sets forth a summary of certain financial and other data for PVR’s coal segment and the
percentage change for the periods indicated: *
\. . Year Ended December 31,
2006 1 2005 % Change
(in lhousami:s,I except as noted)
Financial Highlights
Revenues
Coal royalties ................ e $ 98,163 382,725 19%
Coalservices .. ........ .. oo iimaaaaa .. 5,864 5,230 12%
Other ... 8,954 7,800 15%
Total revenues ............ e 112,981 95,755 18%
Expenses ‘
Operating . ... o e e 8,600 5,755 49%
Taxes other than income . ....... PRI 934 1,129 (17)%
General and administrative . ... .. e 9,604 9,237 4%
Depreciation, depletion and amortization .. ........... 20,399 17,890 14%
Total expenses ............ e e 39,537 34,011 16%
Operating income . ............... T i $ 73,444 $61,744 19%
Operating Statistics :
l Royalty coal tons produced by lessces {tons in
| millions) . ... .. e 32,778 30,227 8%
J Average royalty perton($fton) ... ...l § 299 § 274 9%

iRevenues Coal royalty revenues increased to $98.2 million in 2006 from $82. 7 million in 2005, or 19%, due
toa hlgher average royalty per ton and increased production. The average royalty per ton increased to $2.99 in
2006 from $2.74 in 2005. The increase in the average royalty per ton was pnmanly due to a greater percentage of
coal bemg produced from certain price-sensitive leases and, for most of 2006, stronger market conditions for coal
resulting in higher prices. Coal production by PVR's lessees increased pnmanl)} due to production on PVR’s
Ilhncns Basin property, which PVR acquired in the third quarter of 2005, and iproduction on PVR’s Central
App?lachlan property due to the Huff Creek Acqulsmon in May 2006. I

Coal services revenues increased primarily due to increased equity earnings from PVR’s coal handling joint
venture and increased revenues from coal handling facilities that processed hlgher volumes. PVR’s newly
constructed facility on PVR’s Central Appalachian property began operations in October 2006 and contributed
$0.2 imlllmn to coal services revenues in 2006.

|

Other revenues increased primarily due to the following factors. In 2006 and 2005, PVR earned $1.7 million
and $0 8 million in revenues for the management of certain coal properties. Forfelture income increased to $1.9
mthon in 2006 from $0.8 million in 2005 due to timing of lease terms. In 2006 and 2005, PVR recognized $0.8
million and $0.4 million in railcar rental i income related to railcars it purchased in!June 2005. In 2006 and 2003,
PVRI recognized $1.9 million and $1.3 l'l‘ll"l()n of wheelage fees, primarily as a result of the Alloy Acquisition.
These increases were partially offset by a decrease from $1.4 million in 2005 o $|] .0 million in 2006 in royalty
1nc0me from oil and natural gas royalty interests acquired in the March 2005 Coal River Acquisition. Further
offsettmg the increases was $1.5 million PVR received in 2005 from the sale of a bankruptcy claim filed against
a former lessee in 2004 for lost future rents, |

|
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Expenses. Operating expenses increased to $8.6 million in 2006 from $5.8 million in 2005, or 49%, due to
production on PVR’s subleased Central Appalachian property acquired in the Huff Creek Acquisition in May
2006. This increase was partialty offset by a decrease in production from other subleased properties primanly
resulting from the movement of longwall mining operations at one of these properties. Fluctuations in production
on subleased properties have a direct impact on royalty expense. General and administrative expenses increased
due to absorbing operations related to our 2005 and 2006 acquisitions, increased professional fees and payroll
costs relating to evaluating acquisition opportunities and increased reimbursement to the general partner for
shared corporate overhead costs. Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense increased due to the increase
in production and a higher depletion rate on recently acquired reserves.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared With Year Ended December 31, 2004

The following table sets forth a summary of certain financial and other data for PVR’s coal segment and the
percentage change for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 % Change
{(in thousands, except as noted)

Financial Highlights
Revenues
Coalroyalties . ... ..o s $82,725 $69,643 19%
C0al SBIVICES . o oottt e 5,230 3,787 38%
OBET - o ot e e e 7,800 2,200 255%
Total TEVEINUES . . o\ttt it e 93,755 75,630 27%
Expenses
OPErating .. ..ottt e 5,755 7,224 20)%
Taxes other than INCOME . . ... .o\ it enae e ianaes 1,129 948 19%
General and administrative . .......c it i 9,237 8,307 11%
Depreciation. depletion and amortization . ..................... 17,890 18.632 (D)%
Tolal EXPEMSES . ..ottt eianr ettt iaaa e 34,011 35,111 (3%
Operating iNCOME . ... ... ... .. i $61,744 $40,519 52%
Operating Statistics
Royalty coal tons produced by lessees (tons in millions) .......... 30,227 31,181 3)%
Average royalty perton ($/ton) .. ... $ 274 $ 223 23%

Revenues. Coal royalty revenues increased to $82.7 million in 2005 from $69.6 million in 2004, or 19%, due
to a higher average royalty per ton despite a 3% decrease in production. The average royalty per ton increased
23% to $2.74 in 2005 from $2.23 in 2004. The increase in the average royalty per ton was primarily due to a
greater percentage of coal being produced from certain price-sensitive leases and stronger market conditions for
coal resulting in higher prices. Coal production by PVR’s lessees decreased primarily due to a loss of production
resulting from one lessee’s longwall mining operation moving off of PVR’s property and onto an adjacent third
party property in the first quarter of 2005. Production also decreased due to the inability of one lessee’s customer
to receive shipments because of an operating problem at the customer’s power generation facility. These
decreases were partially offset by production from property PVR acquired in July 2005 in the Ilinois Basin.

Coal services revenues increased 38% to $5.2 million in 2005 from $3.8 million in 2004. The increase in
coal services revenues primarily related to increased equity earnings from the coal handling joint venture in
which PVR acquired a 50% interest in July 2004. Increased revenues from two coal handling facilities that began
operating in July 2003 and February 2004 also contributed to the increase.
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{Other revenues increased 255% to $7.8 million in 2005 from $2.2 million!in 2004 primarily due to the
follolwmg factors. PVR received $1.3 million of additional wheelage fees pnmanly as a result of the Alloy
Acqtlnsmon in April 2005. PVR also recewed $1.5 million during the second quarter of 2005 from the sale of a
bankruptcy claim filed against a former lessee in 2004 for lost future rents. PVR recewed $1.4 million of royalty
mcome in 2005 from the oil and natural gas royalty interests acquired in the March 2005 Coal River Acquisition,
30.8. Imlllon in fees for the management of certain coal propemes and $0.4 million of rental income from railcars
purchased in the second quarter of 2005.

IEx‘rwtses Operating expenses decreased to $5.8 million in 2005 from $7.2 mllhon in 2004 or 20%, due to a
decrease in production from subleased properties, partially offset by new wheelage expenses incurred as a result
of the April 2005 Alloy Acquisition. Production from subleased properties decreased by 32% to 4.6 million tons
in 2005 from 6.8 million tons in 2004. General and administrative expenses increased primarily due to increased
accounlmg and tax related fees and increased payroll costs due to new personnel and wage increases. The
decréase in depreciation, depletion and amortization expense is consistent with the 'decrease in production.

:
P‘r/R Natural Gas Midstream Segment

i 3

PVR began operating in its natural gas midstream segment on March 3,{2005 with the acquisition of
Cantera s natural gas midstream business. The results of operations of the natural gas midstreain segment since
that dale are discussed below.

l
The following table sets forth a summary of certain financial and other data for PVR’s natural gas

midstream segment and the percentage change for the periods indicated:

i Year Ended December 31,
| ‘ 2006 2005(1) % Change

(in thousands)

F inaincial Highlights
Revénues . '
lRe51due 2 A S $259,764  $233,208 11%
lN:;uural gasliquids ... . ... ... .. .. ... ...l 130,675 106,453 23%
Condensate ................................................ 19 989 7,322 36%
lGat_hermg and transportation fees . ... ... ... L ol 12,287 1,674 37%
| Total natural gas midstream revenues ............. ... 00000 4q2.715 348,657 16%
Marketing revenue, net . ... ... ... 2,195 1,936 13%
! Total TEVENUES ... ...\ oot 404910 350,593 15%
Expenses . " i
Cost ofgaspurchased ......... ... .0 . ol i 33'4,594 303,912 10%
Operatmg ....................... e 11,403 9,347 22%
!Taxes otherthanincome ... ... ... ... .. iiiiiiiniiiiinn, |1,420 1,268 12%
General and administrative . ... ....... . oo iiiii i 11,023 6,982 58%
Depreciation and amortization ... ... ................. e 17,094 12,738 34%
| Total operating eXpenses . . ...........eeiiinnaamennnan... 375,534 334,247 12%
Operating iNCome .......... ..o $ 29376 $ 16,346 80%
Operlating Statistics .
Inlet volumes (MMcf) ............. ... ... .l 55,991 38,875 44%
Mldstream Processing margin (2) . ........iieeii i $ 68,121 $ 44,745 52%

0} Represents the results of operations of the natural gas midstream segment since March 3, 2005, the closing
It:late of the Cantera Acquisition.

(2) ‘Midstream processing margin consists. of total natural gas midstreamn revenues minus the cost of gas
;purchased. ;
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The financial and other data presented in the table above for 2005 include ten months of operations of
‘PVR’s midstream business. One of the primary reasons for the significant differences in PVR’s results of
operations for 2006 as compared to 2005 is that the 2006 data includes 12 full months of operations of the
midstream business.

Revenues. Revenues included residue gas sold from processing plants after NGLs were removed, NGLs sold
after being removed from inlet volumes received, condensate collected and sold, gathering and other fees
primarily from natural gas volumes connected to PVR’s gas processing plants and the purchase and resale of
natural gas not connected to its gathering systems and processing plants. The increase in natural gas midstream
revenues was primarily a result of an-additional two months of operations in 2006 and higher average NGL and
condensate prices in 2006.

Fxpenses. Operating costs and expenses primarily consisted of the cost of gas purchased and also included
operating expenses, taxes other than income, general and administrative expenses and depreciation and
amortization. Expenses generally increased due to an additional two months of activity in 2006. The following
paragraphs describe other factors contributing to the change in expenses.

Cost of gas purchased consisted of amounts payable to third-party producers for natural gas purchased under
percentage of proceeds and keep-whole contracts. The increase in the cost of gas purchased was primarily due to
overall volume of natural gas purchased in 2006. Included in cost of gas purchased for 2006 was a $4.6 million
non-cash charge to reserve for amounts related to balances assumed as part of the Cantera Acquisition. The
following table shows a summary of the effects of derivative activities on midstream processing margin:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005

(in thousands)
Midstream processing margin, asreported .. ........... .. ... .. 568,121 344,745
Derivatives losses included in midstream processing margin ... ... 1,953 {988)
Midstream processing margin before impact of derivatives .. ... ... 70,074 43,757
Cash settlements on derivatives ................... ... . ... ... {19,436) (4,752)
Midstream processing margin, adjusted for derivatives ........... 350,638  $39,005

Operating expenses increased due to rent and maintenance costs associated with additional compressors.
General and administrative expenses increased primarily due to additional personnel added to support the
business and recent acqguisitions, and increased reimbursement to PVR’s general partner for shared corporate
overhead costs from $0.8 million in 2005 to $2.4 million in 2006. Depreciation and amortization expense
increased due to depreciation on the pipeline acquired in the June 2006 Transwestern Acquisition and recent
gathering system expansions.

Other

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by $4.7 million from $14.1 million in 2005 to $18.8 million in
2006. The increase was primarily due to interest incurred on additional borrowings under the Revolver to finance
the Cantera Acquisition, the Transwestern Acquisition and coal property acquisitions in 2005 and 2006 and a
general increase in interest rates. Interest expense increased by $6.8 million from $7.3 million in 2004 to
$14.1 million in 2006. The increase was primarily due to interest incurred on additional borrowings to finance
the Cantera Acquisition and coal property acquisitions in 2005,

Derivatives. Because during the first quarter of 2006 PVR’s natural gas derivatives and a large portion of
PVR’s NGL derivatives no longer qualified for hedge accounting and to increase clarity in its consolidated
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financial statements, PVR elected to discontinue hedge accounting prospectlvely for its remaining and future
commodity derivatives begmmng May 1, 2006. Consequently, from that date forward, PVR began recognizing
mark-to-market gains and losses in eamnings currently, rather than defcmng such amounts in accumulated other
comprehensive income (partners’ capital). The net mark-to-market loss on PVR’s outstanding derivatives at
April 30, 2006, which was included in accumulated other comprehensivejincome, will be reported in future
earnings through 2008 as the original hedged transactions settle. This change in reporting will have no impact on
1PVR’s reported cash flows, although future results of operations will be affected by the potential volatility of
mark-to-market gains and losses which fluctuate with changes in NGL, in oil:and gas prices.

Derivative losses were $11.3 million for 2006 and included a net $I 1.2 million loss for settlements and
mark-to-market adjustments and a $0.1 million unrealized loss for changes in hedge effectiveness. Unrealized
‘loss due to changes in fair market value was associated with PVR’s derivative contracts that it no longer
accounted for using hedge accounting and represented changes in the fair value of PVR’s open contracts during
the period. The unrealized loss for changes in hedge effectiveness was assoc:ated with hedging contracts that
PVR accounted for using hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133. Denvatlve losses for 2005 included a $13.9
million unrealized loss representing the change in market value of denvatlve agreements between the time PVR
entered into the agreements in January 2005 and the time the denvanve agreements qualified for hedge
accounting after closing the acquisition of the natural gas midstream business{in March 2005.

Environmental Matters |

The operations of PVR’s coal lessees and its natural gas midstream segment are subject to environmental
tlaws and regulations adopted by various governmental authorities in the jurisdictions in which these operations
are conducted. The terms of PVR’s coal property leases impose liability for all environmental and reclamation
liabilities arising under those laws and regulations on the relevant lf::,seesI The lessees are bonded and have
indemnified PVR against any and all future environmental liabilities. PVR regularly visits coal properties to
monitor lessee compliance with environmental laws and regulations and to review mining activities. PVR’s
imanagement believes that the operations of its coal lessees and its natural gas midstream segment comply with
existing regulations and does not expect any material impact on its financial condition or results of operations.

|

| As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, PVR’s environmental liabilities inclluded $1.6 million and $2.5 million,
Iwhich represents its best estimate of the liabilities as of those dates related to its coal and natural gas midstream
lbusmesses PVR has reclamation bonding requirements with respect to cenam unleased and inactive properties.
|G1ven the uncertainty of when the reclamation area will meet regulatory standards a change in this estimate
could occur in the future. For a summary of the environmental laws and regulations applicable to PVR’s
!operauons see Item 1, “Business—Government Regulation and Environmental Matters.”

‘Recent Accounting Pronouncements !

See Note 3 in the Notes to Consolldaled Financial Statements for a description of recent accounting
pronouncements. ;

v

Forward-Looking Statements
! Certain statements contained herein that are not descriptions of hlstorlcal facls are “forward-looking”
: statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, zlis amended, and Section 21E of the
iSecurltu:s Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Because such statements include risks, uncertainties and
conungencws actual results may differ materially from those expressed of implied by such forward-looking
statements. These risks, uncertainties and contingencies include, but are not limited to, the risks set forth in
Item 1A, “Risk Factors.” I
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Additional information concerning these and other factors can be found in our press releases and public
periodic filings with the SEC. Many of the factors that will determine our future results are beyond the ability of
management to control or predict. Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which
reflect management’s views only as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any
forward-looking statements, or to make any other forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.

Item 7A  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. The principal market
risks to which PVR is exposed are NGL, crude oil, natural gas and coal price risks and interest rate risk.

PVR is also indirectly exposed to the credit risk of its customers and lessees. If its customers or lessees
become financially insolvent, they may not be able to continue operating or meeting their payment obligations.

Price Risk Management ’

PVR’s price risk management program permits the utilization of derivative financial instruments (such as
futures, forwards, option contracts and swaps) to seek to mitigate the price risks associated with fluctuations in
natural gas, NGL and crude oil prices as they relate to PVR’s natural gas midstream business. Prior to May 1,
2006, these financial instruments were historically designated as cash flow hedges and accounted for in
accordance with SFAS No. 133, The derivative financial instruments are placed with major financial institutions
that PVR believes are of minimum credit risk. The fair value of PVR’s price risk management assets is
significanily affected by fluctuations in the prices of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil.
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For the year ended December 31, 2006, PVR reported a net $11.3 million derivative loss. The derivative
Ioss included a net $11.2 million loss for settlements and mark-to-market adjustments and a $0.1 million
unreallzed loss for changes in hedge effectiveness. Because during the first quaner of 2006 PVYR’s natural gas
derivatives and a large portion of PVR’s NGL denvauves no longer quallﬁed for hedge accounting and to
mcvease clarity in its consolidated finatcial statements, PVR' elected to discontinue hedge accounting
prorspective]y for its remaining and future commodity derivatives beginning May 1, 2006. Consequently, from
that date forward, PVR began recognizing mark-to-market gains and losses in' earnings currently, rather than
defemng such amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income (partners’ capital). The net mark-to-market
loss on PVR’s outstanding derivatives at April 30, 2006, which was included in accumulated other
comprehenswe income, will be reported in future carnings through 2008 as the original hedged transactions
settle PVR will recognize hedging losses of $4.6 miilion in 2007 and $5.5 mllllon in 2008 related to settlements
of the hedged transactions for which PVR deferred net losses in accumulaled other comprehensive income
[hrough April 30, 2006. The discontinuation of hedge accounting will have no 1mpact on PVR’s reported cash
flovvs although future results of operations will be affected by the potential V()Ildllllly of mark-to-market gains
and losses which fluctuate with changes in NGL, oil and gas prices. See the dlscussmn and tables in Note 9 in the
Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of PVR's denvauve program. The following table
lists PVR’s open mark-to-market derivative agreements and their fair values as of December 31, 2006:

' Average Weighted Estimated
! Yolume Average Fair Value
! Per Day Price (in thousands)
' f (in gallons) (per gallon)

Ethane Swaps

Flrst Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 .. ... .. ... ... ... ... 34,440 $0.5050 1,277y

First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 .......................... 34,440 $0.4700 {1,377}
! (in gallons)  (per gallon)

Propane Swaps ‘ i

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 . ......................... 26,040 $0.7550 {1,543)

First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 ... 26,040 $0.7175 {1,795)
5 {(in barrets)  (per barrel)

Crude Oil Swaps

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 D 560 $ 50.80 (2,815)

First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 .. ................ ... ... 5;60 $ 49.27 (3,446}

;
(in MMbta)  (per MMbtu)
Natural Gas Swaps "
First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 .......................... 4,000 $ 697 (1

First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quanter 2008 .............covvvnvnenen, 4,000 $ 697 1,479
December 2000 Settlements . ... oo e e e e {1,350}
Natural gas midstream segment commodity derivatives—net liability . ........ $(12,135)

Taking into account the derivative positions described above, for every] $1.00 per MMbtu decrease or
increase in natural gas prices, natural gas midstream gross processing margin and operating income would
mcrease or decrease by approximately $8.1 million. Taking into account the derivative positions described
above for every $5.00 per barrel increase or decrease in oil prices, natural gas midstream gross processing
margin and operating income would i increase or decrease by approximately $10.0 million.

Interest Rate kisk

'! As of December 31, 2006, PVR had $143.2 million of outstanding indebtedness under the Revolver, which
carnes a variable interest rate throughout its term. PVR executed interest| rate derivative transactions in
September 2005 to effectively convert the interest rate on $60 million of the amount outstanding under the
Revolver from a LIBOR-based floating rate to a weighted average fixed rale of 4.229% plus the applicable
margm The interest rate swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS No. 133. A 1%
mcrease in short-term interest rates on the floating rate debt outstanding (net of amounts fixed through hedging
transactlons) at December 31, 2006 would cost PVR approximately $0.8 million Jm additional interest expense.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Partners of Penn Virginia GP Holdings: L.P.:

|We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Penn Vlrglma GP Holdings, L.P. and
subs:dlanes {(the “Partnership”) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of
1ncome partners’ capital and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each bf the years in the three-year
penqd ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated financial statements Iare the responsibility of the
Panr}ershlp s management. Our responSIblhty is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits.

'We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Boarid (United States). Those standards requnre that we plan and perform the audltito obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial stater{lents An audit also includes
assez;,smg the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by managemem as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation; We believe that our audits prowde a reasonable basis for our
opmlon

lln our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the ﬁnanc1a1 position of Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
and |1he results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three- -year period ended
December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

‘As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Partnership

changed its method of accounting for share-based payments.
|

| KPMG LLP

Houston, Texas
Mm?h 6, 2007
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PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per unit amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

' 2006 2005 2004
Revenues . . : )
Natural gas midstrearn . ....... AP - 402,715 $348,657 $§ —
Coalroyalties .. ... .. .. o i 08,163 82,725 69,643
oAl BEIVICS . oottt e e e s 5,864 5,230 3,787
L8 17~ (PR U S 11,149 9,736 2,200
Total revenues . ... .. e 517,891 446,348 75,630
Expenses _ ' : _ _ o !
Cost of midstream gas purchased ................... ... oo 334,594 303,912 —
OPETAliNg . .o oot e 20,003 15,102 7,224
Taxes other than iNCOME . . . . . .\t ettt 2354 2,397 948
General and administrative .. ... .. it it it e 21,024 16,219 8,307
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . ..........c.ooovv i, - 37493 30,628 18,632
Total EXPENSes . .. .ot P 415468 368,258 35,111
Operatingincome ... ... e 102,423 78,090 40,519
Other income (expense) - '
Interest eXpense .. ... ... e (18,821) (14,057  (7,267)
171 7=1 o RO 2,359 1,149 1,063
DETiVALIVES o ot v vt et s se et et te ettt ittt (11,260 (14,024) —_
Income from operations before minority . .......... ... ... o Lol 74,701 51,158 34,315
MINOHLY IDIEIESL L. .ottt e e e et e it a e iea e a ey (42,653) (30,38%) (19,026)
Nt ICOIMIE . . ..t e et e e e e $ 32,048 $ 20,769 $ 15,289
Basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit .................... $ 098 $ 065 $§ 048
Weighted average number of units outstanding, basic and diluted: .......... 32,700 32,125 32,125

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

|
! . CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

; (in thousands)

[ . December 31,
! 2006 2005
Assets I '
Current assets .
Cash and cash equivalents ......... e [ $ 13,687 $ 23,150
Accounts receivable ... ........... PSP U 66,987 76,408
Derivative assets . ....... ... ... e 449 10,235
Other current assets . ............. A N 2,587 3,145
Total current assets .......... L SN Lo 83,710 112,938
Property, plantand equipment . . .. ... . e e Lo 665,135 535,040
I’ Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization ................ Lo (108,622) (76,258)
i Net property, plant and equlpment ........................ ' ....... 556,513 458,782
EQUILY INVESITIENtS .« - .o Lo 25355 26,672
Gloodwﬂl .......................... e R < 7,718 7.718
TRANEIDIES, NEL . . . ..\ o o et 33,045 38051
DEriVAVE ASSETS .. .. veveeves et et 2,455 8536
OLher]ong—lermassets................i......‘......................! ........ 7473 7.250
Totalassets................i‘ .......................... l ....... $ 716,269 $659,947
| ! ot in il
L}iabilities and Partners’ Capital '
Current liabilities i | :

! Accounts payable ............... T ST $ 51931 $ 55617
Accrued liabilities .............. e b 11,409 $ 11,325
Current portion of long-term debt .. .............covvirireennn... Lo 10,832 8,108
Deferred iNCOME . . .. . - oo oot Lo 6999 5073
Derivative Habilities . .. .. ... ..oooeeeeee s b 6,996 20,700

Total current liabilities . .. .. .. U AT 88,167 100,823
Deferred iNcome ... ........:........ PO ST 6,502 10,194
Other liabilities .. ... 3,339 4,364
Derivative liabilities ................. T A 6.618 11,246
Long-termdebt . .................... P O 207,214 246,846
Commitments and contingencies ‘ .
I\Iflinority interests of subsidiary ........ T I Y 330,148 326,310
Partners’ capital ‘
Common units (39,025 umls outstanding at December 31,2006) ...... 0 ....... 82,842 (33,645)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . ... ... ... . . ... .o d (8,651) (4,891)
Unearned compensation .. ........ B R REREEEE I — (1,300)
Total partners” capital ........ .. ... . i ! e 74,191 (39,836)
Total liabilities and partners’ capital .. .......................] SEERERRR $716269 $659,947
|

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
NetinCoOmeE ... . i i e e
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ....................
Commodity derivative contracts:
Total derivative losses (gains) ................. ... .a..
Cash settlements on derivatives . .......................
Minority interest . . ... ... ... e
Non-cashinterestexpense . .............ciueiiinnrenin,
Equity earnings, net of distributions received .................
Galnonsale of securities .. ..., ... i T

' Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accountsreceivable .. ... ... ... e
Other CUMTeNT ASSBIS .. ot vt e e e e ee e aaeeenes
Accountspayable ........ ... ... ... ... . o
Accrued liabilities . ... ... .. .. e e
Deferred INCOME . .. ... i i i e eeaaennns
Other assets and liabilities . ............ ... .. ... vu...

Net cash provided by operating activities ................

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions, net of cashacquired ....... ... .. ... ... o oL,
Additions to property, plant and equipment .. .......... ... ... ...
Other . o e

Net cash used in investing activities ....... [

Cash flows from financing activities
Distributions to minority interest holdersof PVR ... ...............
Distributions to affiliates . ........ ... .. . . oo oL
Proceeds from borrowings .. ........... .. i
Repayments of borrowings . .. ...... ... ... . ... L il
Proceeds from issuance of common units . .............. ... ...,
Paymentof offeringcosts . . ........ .. . e
Payments for debt issuance costs . .......... .. i

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .........

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ....................
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period ......................

Cash and cash equivalents—end of period . ................ .. ... . ...

Supplemental disclosure:
- Cashpaidforinterest ...... ... ... . . .o it

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of PVR units for acquisition ................ ... .......
Assumption of liabilities in acquisitions .........................

Year Ended December 31,

2006

2004

$ 32,048 $ 20,769 $ 15,289

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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37,493 18,632
13,213 _
(19,439) . —
42,653 19,026
769 1,678
1,317 561
(1,160 —
1,406 (498)
(914) (1,759)
558 (24)
(3,323) (401)
(2,333) (215)
(1,676) 2,295
| (732)
100,683 53,852
(91,259) (28,675)
(38,453) (855)
36 1,104
(129,676) (28,426)
(38,387) (21,764)
(22,426) (16,643)
85,800 28,500
(122,900) (2,500)
119,408 —
(1,590} —
(375) (1,234)
19,530 (13,641)
(9,463) 11,785
23,150 9,160
13,687 $ 23,150 $ 20,945
$ 18312 $ 12,138 $ 5472

1,060




PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSI]l)IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

, (in thousands)
|

, Vg S Accumulated

! Limited Partners Other
Common Comprehensive  Unearned Comprehensive
, Units Amount Income (Loss) Compensation Total Income (Loss)

B?lance at December 31,2003 ........ — $(335,768) § — $1(735) $(36,503) $10,180
Distributions to affiliates ............ F—  (16,643) — —_ (16,643)
PVR units held for compensation, net .. — (526) —_ {139) (665)
N?t NCOME . ... iiinnenas —_ 15,289 — | — 15,28  $15,289
B:lilance at December, 31,2004 ....... L= (37.648) — (874)  (38,522) $15,289
Capital contributions ............... = 3,222 — — 3,222
Distributions to affiliates ............ r— (22,545) — — (22,545)
PYR units held for compensation, net .. ; — 2,557 —_ . (426) 2,131
Netincome - .............cooovieee. L — 20,769 — 20,769  $20,769
Other comprehensive income . ... ..... — — — —
Other comprehensive loss ........... - — (4,891) —_ (4,891) (4,891)
Blalance at December 31,2005 ........ C— (33,645) (4,891) '(1,300) (39,836) $15,878
Adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) ........ — (1,300) — 1,300 —
Distributions to affiliates ............ . — (22,426) — — (22,426)
PVR units held for compensation, net . . — 157 _ — 157
Gain on sale of subsidiary umits .. ..... - (1,160) —_ — (1,160)
Distribution of net assets to Penn !

1 Virginia . . ...t . —  (13,368) — — (13,868)
lssuance of units to Penn Vlrglma ..... 32,125 5218 5,218
Issuance of units to the public, net of . .

1 offering and othercosts ........... y 6,900 117,818 — - — 117,818
Netincome ....................... — 32,048 — — 32,048 32,048
Oither comprehensive income .. ....... = — (3,760) | — (3,760) (3,760
B‘alance at December 31,2006 ........ 39,025 § 82,842  $(8,651) § — - $ 74,191  $28,288

'

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. (the “Partnership,” “we,” “us” or “our’) is a Delaware limited partnership
formed in June 2006 that currently owns three types of equity interests in Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.
(“PVR"). Our only cash generating assets consist of our partnership interests in PVR, Due to our control of the
general partner of PVR, the financial results of PVR are included in our consolidated financial statements.
However, PVR functions with a capital structure that is independent of ours, consisting of its own debt
instruments and publicly traded common units.

Our general partner is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Penn Virginia. Penn Virginia and its
subsidiaries also own an approximately 82% limited partner interest in us. We own 100% of Penn Virginia
Resource GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and the general partner of PVR. We completed our
initial public offering in December 2006 and used the proceeds from the offering to purchase 416,444 newly
issued common uaits and 4,012,164 newly issued Class B units from PVR. As of December 31, 2006, we owned
approximately 44% of PVR, consisting of a 2% general partner interest and an approximately 42% limited
partner interest. As part of our ownership of PVR’s general partner, we-also own the rights, referred to as
“incentive distribution rights,” to receive an increasing percentage of PVR’s quarterly distributions of available
cash from operating surplus after certain levels of cash distributions have been achieved.

2. Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.

Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. is a Delaware limited partnership formed by Penn Virginia in July
2001 primarily to engage in the business of managing coal properties in the United States. PVR completed an
initial public offering (the “PVR IPO™) in QOctober 2001. Effective with the closing of the PVR IPO, Penn
Virginia, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, received common and subordinated units of PVR and a 2%
general partnership interest in PYR. The general partner of PVR is Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, which was
a wholly owned subsidiary of Penn Virginia at the time of the PVR IPO.

PVR’s common units had preferences over PVR’s subordinated units with respect to cash distributions;
accordingly, we accounted for the sale of PYR IPO units as a sale of minority interest. At the time of the PVR
IPO, we computed a gain of $25.6 million under SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 5-H, Accounting for Sales
of Stock by a Subsidiary, which is included in minority interest. In November 2004, 25% of the subordinated
units converted to common units, and another 25% converted in November 2005, as PVR met certain
requirements to qualify for early conversion. The remaining 50% converted to common units in November 2006,
The gain of $25.6 million will be recognized in partners’ capital when PVR has no form of subordinated
securities outsianding, including the Class B units issued to us in December 2006 in connection with our initial
public offering (see Note 1).

In March 2005, PVR issued 2.5 million common units in public offering, which constitutes a sale of a
minority interest from our perspective. PVR also issued common units in connection with an acquisition in 2005
{(see Note 5). We will recognize an additional gain in partners’ capital resuiting from the March 2005 public
offering and issuance of units in the acquisition when PVR has no form of subordinated securities outstanding,
including the Class B units issued to us in December 2006 in connection with our initial public offering (see Note

1).

PVR conducts operations in two business segments: coal and natural gas midstream.
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PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Centinued)

In the coal segment, PVR does not operate any mines. Instead, PVR enters into leases with various third-
party operators which give those operators the right to mine coal reserves on PVF‘I.’s land in exchange for royalty
payments. PVR also provides fee-based infrastructure facilities to some of its Iessees and third parties to generate
coal services revenues. These facilities include coal loading facilities, preparauon plants and coal handling
facilities located at end-user industrial plants PVR also sells timber growing on it$ land.

| PVR purchased its natural gas midstream business on March 3, 2005, Lhrough the acquisition of Cantera Gas
Resources LLC (see Note 4). As a result of this acquisition, PVR owns and operates a significant set of
rrudstream assets. PVR’s midstream businéss derives revenues primarily from! gas processing contracts with
natural gas producers and from fees charged for gathering natural gas volumes and providing other related
SEI'VICCS ;

We, through our ownership of the general partner of PVR, manage the op;eralions and activities of PYR.
Most of PVR’s personnel are employees of |Perm Virginia or its affiliates. PVR’s general partner is liable for all
of PVR s debts (to the extent not paid from PVR’s assets), except for indebtedness or other obl:gauons that are
ma(i‘le specifically non-recourse to us. N

! We do not receive any management fee or other compensation for the managemem of PVR. We and our
afﬁliates are reimbursed for expenses incurred on PVR’s behalf. These expenses include the costs of employee,
ofﬁlcer and director compensation and beneﬁts properly allocable to PVR and all other gxpenses necessary or
appropnate to conduct the business of, and allocable to, PVR. PVR’s partnershlp|agreement provides that PVR’s
general partner will determine the expenses that are allocable to PVR in any reasonable manner determined by
PVR in its sole discretion. .

. |
PVR makes quarterly cash diStl’ibUtiOl!lS of its available cash, generally defined as all of PVR’s cash and
cash equivalents on hand at the end of each quarter less cash reserves established by the general partner at its sole
dlscreuon According to PVR’s partnership agreement, the general partner receives incremental incentive cash
distributions if cash distributions exceed cqx}am target thresholds as follows: ’

Unitholders Partner

f Quarterly cash distribution per unit: '

| Geners
|
|

First target—up to $0.275 perunit . .. ... ...oovvnii ot 98% 2%
Second target—above $0.275 per unit up to $0.325 per unit ........ E .. 85% 15%
Third target—above $0.325 per unit up to $0.375 perunit ..........:..  75% 25%
Theredfter—above $0.375 perunit . 5. ... ..ouiveeeraennin.... b 50% = 50%

The following table rcf[ects- the allocation of total cash distributions paid by PVR during the period
indicated (in thousands, except per unit info;rmation):

Year Ended December 31,
- . 2006 2005 2004
Limited partner units ............. U $61427  $50,018  $38,403
General partner interest (2%) ....... P T 1,254 1,021 . 788
! Incentive distribution rights ............ ... .. i e 4,273 910 —
Total cash distributions paid . ... ... AU $66,954  $51,949  $39,191
Total cash distributions paid perunit .. ....... ... ... ... ..., $1.4750  $1.2413  $1.0600




PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

On February 13, 2007, PVR paid a $0.40 per unit quarterly distribution ($1.60 per unit on an annualized
basis) to unitholders of record on February 5, 2007.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

"o

Unless otherwise indicated, for the purposes of these financial statements, the “Partnership,” “w us” or
“our” refers to Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. and subsidiaries. References to the “parent company are
intended to mean Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. individually as the parent company and not on a consolidated
basis.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the distribution of net assets from the parent
company to affiliates of Penn Virginia in December 2006 was accounted for as a reorganization of entities under
common control in a manner similar to a pooling of interests. As a result, our historical consolidated financial
information presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for periods prior to our receipt of contributions from
Penn Virginia has been presented using the consolidated financial information of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC
and subsidiaries, which was our predecessor company.

The presentation of such predecessor consolidated financial information assumes that the historical
ownership interests in PVR held by affiliates of Penn Virginia (prior to the contribution of net assets in
December 2006) were owned by the parent company. This method of presentation is substantially on the same
basis that our consolidated results of operations and financial position have been presented since the contribution
of net assets from affiliates of Penn Virginia.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the parent company, all wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the parent company and PVR, of which we indirectly owned the sole 2% general partner interest
and an approximately 42% limited partner interest as of December 31, 2006, Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC,
our wholly-owned subsidiary, serves as PVR’s general partner and controls PVR. Intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In the opinion of management, all adjustments have been
reflected that are necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Certain amounts have
been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Our ownership of PVR has historically included our ownership of limited partner interests in PVR, our
ownership of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC and our ownership of the incentive distribution rights in PVR.
Qur sole ownership of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC currently provides us with a 2% general partner interest
in PVR. Qur general partner interest gives us control of PVR because the holders of limited partner interests in
PVR: (i) do not have the substantive ability to dissolve PVR, (ii) can remove Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC as
PVR’s general partner only with a supermajority vote of the PVR limited partner interests and the PVR limited
partner interests which can be voted in such an election are restricted, and (iii) the PVR limited partners do not
possess substantive participating rights in PVR’s operations. Therefore, our consolidated financial statements
include the assets, liabilities and cash flows of Penn Virginia Rescurce GP, LLC and PVR.

Our only cash-generating assets are our ownership interest in Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, which owns
the general partner interest and incentive distribution rights in PVR, and our ownership of limited partner
interests in PVR. Therefore, our cash flows are dependent upon PVR’s ability to make cash distributions, and the
distributions we receive are subject to PVR’s cash distribution policies.

The minority interest of subsidiary on our consolidated balance sheet reflects the outside ownership interest
of PVR when taking into consideration the allocations made related 10 Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC’s
incentive distribution rights. PVR’s outside ownership interest was 56% at December 31, 2006.
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PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—-(Continued)

Us!e of Estimates

Preparatlon of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformnty with accounting principles
gcnerally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estlmates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financia] statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could!differ from those estimates.

!
We consider all highly liquid mveslments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equlvalents

Cai.sh and Cash Equivalents

Pn})perty, Plant and Equipment ‘ -

Property, plant and equipment consist of PVR’s ownership in coal fee mineral interests, PVR’s royalty
mterest in oil and natural gas wells, processing facilities, gathering systems, compressor stations and related
equlpment Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and include ex'pendltures for additions and
1mprovemems such as roads and land improvements, which increase the productive lives of existing assets.
Mamtenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Renewals and betterments, \I'Vhlch extend the useful life of
the propemes are capitalized. We compute depreciation and amortization of propeﬁly, plant and equipment using
the strzughl -line or declining balance method over the estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

‘ Usetul Life
; Gathering systems ............. AP PPIPS NP 15 years
| Compressor stations ............ A b 5-15 years
| Processingplants ........... ... ... i Lo, 15 years
| Other property and equipment ................ e L. 3-20 years

We deplete coal properties on an area-by-area basis at a rate based upon the cost of the mineral properties
and estlmated proven and probable tonnage therein. From time to time, PVR carries out core-hole drilling
acnvxpes on coal properties in order to ascertain the quality and quantity of the coal 'contained in those propetties.
These core-drilling activities are expensed as incurred. We deplete oil and gas proplenies on a unit-of-production
basis | jover the remaining life of the reserves. When we retire or sell an asset, we remove its cost and related
accumulated depreciation and amortization from the balance sheet. We record the difference between the net
book va]ue (net of any related asset retirement obhganon) and proceeds from dlsposmon as gain or loss.

I

AS.S‘:ef Retirement Obligations

ln accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 143, Accounting for Asset
Retxrement Obligations, we recognize the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation (an “ARO”) in
the penod in which it is incurred. The determination of fair value is based upon reglona] market and facility type
mfornllauon The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrymg cost of the asset. See
Note 10 “Asset Retirement Obligations.” The amount of an ARO and the costs capuahzed equal the estimated
future cost to satisfy the abandonment obligation using current prices that are escalated by an assumed inflation
factor after discounting the future cost back to the date that the abandonment obhganon was incurred using an
assumed cost of funds for us. After recordmg these amounts, the ARO is accreted to its future estimated value
using the same assumed cost of funds, and the additional capitalized costs will be derecmted over the life of the
assets Both the accretion and the depreciation are included in depreciation, depletion and amortization on our
consolidated statements of income.

7

|
|
|
|
|




PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets to be held and used whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
" value of those assets may not be recoverable. An impairment loss must be recognized when the carrying amount
- of an asset exceeds the sum of the undiscounted estimated future cash.flows. In this circumstance, we would
recognize an impairment loss equal to the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the asset.
. Fair value is estimated to be the present value of future net cash flows from proved reserves, discounted utilizing
a rate commensurate with the risk and remaining lives of the assets.

Equity Investments

We use the equity method of accounting to account for PVR's investment in a coal handling joint venture,
recording PVR’s initial investment at cost. Subsequently, the carrying amount of the investment is increased to
reflect PVR’s share of income of the investee and is reduced to reflect PVR’s share of losses of the investee or
_ distributions received from the investee as the joint venture reports them. PYR’s share of earnings or losses from
the investment is included in coal Services revenues on the consolidated statements of income. Coal services
revenues also includes amortization of the amount of PVR’s equity investment that exceeds its portion of the
underlying equity in net assets. We record amortization over the life of coal services contracts in place at the time
. of PVR’s initial investment.

Goodwill

We had approximately $7.7 million of goodwill at December 31, 2006 and 2005 based upon the purchase
price allocation for the Cantera Acquisition {as defined in Note 4). The goodwill has been allocated to our natural
~ gas midstream segment. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill is
' assessed at least annually for impairment. We tested goodwill for impairment during the fourth quarter of 2006
. and determined that no impairment charge was necessary.

Intangibles

Intangible assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 included $37.7 million for customer contracts and
relationships acquired in ‘the Cantera Acquisition (see Note 4) and the Alloy Acquisition (see ‘Note 5) and
$4.6 million for rights-of-way acquired in the Cantera Acquisition (see Note 4). Customer contracts and
relationships are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the individual contracts and
relationships, up to 15 years. Rights-of-way are amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 15 years. Total
intangible amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was, approximately
~ $5.0 million and $4.2 million as of December 31, 2006. There were no intangible assets or telated amortization in
2004. As of December 31, 2006, accumulated amortization of intangible assets was $9.2 million. The following
table summarizes PVR's estlmated aggregate amortization expense for the next five years {in thousands)

2007 ...l e e e e e e $4106

2008 e e e 3,485
2009 ... SR S 3,219
2 1 1 S D AU U 3,006
2111 .. D SO A e e 2,764
Thereafter .......... e e 16,465
TOUL - - o v et e e e e e e e e $33,045
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-—(Continued)

i
|
Debt Issuance Costs ,

Debt issuance costs relating to long-term debt have been capitalized and are|being amortized over the term
of the related debl instrument.

Long-Term Prepaid Minimums

PVR leases a portion of its reserves from third parties which require monthly or annual minimum rental
payments. The prepaid minimums are recoupable from future production and are deferred and charged to royalty
expense as the coal is subsequently produced. PVR evaluates the recoverability | lof the prepaid minimums on a
penod;c basis; consequently, any prepaid minimums that cannot be recouped are charged to royalty expense.

! |
Environmental Liabilities i
Other liabilities include accruals for environmental liabilities that PVR either assumed in connection with
certain acquisitions or recorded in operating expenses when it became probable that a liability had been incurred
and the amount of that liability could be reasonably estimated.

i

Concentration of Credit Risk

Approximately 81% of our accounts recelvable at December 31, 2006 resulted from natural gas midstream
customers and approximately 19% resulted.from accrued revenues from coal lessee production. Approximately
31% of total accounts receivable at December 31, 2006 related to twoi midstream customers. These
concentrauons may impact our overall credit risk, either positively or negauvely, in that these entities may be
smularly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. In determining whether or not to require collateral
frorln a lessee or customer, PVR analyzes the entity’s net worth, cash flows, eafmmgs and credit ratings to the
extem information is available. Recelvables are generally not collateralized. Historical credit losses incurred on

recewables have not been significant.
|

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

1
I Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
denvatwe instruments and long-term debt. The carrying values of all of these financial instruments, except fixed
rale long-term debt, approximate fair value. The fair value of fixed rate long- -term debt at December 31, 2006 and
2005 was $75.4 million and $81.2 million. ! l
| ! a
Revenues _ ;

Natural Gas Midstream Revenues. Revenues from the sale of natural gas liquids (“NGLs”) and residue gas
are recognized when PVR sells the NGLs and residue gas produced at its gas processing plants. We recognize
gathering and transportation revenues based upon actual volumes delivered. Due to the time needed to gather
mfonnatlon from various purchasers and’ measurement locations and then cillculale volumes delivered, the
collecuon of natural gas midstream revenues may take up to 30 days followmg the month of production.
Thlerefore we make accruals for revenues and accounts receivable and the related cost of gas purchased and
acclzounts payable based on estimates of nawral gas purchased and NGLs and re151due gas sold, and our financial
resuits include estimates of production and revenues for the period of actual production. We record any
dlfferences which have not historically been significant, between the actual amounts uliimately received or paid
and the original estimates in the period Lhey become finatized. I
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Coal Royalties. Coal royalty revenues are recognized on the basis of tons of coal sold by PVR’s lessees and
the corresponding revenues from those sales. Most of PVR's coal leases are based on minimum monthly or
annual payments, a minimum dollar royalty per ton and/or a percentage of the gross sales price. The remainder of
PVR’s coal royalty revenues was derived from fixed royalty rate leases, which escalate annually, with
pre-established minimum monthly payments. Coal royalty revenues are accrued on a monthly basis, based on
PVR’s best estimates of coal mined on its properties.

Coal Services. Coal services revenues are recognized when lessecs use PVR’s facilities for the processing,
loading and/or transportation of coal. Coal services revenues consist of fees collected from lessees for the use of
PVR’s loadout facility, coal preparation plants and dock loading facility. PVR also includes equity earnings in
coal services revenues. PVR recognizes its share of income or losses from its investment in a coal handling joint
venture as the joint venture reports them to PVR.,

Minimum Rentals. Most of PVR’s lessees must make minimum monthly or annual payments that are
generally recoupable over certain time periods. These minimum payments are recorded as deferred income. If the
lessee recoups a minimum payment through production, the deferred income. attributable to the minimum
payment is recognized as coal royalty revenues. If a lessee fails to meet its minimum production for certain
pre-determined time periods, the deferred income attributable to the minimum payment is recognized as
minimum rental revenues and is included in other revenues.

Hedging Activities

From time to time, PVR enters into derivative financial instruments to mitigate its exposure to NGL, crude
oil and natural gas price volatility. The derivative financial instruments, which are placed with major financial
institutions that PVR believes are minimum credit risks, take the form of swaps. All derivative financial
instruments are recognized in the financial statements at fair value in accordance with SFAS No. 133, Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. The fair values of PVR’s derivative instruments are
determined based on third party forward price quotes. All derivative transactions are subject to PVR’s risk
management policy, which has been reviewed and approved by the board of directors of PVR’s general partner.

PVR historically has entered into derivative financial instruments that would qualify for hedge accounting
under SFAS No. 133. Hedge accounting affects the timing of revenue recognition and cost of midstream gas
purchased in our consolidated statements of income, as a majority of the gain or loss from a contract qualifying
as a cash flow hedge is deferred until the hedged transaction settles. Because during the first quarter of 2006
PVR’s natural gas derivatives and a large portion of PVR’s NGL derivatives no longer qualified for hedge
accounting and to increase clarity in its consolidated financial statements, PVR elected to discontinue hedge
accounting prospectively for its remaining and future commodity derivatives beginning May 1, 2006.
Consequently, from that date forward, PVR began recognizing mark-to-market gains and losses in earnings
currently, rather than deferring such amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income (partners’ capital).
Because PVR no longer uses hedge accounting for its commeodity derivatives, we could experience significant
changes in the estimate of derivative gain or loss recognized in revenues and cost of midstream gas purchased
due to swings in the value of these contracts. These fluctuations could be significant in a volatile pricing
environment.

The net mark-to-market loss on PVR’s outstanding derivatives at April 30, 2006, which was included in
accumulated other comprehensive income, will be reported in future earnings through 2008 as the original
hedged transactions settle. This change in reporting will have no impact on PVR’s reported cash flows, although
future results of operations will be affected by the potential volatility of mark-to-market gains and losses which
fluctuate with changes in NGL, oil and gas prices.
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Income Taxes

‘We are a legal partnership and have no federal income tax liability, and the tax effect of our activities
accmes to our unitholders. Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC is a limited llablllty]company which is treated as a
partrllershlp for federal income tax purposes. Therefore, Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC is not a taxable entity
and generally incurs no federal income tax liability. PYR is a legal partnership and is also not a taxable entity and
has no federal income tax liability, The taxable income or losses of the Partnershlp and PVR are includable in the
fcderal and state income tax returns of their individual partners. Net income for financm] statement purposes may
differ significantly from taxable income repoitable to partners as a result of differences between the tax bases and
financial reporting bases of assets and liabilities.

Net Income per Limited Partner Unit

Basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit is determined by dividilng net income by the weighted
average number of outstanding common units. At December 31, 2006, there were ‘no dilutive units.

The consolidated financial information presented for periods prior to Defcember 2006 is based on the
consolidated financial information of the parent company’s predecessor, Penn Vi!rginia Resource GP, LLC. Our
earnings per unit amounts for periods prior to our initial public offering in December 2006 assume that affiliates
of Penn Virginia owned 32,125,000 units durmg those periods.

Unit-Based Compensation

Our general partner has a long-term mcentwe plan that permits the grant of awards to employees and
dll‘ectors of our general partner and employees of our general partner’s afﬁhate’s who perform services for us.
Awards under the long-term incentive plan can be in the form of common umts restricted units, unit options,
phailtom units and deferred common units.. The long-term incentive plan is adn‘nmstered by the compensation
and| benefits committee of our general pariner’s board of directors. We reimburse our general partner for
payments made pursuant to the long-term incentive plan.

The general partner of PVR has a Ioné—term incentive plan that permits th¢ grant of awards to employees
andidirectors of PVR’s general partner and employees of its affiliates who perform services for PVR. Awards
under this long-term incentive plan can be in the form of PVR common units, restricted PVR units, PVR unit
optlons phantom PVR units and deferred PVR common units. The PVR long- terﬁl incentive plan is administered
by the compensation and benefits committee of the board of directors of PVR’s gieneral partner. PVR reimburses
its general partner for payments made pursuant to the long-term incentive plan.

Al’ew Accounting Standards i )

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB") issued the final revised version
of SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, which requires companies to recogmze in the income statement the
grant- -date fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees. Effective
January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R). As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R), we reclassified
unearned compensation of $1.3 million as of January 1, 2006, to the limited parm{ars interest in partners’ capital.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP™) AUG AIR-1, Accounting for Planned
Major Maintenance Activities. FSP AUG AIR-1 prohibits companies from accruing as a liability the future costs
of penodlc major overhauls and maintenance of plant and equipment. FSP AUG AlR-1 is effective for fiscal
yea|rs beginning after December 15, 2006. 'We expect that the provisions of FSP AUG AIR-1 will not have a
maierial impact on our consclidated financial statements. !

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurelmems a standard that provides
enhanced guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 also responds to
investors’ requests for expanded information about the extent to which companies measure assets and liabilities

| 81




PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

at fair value, the information used to measure fair value, and the effect of fair value measurements on earnings.
SFAS No. 157 applies whenever other standards require (or permit) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair
value. SFAS No. 157 does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances. SFAS No. 157 establishes
a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop fair value assumptions. SFAS No. 157 is
effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2007. We have not yet determined
the impact on our financial statements of adopting SFAS No. 157 effective January 1, 2008.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“*SAB™) No. 108, Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Missiatements when Quantifving Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements. SAB No. 108
expresses the SEC staff’s views regarding the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. The SEC
staff believes registrants should quantify errors using both a balance sheet and an income statement approach and
evaluate whether either approach results in quantifying a misstatement that, when all relevant quantitative and
qualitative factors are considered, is material. The SEC staff will not object if a registrant records a one-time
cumulative effect adjustment to correct errors existing in prior years that previously had been considered
immaterial, quantitatively and qualitatively, based on appropriate use of the registrant’s approach. SAB No. 108
describes the circumstances where this would be appropriate as well as required disclosures to investors. SAB
No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending on or after November 15, 2006. We adopted SAB NO. 108 as of
December 31, 2006. Adoption of SAB No. 108 had no effect on our financial position or results of operations.

4, Acquisition of Natural Gas Midstream Business

On March 3, 2005, PVR completed its acquisition (the “Cantera Acquisition”) of Cantera Gas Resources,
LLC (“Cantera™), a midstream gas gathering and processing company with primary locations in Oklahoma and
Texas. The midstream business operates as PVR Midstream LLC, a subsidiary of Penn Virginia Operating Co.,
LLC, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of PVR. As a result of the Cantera Acquisition, PVR owns and
operates a significant set of midstream assets including gas gathering pipelines and three natural gas processing
facilities. PVR’s midstreamn business derives revenues primarily from gas processing contracts with natural gas
producers and from fees charged for gathering natural gas volumes and providing other related services. The
results of operations of PVR Midstream LLC since March 3, 2005, the closing date of the Cantera Acquisition,
are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Cash paid in connection with the Cantera Acquisition was $199.2 million, net of cash received and
including capitalized acquisition costs, which we funded with a $110 million term loan and with long-term debt
under PVR’s revolving credit facility. PVR used proceeds of $126.4 million from its sale of common units in a
subsequent public offering in March 2005 and a $2.6 million contribution from its general partner to repay the
term loan in full and to reduce outstanding indebtedness under the revolving credit facility. The total purchase
price was allocated 1o the assets purchased and the liabilities assumed in the Cantera Acquisition based upon the
fair values on the date of acquisition as follows (in thousands):

Cash consideration paid for Cantera ....... ... ... . e 5201326
Plus: ACQUISILION COSES . ..\ v ottt ettt et i e et in s et e e 3,275
Total purchase Price . ... ..o it i i e e e e e 204,601
Less: Cash acquired .. ... ... i {5,378)
Total purchase price, netof cashacquired . ........ ... .. i $199,223
Current assets ACGUITE . .. .. it e $ 43,697
Property and equipment acquired .. .. ... e s 145,448
Other assets acqUIred . .. .. ... ..t e e 645
Liabilitdes assummied . .. ..o e e e e (38,337)
Intangible assets . . .. . e i e s 40,052
GoOdWIll . . oo e e e e e 7,718
Total purchase price, net of cash acquired . ... ........ ... ... 0 i, $199,223
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The purchase price allocation includes approximately $7.7 million of goodv&%ill. The significant factors that
contributed to the recognition of goodwill include PVR’s entry into the natural gas midstream business and its
ability to acquire an established business with an assembled workforce.

Under SFAS No. 141, Business Combmanons and SFAS No. 142, Goadwrjll and Other Intangible Assets,
goodwﬂl recorded in connection with a business combination is not amortized, but rather is tested for i impairment
at leiast annually. Accordingly, the unaudited pro forma financial information présented below does not include
amortization of the goodwill recorded in the Cantera Acquisition. The purchase price allocation also includes
$40l million of intangible assets that are primarily associated with assumedI customer contracts, customer
relallonshlps and rights-of-way. These intangible assets are being amortized over periods of up to 15 years, the
penPd in which benefits are derived from-the contracts, relationships and nght§ of-way, and are reviewed for
impairment under SFAS No. 144, Accoummg Sfor the Impairment or Disposal of Long -Lived Assels.

The following unaudited pro forma ﬁnancml information reflects our consolidated results of operations as if
the Cantera Acquisition and related financings had occurred on January 1 of the Ireported period. The pro forma
mfmmauon includes adjustments primarily for depreciation of acquired property ‘and equipment, amortization of
1ntang1bles interest expense for acqulsmon debt and the change in weighted average common units resulting
from the public offering, The pro forma ﬁnancm] information is not necessarily indicative of the results of
operatmns as it would have been had these transactlons been effected on the assumed date.

! Year Ended December 31,
{ ‘ i 2005 2004
i ] (unaudited)
- A ) (in thousands, except share data)
ReVenUES . oottt it e $518,790 - $361,162
UINBLINCOME L ..ttt e e e e e e as $ 21,717 $ 25911

5. Other Acquisitions ;
In the following paragraphs, all references (o coal, 0il and natural gas reserves acquired are unaudited.
In December 2006, PVR acquired owﬁérship and rights to approximatel'y 22 million tons of coal reserves.

The reserves are located in Henderson County, Kentucky. The purchase price was $9.3 million and was funded
with cash.

In June 2006, PVR acquired approximaiely 115 miles of gathering pipelines and related compression-facilities -
in Tcxas and Oklahoma (the “Transwestern Acquisition”). These assets are contiguous to PVR’s Beaver/Perryton
Sysilem PVR paid $14.7 million in cash for the acquisition. Subsequently, PVR borrowed $14.7 million under its
revolving credit facility to replenish the cash »used in the Transwestern Acquisition.

i In May 2006, PVR acquired the lease rights to approximately 69 million tons of coal reserves located on
apprommately 20,000 acres in Bocne, Logan and Wyoming Counties, West Virginia (the “Huff Creek
Acqmsmon”) The purchase pr1ce was $65. 0 million and was funded with long- -térm debt under PVR’s revolving
credit facility.

In July 2005, PVR acquired fee ownership of approximately 94 million tonL of coal reserves in the western
Kepmcky portion of the Illinois Basin for $62.4 million in cash (the “Green River Acquisition™) and the
assumption $3.3 million of deferred income. This coal reserve acquisition is PVR s first in the Iilinois Basin and
was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility. Currenlly, approximately 43 million tons
of these coal reserves are leased to afﬁhates of Peabody Energy Corporation (NY.SE: BTU).
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In July 2005, PVR acquired a combination of fee ownership and lease rights to approximately
16 million tons of coal reserves for $14.5 million (the “Wayland Acquisition”). The reserves are located in the
-eastern Kentucky portion of Central Appalachia. The Wayland Acquisition was funded with $4 million of cash
and PVR’s issuance to the seller of approximately 209,000 common units.

In April 2005, PVR acquired fee ownership of approximately 16 million tons of coal reserves for $15.0 million
in cash (the “Alloy Acquisition”). The reserves, located on approximately 8,300 acres in the Central Appalachia
region of West Virginia, will be produced from deep and surface mines. Production started in late 2005. Revenues
were eamned initially from transportation-related fees on coal mined from an adjacent property, followed by royalty
revenues as the mines on PVR’s property commenced production. The seller remained on the property as the lessee
and operator. The Alloy Acquisition was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility.

In March 2005, PVR acquired lease rights to approximately 36 million tons of undeveloped coal reserves and
royalty interests in 73 producing oil and natural gas wells for $9.3 million in cash (the “Coal River Acquisition™).
The coal reserves are located in the Central Appalachia region of southern West Virginia. The oil and gas wells are
located in eastern Kentucky and southwestern Virginia. The Coal River Acquisition was funded with long-term debt
under PVR’s revolving credit facility. The coal reserves are predominantly low sulfur and high BTU content, and
development will occur in conjunction with PYR’s adjacent reserves and a related loadout facility that was placed
into service in 2004. The oil and gas property contained approximately 2.8 billion cubic feet equivalent of net
proved oil and gas reserves.

In July 2004, PVR acquired from affiliates of Massey Energy Company a 50% interest in a joint venture
formed 10 own and operate end-user coal handling facilities. The purchase price was $28.4 million and was
funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility. The joint venture owns coal handling facilities
which unload coal shipments and store and transfer coal for three industrial coal consumers in the chemical,
paper and lime production industries located in Tennessee, Virginia and Kentucky. A combination of fixed
monthly fees and per ton throughput fees is paid by those consumers under long-term leases expiring between
2007 and 2019.

The factors we used to determine the fair market value of acquisitions include, but are not limited to,
discounted future net cash flows on a risked-adjusted basis, geographic location, quality of resources, potential
marketability and financial condition of the lessees.

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment includes:

December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
Coal Properties .. ...t ov it e i e $414935  $340,439
COMPIEsSOr SLALIONMS .+ v v v v vttt et a ettt 49,071 45,405
Gathering SYSIEINS . ..o\ttt i e e e 121,467 91,216
Coal services eqUIPMENL . .. ... ..ttt i e 38,755 23,351
Processing PIanS . . ... oo i e 19,273 14,533
Land . ..o e 11,291 10,675
Oil and gas PrOPerties - . . ..ottt e i e e e e 5,395 5,324
Other property and eqUIPIMENL ... ..o ottt e e 4,948 4,097
665,135 535,040
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization ................. ... ..., (108.622) (76,258}
Nel property and equiplIent .. ... ... e $ 556,513  $458,782
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7. Equity Investments .

As described in Note 5, “Other Acquisitions,” PVR acquired a 50% interest in Coal Handling
Solutlons LLC, a joint venture formed to own and operale end-user coal handlmg facilities. We account for the
1nvestment under the equity method of accounting. In 2004, the original cash mvestment of $28.4 million was
capllahzed At December 31, 2006 and 2005, our equity investment totaled $25 4 million and $26.7 million,
whlch exceeded our portion of the underlymg equity in net assets by $8.7 million and $10.7 million. The
dlffercnce is being amortized to equity earnings over the life of coal services contracts in place at the time of the
acqulsmon In accordance with the equity method, we recognized equity earmngs of $1.3 million in 2006, $1.1
mJllmn in 2005 and $0.4 million in 2004, with a corresponding increase in the| investment. The joint venture
generally pays to PVR quarterly distributions of PVR’s portion of the joint venture’s cash flows. PVR received
cash distributions from the joint venture of $2.7 million in 2006, $2.3 million in 2005 and $1.0 million in 2004.
Equlity earnings are included in coal services revenues on the consolidated stateme:ms of income.
{ ) I
8. Ailowance for Prepaid Minimums ~ }

‘PVR establishes provisions for losses on long-term prepaid minimutns if P?JR determines that it will not
recoup all or part of the outstanding balance. Collectibility is reviewed periodically and an allowance is
established or adjusted, as necessary, using the specific identification method. The allowance is netted against
long-term prepaid minimums on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The following table presents the
acti\.;'ity of PVR’s allowance for prepaid minimums for each of the last three years:I

1 : Year Ended December 31,

! ! 2006 2005 2004

| 1 } (in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period . . . . ... e e $1,692  $1,514 $1,334
Chargestoexpense . ............... P 60 178 180
Forfeiture of prepaid minimum . .. ... e e (15) —_ —_
Balanceatendof period ... ... .. ... ... i e $1,737  $1,692 $1,514

9. Derivative Instruments

. Discontinuation of Hedge Accounting

Because during the first quarter of 2006 PVR’s natural gas derivatives and a large portion of PVR’s NGL
derlvatlves no longer qualified for hedge -accounting and to increase clarity; in its consolidated financial
statements (see below for further dlscusuons) PVR elected to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively for its
remammg commodity derivatives beginning May 1, 2006. Consequently, from that date forward, PVR began
recogmzmg mark-to-market gains and losses in earnings currently, rather tha'm deferring such amounts in
accumulated other comprehensive income (partners’ capital). The net mark- to-market loss on PVR’s outstanding
derlvauves at April 30, 2006, which was included in accumulated other comprehenswe income, will be reported
in future earnings through 2008 as the original hedged transactions settle. This change in reporting will have no
1mpe|1ct on PVR’s reported cash flows, although future results of operations will be affected by the potential
volatility of mark-to-market gains and losses which fluctuate with changes in NGI_[, oil and gas prices.

I
Natural Gas Midstream Segment Commodi!v Derivatives

PVR utilizes swap derivative contracts to hedge against the variability m cash flows associated with
forecasted natural gas midstream revenues and cost of gas purchased. While th? use of derivative instruments
hmlls the risk of adverse price movements, their use also may limit future revenues or cost savings from
favorable price movements.
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With respect to a swap contract, the counterparty is required to make a payment to PVR if the settlement
price for any settlement period is less than the swap price for such contract, and PVR is required to make a
payment to the counterparty if the settlement price for any settlement period is greater than the swap price for
such contract.

The fair values of PVR’s derivative agreements are determined based on forward price quotes and
regression analysis for the respective commodities as of December 31, 2006. The following table sets forth
PVR’s positions as of December 31, 2006 for commodities related to natural gas midstream revenues (ethane,
propane and crude oil) and cost of midstream gas purchased (natural gas): '

Average Weighted Estimated

Volume Average Fair Value
Per Day Price (in thousands)
(in gallons} (per gallon}
Ethane Swaps
First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 .. ..... ... ... ... 34440 $ 0.5050 (1,277
First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 ............... ... ... ..00 34440 $ 0.4700 (1,377

{in gallons)  (per gallon}
Propane Swaps

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 ... .. ... ... ... o oo 26,040 § 0.7550 (1,543)

First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 ........ ... ... .. ... 0 26,040 $ 0.7175 (1,795)
(in barrels)  (per barrel}

Crude Oil Swaps

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 ........ ... innnn 560 $ 50.80 (2.815)

First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 ............ ... ... ... . . ... 560 3 4927 (3,446)

(in MMbtu) (per MMbtu)
Natural Gas Swaps

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 ........ ... ... ... .. .. .. ..... 4,000 $ 6.97 {an
First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 ................ ... ... .. ..... 4,000 $ 6.97 1.479
December 2006 Settlements . ... ... . .. . e (1.350)
Natural gas midstream segment commodity derivatives—net liability ............ $(12,135)

Based upon our assessment of derivative agreements at December 31, 2006, we reported (i) a net derivative
liability related to the natural gas midstream segment of $12.1 million. (ii) a loss in accumulated other
comprehensive income of $10.1 million and (iii} a net loss on derivatives for hedge ineffectiveness of $0.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006 related to derivatives in the natural gas midstream segment. The following
table summarizes the effects of commodity derivative activities on our consolidated statements of income (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Income statement caption:

MIdSIreamM TeVENUE . ...\ttt i r e nsn o iaanancnnn $(10,331) % (3.871) $—

Costofgaspurchased ....... ... .o il 8,378 4,859 —

DOTIVALIVES .« vttt e et it ettt e e e (11,260) 14,029y —
Increase (decrease) INNELINCOME .. . vttt iiie e eiieer e e $(13,213)  $(13.036) $—
Realized and unrealized derivative impact: ]

Cash paid for derivative settlements . ................... ... .00 $(19,436) $ (4,752) $—

Unrealized derivative gain (Joss) ........... ... .. oo 6,223 (8,284) —
Increase (decrease) INNELINCOME .. ..o\ vr iy ie i i i e iee e $(13,213)  $(13,036) $—




PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS}—(Continued)

At the time PVR entered into its natural gas derivatives and certain NGL derivatives, physical purchase
pnces of natural gas correlated well with NYMEX natural gas prices and physical sales prices of NGLs
corrélated well with NGL index prices. However, in the second half of 2005,| basis differentials for certain
dem‘:atwe agreements widened as NYMEX natural gas prices and NGL index pnces reached historically high
Ievels In the first quarter of 2006, PVR’ s correlation assessment indicated that its NYMEX natural gas
denvatwes and certain NGL derivatives could no longer be considered * hlgh]y effective” hedges under the
parameters of the accounting rules. Consequemly, we discontinued hedge accounting effective January 1, 2006
for PVR s natural gas derivatives and cemun NGL derivatives that were no Ionger considered highly effective.
As dlscussed above, beginning May 1, 2006 PVR elected to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively for
PVR’ s remaining and future commodity derivatives. PVR will recognize hedgmg losses of $4.6 million in 2007
and |$5 .5 million in 2008 related to settlements of the hedged transactions for which PVR deferred net losses in
acculmulated other comprehensive income [hgough April 30, 2006.

I

Interest Rate Swaps : _ |

In September 2005, PVR entered into interest rate swap agreements (the “Revolver Swaps™) to establish
fixed rates on $60 million of the portion of the outstanding balance on its revolvm,'g credit facility that is based on
the London Inter Bank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”) until March 2010. PVR pays a weighted average fixed rate of
4. 22|% on the notional amount plus the applicable margin, and the counterparties 1pay a variable rate equal to the
three month LIBOR. Settlements on the Revolver Swaps are recorded as interestjexpense. The Revolver Swaps
were designated as cash flow hedges. Accordingly, the effective portion of the change in the fair value of the
swap transactions is recorded each period in other comprehensive income. The meffectlve pertton of the change
in fa1r value, if any, is recorded to current perlod earnings as interest expense, we reported (i) a derivative asset
of approx1mately $1.4 million at December 31, 2006 and (ii) a gain in accumulated other comprehensive income
of $1.4 million at December 31, 2006 related to the Revolver Swaps. in conneclio:n with periodic settlements, we
reco‘gnized $0.5 million in net hedging gains in interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006, Based
upon future interest rate curves at December 31, 2006, PVR expects to reallze'$04 million of hedging gains
w1th1n the next 12 months. The amounts thatPVR ultimately realizes will vary due to changes in the fair value of
open derivative agreements prior to settlement.

I
10. Asset Retirement Obligations E

The table below reconciles the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of our asset retirement
obligations, which are included in other liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets:

| |

1 Year Ended

: I December 31,

) 2006 2005

. ) ‘ {in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period .......... ... ... . ... ool ol $1458 % 723
Adoption of FIN 47 .. .ot b — 635
Liabilities incurred ......................... SRS SO 301 —
Accretionexpense . ................ SRR SR 122 100
iBalanceatendofperiod............‘..............................i.... 51,881 51,458

|
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11. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following:

December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)

Revolving credit facility—variable rate of 6.1 percent at

December 31,2006 . ... ... e $143,200  $172,000
Seniorunsecured notes (1) ..o i e e e 74,846 82,954
218,046 254,954

Less: Current maturiti€s .. ... ... .. .ottt it annn (10,832) (8,108)
Total long-term debt .. ... ... i e $207,214  $246,846

(1) Includes negative fair value adjustments of $0.6 million and $0.7 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005
related to a former interest rate swap agreement that was designated as a fair value hedge. The swap
agreement was settled in June 2005.

PVR Revolving Credit Facility

Concurrent with the closing of the Cantera Acquisition in March 2005, Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC,
the parent of PVR Midstream LLC and a subsidiary of PVR, entered into a new unsecured $260 million, five-
year credit agreement with a syndicate of financial institutions led by PNC Bank, National Association (“PNC”).
The new agreement consisted of a $150 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”) that matures in March
2010 and a $110 million term loan. During 2005, a portion of the Revolver and the term loan were used to fund
the Cantera Acquisition and to repay borrowings under PVR’s previous credit facility. Proceeds of $126.4
million received by PVR from a subsequent public offering of 2.5 million PVR common units in March 2005 and
a $2.6 million contribution from its general partner were used to repay the $110 million term loan and a portion
of the amount outstanding under the Revolver. The term loan cannot be re-borrowed. The Revolver is available
for general purposes, including working capital, capital expenditures and acquisitions, and includes a $10 million
sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit. PVR had outstanding letters of credit of $1.6 million as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005. In 2006 and 2005, PVR incurred commitment fees of $0.4 million each year on the
unused portion of the Revolver.

In July 2005, PVR amended the credit agreement to increase the size of the comimitment under the Revolver
from 3150 million to $300 million and to increase its one-time option (upon receipt by the credit facility’s
administrative agent of commitments from one or more lenders) to expand the Revolver from $100 million to
$150 million. The amendment also updated certain debt covenant definitions. The interest rate under the credit
agreement remained unchanged and fluctuates based on PVR’s ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA. In
December 2006, PVR further amended the credit agreement to achieve a more favorable interest rate and to
extend the maturity date to December 201 1. Interest is payable at a base rate plus an applicable margin of up to
0.75% if PVR selects the base rate borrowing option under the credit agreement, or at a rate derived from LIBOR
plus an applicable margin ranging from 0.75%o0 1.75% if PVR selects the LIBOR-based borrowing option, The
other terms of the credit agreement remained unchanged.

The financial covenants under the Revolver require PVR to maintain specified levels of debt to consolidated
EBITDA and consolidated EBITDA to interest. The financial covenants restricted PVR’s borrowing capacity
under the Revolver to approximately $257.0 million as of December 31, 2006. At the current $300 million limit
on the Revolver, and given the outstanding balance of $143.2 million, net of $1.6 million of letters of credit, PVR
could borrow up to $155.2 million without exercising its one-time option to expand the Revolver. In order to
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utlhze the full extent of the $257.0 million borrowmg capacity, PVR would need to exercise its one-time option
to expand the Revolver by $150 million. The Revolver prohibits PVR from makmg distributions to its partners if
any- potentlal default or event of default as deﬁned in the Revolver, occurs or would result from the distribution.
In addmon the Revolver contains varions covenants that limit, among other thmgs PVR’s ability to incur
1ndebtedness grant liens, make certain loans acquisitions and investments, make any material change to the
nature of its business, acquire another company or enter into a merger or sale of assets, including the sale or
transfer of interests in its subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2006, PVR was in compliance with all of its
covenants under the Revolver. !‘

In connection with the Cantera Acquisi{ion, during the fourth.quarter of 2004, PVR entered info a bridge
loan commitment with two financial institutions. The bridge loan was terminated late in the fourth quarter of
2004; and PVR replaced it with the expanded credit facility as described above. In the fourth quarter of 2004,
PVR|paid loan issue costs of appr0x1mately|$1 2 m1!hon related to the bridge loan commitment, which were
recorded as interest expense in 2004. |

PVR Senior Unsecured Notes . I

!ln March 2003, PVR closed a private plalcement of $90 million of senior unsecl:ured notes (the “Notes™). The
Notes initially bore interest at a fixed rate of 5.77% and mature over a ten-year penod ending in March 2013,
with | semi-annual principal and interest payments The Notes contain vanous covenants similar to those
contalmed in the Revolver. The Notes have an equal priocrity of payment as all Other unsecured indebtedness,
mcluidmg the Revolver. As of December 31, |2006 PVR was in compliance with|all of its covenants under the
Notes. :

! .

In conjunction with the closing of the Cantera Acquisition, PVR amended the Notes to allow it to enter the
natural gas midstream business and to mcrease certain covenant coverage ratios, mcludmg the debt to EBITDA
test. In exchange for this amendment, PYR agreed to a 0.25% increase in the ﬁx’ed interest rate on the Notes,
fr0m|5 T7% to 6.02%. The amendment to the Notes also requires that PVR obtaunI an annual confirmation of its
credrt rating, with a 1.00% increase in the mterest rate payable on the Notes in the event its credit rating falls
below investment grade. In March 2006, P\IIR‘S investment grade credit rating was confirmed as investment
grade by Dominion Bond Rating Services. |
. I

Debt Maturities o ‘ |

{\ggregate maturities of the principal amounts of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as
follows (in thousands):

i
2007 oo " ................... " $ 11,000

2008 ..o P AP 12,700
2009 ... e e A - 14,100
2010 .. A R P AR, 13,400
2011 oo Y 154,000
Thereafter .................... N S 13,400
Total principal ..-...... T T . e 218,600
Less: Terminated interest rate swap .................................. . (554)
Total debt, mcludmg current matuntres ........ e [ AP '$218,046
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12. Partners’ Capital and Distributions

As of December 31, 2006, partners’ capital consisted of 39.0 million common units. As of December 31,
2006, affiliates of Penn Virginia, in the aggregate, owned an 82% interest in us, consisting of 32.1 million
common units and a non-economic general partner interest.

Net income per limited partner unit is based on the weighted average number of common units outstanding
during the period. Net income per limited partner unit is computed by dividing the limited partners’ interest in
net income by the weighted average number of limited partner units outstanding.

We distribute 100% of Available Cash (as defined in our partnership agreement) within 55 days after the
end of each quarter to unitholders of record. Available Cash is generally defined as all of our cash and cash
equivalents on hand at the end of each quarter less reserves established by our general partner for future
requirements. Our general partner has the discretion to establish cash reserves that are necessary or appropriate to
(i) provide for the proper conduct of our business; (ii) comply with applicable law, any of our debt instruments or
other agreements; (iii) provide funds for distributions to unitholders and our general partner for any one or more
of the next four quarters; or (iv) permit Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC to make capital contributions to PVR to
maintain its 2% general partner interest upon the issuance of additional partnership securities by PVR.

Limited Call Right

If at any time our general partner and its affiliates own more than 90% of the outstanding common units, our
general partner has the right, but not the obligation, to purchase all of the remaining common units at a price not
less than the then current market price of the common units.

13. Related Party Transactions
General and Administrative

Penn Virginia charges us for certain corporate administrative expenses which are allocable to us and our
subsidiaries. When allocating general corporate expenses, consideration is given to property and equipment,
payroll and general corporate overhead. Any direct costs are paid by us. Total corporate administrative expenses
charged to us totaled $4.5 million, $2.6 million and $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004. These costs are reflected in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income. At least annually, management performs an analysis of general corporate expenses based
on time allocations of shared employees and cther pertinent factors. Based on this analysis, management believes
the allocation methodologies used are reasonable. '

Accounts Payable-Affiliate

Amounts payable to (due from) related parties totaled $1.9 million and $(1.7) million as of December 31,
2006 and 2005. This balance consists primarily of amounts due to (from) our general partner for general and
administrative expenses incurred on our behalf and is included in accounts payable (or accounts receivable} on
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Marketing Revenues

Connect Energy Services, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of PVR, earned $0.4 million in fees for
marketing a portion of Penn Virginia OQil & Gas, L.P.’s natural gas production during 2006. The marketing
agreement was effective September 1, 2006. Penn Virginia Oil & Gas, L.P. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Penn
Virginia. Marketing revenues are included in other revenues on our consolidated statements of income.
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i4 Long-Term Incentive Plans |

Long -Term Incentive Plan

Our general partner has a long-term mcentwe plan that permits the grant of awards covering an aggregate of
300, 000 common units to employees and directors of our general partner and employees of our general partner’s
afﬁhz‘t[es who perform services for us. Awards under the long-term incentive plan can be in the form of common
umlsi restricted units, unit options, phantom umts and deferred common units. Tl}e long-term incentive plan is
admmlstered by the compensation and benefits committee of our general partner’s board of directors. We
reimburse our general partner for payments made pursuant to the long-term incentive plan. We recognized no
compensation expense related to the long-term incentive plan for the period from our inception on December 5,
2006 ithrough December 31, 2006. i
PVR Long Term Incentive Plan -

PVR’s general partner has a long-term mcennve plan thal permits the grant of awards covering an aggregate
of 600 000 PVR common units to employees and directors of PVR’s general partner and employees of its
affiliates who perform services for PVR. Awards under the PVR long-term mcentwe plan can be in the form of
PVR !common units, restricted PVR units, PVR unit options, phantom PVR umts and deferred PVR common
units. The PVR long-term incentive plan is administered by the compensation and benefits commitiee of the
board of directors of PVR’s general partner. PVR reimburses its general partner for payments made pursuant to
the PVR long-term incentive plan. Compensation expense related to the PVR long-term incentive plan totaled
$1.9 million, $1.4 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2006,:2005 and 2004.

PVR Common Units. PYR’s general partner granted 1,795 PVR common umté at a weighted average grant-
date falr value of $26.01 per unit to non-employee directors in 2006. PVR’s general partner granted 876 PVR -
common units at a weighted average grant- date fair value of $25.36 per unit to nofl-employee directors in 2005.
PVR’is general partner granted 9,922 PVR eommon units at a weighted average grant-date fair value of $17.42
pet U?II to non-employee directors in 2004, '

{“VR Restricted Units. PVR restricted units vest upon terms established by the compensation and benefits
commmee of PVR’s general partner. In addition, all PVR restricted units will vesl upon a change of control of
either PVR’s general partner or Penn Vlrgmla If a grantee’s employment with, or membership on the board of
d1rect0rs of, PVR’s general partner terminates’ for any reason, the grantee’s unvestcd PVR restricted units will be
dutomallcally forfeited unless, and to the extent that, the compensation and benefits committee provides
otherw:se Distributions payable with respect to PVR restricted units may, in the compensation and benefits
commlttee s discretion, be paid directly to the grantee or held by PVR’s general f)artner and made subject to a
risk of forfeiture during the applicable restriction period. PVR restricted units granted in 2006 and 2005 vest over
a lhre’e year period, with one-third vesting in each year. PVR restricted units granted in 2004 vested on the first
anmvlersary of the date of grant.

A summary of the status of nonvested PVR restricted units as of December 31, 2006, and changes during
the year then ended, is presented below:

Weighted
Nonvested Average

Restricted Grant-Date

{ i Units Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1, 2006 ......... . ‘ ........ e 113,624 $18.81
Granted ... P 82,320 28.83
Vested ..., PP S e (81,116} 26.64
lforfeil ..... e PR . e e (614) 27.99
Nonvested at December 31,2006 . ......... D 114,214 $20.42

1 .
| !
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At December 31, 2006, PVR had $2.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
restricted units. PVR expects to reimburse its general partner for that cost over a weighted-average period of 0.9
years. The total grant-date fair value of PVR restricted units vested was $2.2 million in 2006, $0.4 million in
2005 and $0.4 million in 2004. '

Deferred PVR Common Units. A portion of the compensation to the non-employee directors of the general
partner of PVR is paid in deferred PVR common units. Each deferred PYR common unit represents oite PVR
common unit, which vests immediately upon issuance and is available to the holder upon termination or
retirement from the board of directors of PVR’s general partner. PVR common units delivered in connection with
deferred PVR common units may be PVR common units acquired by PVR’s general pannef in the open market,
PVR common units already owned by PVR’s general partner, PVR common units acquired by PVR’s general
partner directly from PVR or any other person, or any combination of the foregoing. PVR's general partner is
entitled to reimbursement by PVR for the cost incurred in acquiring PVR common units, Deferred PVR common
units awarded to directors receive all cash or other distributions paid by PVR on account of its common units.

The following table summarizes activity for the most recent fiscal year with respect to deferred PVR
common units awarded: '

Deferred
Common
Units
Outstanding at January 1,2006 .. ................. e 21,710
Granted ... ... i s e e 23,636
Converted to COMMON UNILS . ...ttty e (6,439)
Qutstanding at December 31, 2000 .. ... ... . e 38,907

The aggregate intrinsic value of deferred PVR common units converted to PVR common units in 2006 was
- $0.2 million. No deferred PVR common units converted to PVR common units in 2005 or 2004.

15. Commitments and Contingencies
Rental Commitments

Operating lease rental expense in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1.9 million, $0.9
million and $0.2 million. Minimum rental commitments for the next five years under all non-cancelable
operating leases in effect at December 31, 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

7L 1 $1,329
L 1,126
2000 L e e e 943
.03 L 907
L) 903
Total Minimum PAYIENLS . . ... oottt i i e i e $5.,208

Our rental commitments primarily relate to equipment, buildings and coal reserve-based properties which
PVR subleases, or intends to sublease, to third parties. The obligation expires when the property has been mined
to exhaustion or the lease has been canceled. The timing of mining by third party operators is difficult to estimate
due to numerous factors. We believe that the future rental commilments cannot be estimated with certainty;
however, based on current knowledge and historical trends, PVR believes that it will incur approximately $0.9
million in rental commitments annually vntil the reserves have been exhausted.
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Legal :
)
{We are involved, from time to time, in various legal proceedings arising in Lhe ordinary course of business.

Whlle the ultimate results of these proceedings cannot be predicted with ceﬂamty, management believes these
claims will not have a material effect on our financial position, liquidity or operations.

Environmental Compliance

The operations of PVR’s coal lessees and PVR’s natural gas mldstream segment are subject to
environmental laws and regulations adopted by various governmental authonues in the jurisdictions in which
these! operations are conducted. The terms of PVR’s coal property leases impose illabnllty for all environmental
and reclamation liabilities arising under those laws and regulations on the relelvant lessees. The lessees are
bonded and have indemnified PVR against any and all future environmental llabllmes PVR regularly visits coal
properties to monitor lessee compliance with environmental laws and regulations and to review mining activities.
Manafgemcnt believes that the operations of PVR’s coal lessees and PVR’s na'tural gas midstream segment
comply with existing regulations and does not expect any material impact on our financial condition or results of
operauons

i

}'\s of December 31, 2006 and 2005, environmental liabilities included $l|'6 million and $2.5 million,
representing our best estimate of our liabilities as of those dates related to PVR’s coal and natural gas midstream
businesses. PVR has reclamation bonding requirements with respect to certain unlieased and inactive properties.
leer{ the uncertainty of when the reclamation area will meet regulatory standards a change in this estimate
could:occur in the future.

Mine Health and Safety Laws !

'I'here are numerous mine health and safety laws and regulations applicable{to the coal mining industry.
However since PVR does not operate any mines and does not employ any coal miners, PVR is not subject to
such laws and regulations. Accordingly, we have not accrued any related liabilities.

16. Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income represents changes in partners’ capital during the reporting period, including net
mcomle and charges directly to partners’ capital which are excluded from net mcome For the three years ended
Decencber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the componems of comprehensive income were as follows (in thousands):

! - Year Ended December 31,

| ! 2006 2005 2004
Netineome «............oooeeeeenn., e $32,048  $20,769  $15,289
Unreahzed holding losses on derivative activities ....................... (5,669) (3,903) —
Reclassnﬁcauon adjustment for derivative activities ...................., 1,909 (588) —

C|omprehen51ve income .......... e e $28,288  $15.878  $15,289

t

\
17. Selgment Information

Stlagment information has been prepared in'accordance with SFAS No. 131, D:sclosure about Segments of an
Emerpnse and Related Information. Under SFAS No. 131, operating segments are deﬁned as components of an
enterprise about which separate financial information is available and is eva]uated regularly by the chief
operating decision maker, or decision-making. group, in assessing performance, Our chief operatmg decision-
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making group consists of the Chief Executive Officer and other senior officials. This group routinely reviews and

makes operating and resource allocation decisions among our coal operations and our natural gas midstream
operations. Accordingly, our reportable segments are as follows:

» Coal-management and leasing of coal properties and subsequent collection of royalties; other land
management activities such as selling standing timber and real estate rentals; leasing of fee-based coal
related infrastructure facilities to certain lessees and end-user industrial plants,

«  Natural Gas Midstream—natural gas processing, natural gas gathering and other related services.

The following table presents a summary of certain financial information relating to our segments:

Natural Gas
Coal Midstream (1) Other Consolidated

(in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, 2006

L= $112,981 $404.910 5 — $517.891
Cost of midstream gaspurchased . .. ... ... i — 334,594 — 334,594
Operating costs and XPENSES ... ... it ittt inten i 19,138 23,846 397 43,381
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . ...........oeiiiin i 20,399 17,094 — 31,493
Operating InCome . ... ...oviiiiiurevanancaannanns P § 73444 $29376 S (397 102,423
INMETESt EXPEMSE, DIBL L. ..ottt e am v o e e aa o et aai by . . (16,462)
DIETIVALIVES o o ot a sttt ettt e e e a e (11,260)
MINORty MIETES . . . . .ottt i et e (42,653}
P TV o 1 =L U PO $ 32,048
LT - O $409,709 $304,314 $2,246 $716.,269
EqQuity inVeSIMENTS . . . ..o vut vt vte e e e e e e a e 25,295 60 — 25,355
Additions to preperty, plant and equipment and acquisitions, net of cash

acquired {2) ..o e e 92,697 37.015 — 129,712
For the year ended December 31, 2005
REVEIUES oottt it s st e e et e e ettt $ 95755 $350,593 5§ — $446,348
Cost of midstream gas purchased . . ... ... i — 303,912 — 303,912
Operating costs And EXPENSES ... oot v inreemeeneeaeennanean it iiirorns 16,121 17,597 — 33,718
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . .......... . L oo e 17,890 12,738 — 30,628
OPEraling i0COME . ..« e o vt e e ettt et e ir s et s araeae e aists $ 61,744 $ 16,346 5 — 78,090
INLETESt EXPENSE, ML L o .t vt s vvvv e e e cm e e saan st s eeaeaeeaans {12.908)
DEIIVILIVES - o vt v vvvm s e e e eee e e e tae e e e m e ataa i n e e e (14,029
MINEILY THIEIESE . v v e e et e et e e e e ) . (30.38%)
T +Tod ] 1173 AU U $ 20,769
TOAl BSSEIS « o vt v v e e ot et e et $372,322 $285,557 $2.068 $659.947
Equity INVESITIENTS . . . . ..ot it i e ie i r e s 26,612 60 —_ 26,672
Additions 1o property, plant and equipment and acquisilions, net of cash

aequIred (B) ..o e 96,862 206,811 — 303,673
For the year ended December 31, 2004
REVEMUES . o ove v vttt vr e et e e e et ae e e s e me e tta st r s am e % 75,630 5 — § — $ 75,630
Cost of midstream gas purchased . ... ...... e — — — —
Operating COSts and €XPENSES ..o vvuvrvvnrnernr s aceaaraistarairirren 16,479 — — 16,479
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . ......... .. .o i 18.632 _ — 18,632
OPerating INCOME . ... ..o\ e ettt e $ 40,519 58 — 5 — 40,519
INIETEST EXPENMSE, MBL . . . .t au it v vrmmmse s et a i aareaanes s (6,204)
MIRODLY INEEIEST . . . ..ottt vt it s v e e n e et ot aa s e (19,026)
LI COMIE &+ v v vt s e e e e e et e e et s s s s s rm e ma e n e aaaiaaans . $ 15,289
Totalassets .....ovvvvrnoennn- D N $284,435 $§ — $1,035 $285,470
Equily INVESHNENIS . . . ..ottt it iiiaa e aa e 27.881 — — 27,881

Additions to property, plant and equipment and acqulsmons net of cash acquired

5 - 1,088 — — 1,088
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(1) Represents the results of operations of the natural gas midstream segmem since March 3, 2005, the closing date of the Cantera
Acquisition,

(2) Coal segment includes acquisition of assets other than property or equlpmem of $1.2 million.

(3) Coal segment excludes noncash expenditures of $14.4 million related to acquisitions.

(4) Excludes noncash expenditures of $1.1 million related to acquisitions.

| |
(I)perating income is equal to total revenues less cost of midstream gas purchased, operating costs and
expenses and depreciation, depletion and amdrtizalion. Operating income does not include certain other income
items} interest expense, interest income and income taxes. Identifiable assets-are those assets used in our
operaltions in each segment. !
}
|
For the year ended December 31, 2006, two customers of the natural gas m1dstream segment accounted for
approxnmately $129.1 millicn and $67.4 million, or 25% and 13%, of our consolidated net revenues. For the year
ended December 31, 2005, two customers of the natural gas midstream segmentjaccounted for approximately

$81 9 million and $77.1 million, or 18% and 17% of our consolidated net revenues!
|

18. QLarterIy Financial Infermation (Unaudited)
|

o ,
Summarized Quarterly Financial Data |
f

! . First Second Third Fourth

2006 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
T [ (in thousands)
Revenues ............................. e $135,164 $123,463 $131,494 $127.770
Operatmg income .......... ..., oo, e $ 18,246 $ 29288 - § 29,899 § 24,990
Netincome ..........cooeoeoniii.i... b $ 3451 $ Is461 § 12,801 § 10,335
Ba.mc'and diluted net income per limited partner unit (1} . .... ... $ 011 & 1017 $ 040 $§ 030
Welghted average number of units outstanding, basic and

dlluted ............................. b e 32,125 32,125 32,125 34,425
2005 (2) !
Reveriues ............................. s $ 46,190 $109.609 $128405 $162,144
Operajtmg income ......... ... ..., .. e, $ 14300 § 210,436 $ 22,496 $ 20,858
Netincome (10S8) . .vvvnenrit e e $ (815 % 6619 § 8686 $ 6279

Basic fand diluted net income (loss) per limited:parmer wnit{l) ... $ (@03 $ 021 $ 027 § 020
Weighted average number of units outstanding; basic and
diluted ... e 32,125 3|2, 125 32,125 32,125

{H Tﬁe sum of the quarters may not equal the total of the respective year's net income per limited partner unit due to changes in the
we:ghted average units outstanding throughout the year. i

2) Includes the results of operations from the natural _gas midstream segment since March 3, 2005 the closing date of the Cantera
Acquisition.

e m—— e
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Item 9  Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A Controls and Procedures
(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and our Chief Financial Officer, we performed an evaluation of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2006. Qur
disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the
reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported accurately
and on a timely basis. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our. Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, such disclosure controls and procedures were effective. .

(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No changes were made in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our last fiscal
quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B Other Information

" There was no information that was required 10 be disclosed by us on a Current Report on Form 8-K during
the fourth quarter of 2006 which we did not disclose.
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'  PARTII

Item|10 Directors, Executive Officers and:Comarate Governance

Directors and Executive Officers of our General Partner

The following table sets forth mformanon concerning the directors and executive officers of our general
partner All directors of our general panner are elected, and may be removedW by Penn Virginia Resource
GP Corp its sole member and a wholly owned subsidiary of Penn Virginia. ’

Name ﬂ Position with our General Partner

A. Ja'mes Dearlove ........ 59 Chamnan of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
Robe'rt Garrett ............ 70 Dlrector

Robe:rt LHall ... ... .... 61 Dlrector

Frank A.Pici ............. 51 Dlrector and Vice President and Chief Fmanc:lal Officer

Nanc‘y M. Snyder ......... 53 Dlrector and Vice President, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary
John ;C. van Roden, Jr. :.... 57 Director

Jonathan B. Weller ........ 60 Director

|

A. James Dearlove has served as Chamhan of the Board of Directors and Chlef Executive Officer of our
general partner since September 2006 and as Cha:rman of the Board of Directors a}nd Chief Executive Officer of
PVRIS general partner since December 2002;and July 2001: Mr. Dearlove has als'o served in various capacities
with Penn Virginia since 1977, including as President and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer since May 1996, as President
and Chlef Operating Officer from 1994 to May 1996, as Senior Vice President frlom 1992 to 1994 and as Vice
Presuient from 1986 to 1992. Mr. Dearlove also serves as a director of Penn Virginia and as a director of the
National Council of Coal Lessors.

i
|

Robert Garrett has served as a director Iof our general partner since Septémber 2006 and as non-executive
Chamnan of the Board and a director of Penn Virginia since May 2000 and May 1997 respectively. Mr. Garrett
was also the founder, and has served as Managing Director of, AdMedia Pa'rtners Inc., or AdMedia, an
investment banking firm serving media, advertising and marketing services businesses, since 2005. From 1990 to
2005| Mr. Garrett served as President of AdMedia. From 1986 to date, Mr. Garrett has also served as President of
Robert Garrett & Sons, Inc., a private investing and financial advisory company.

|

Robert J. Hall has served as a d1rectori of our general partner since September 2006. Since June 2004,
Mr. Hall has been providing consulting serv1ces in newspaper industry acqulsmons From January 2004 to May
2004l Mr. Hall was retired. From 1990 to December 2003, Mr. Hall served as Publisher and Chairman of
Philadelphia Newspapers, Inc., which publishes the Philadelphia Inquirer and the Phlladelphla Daily News. From
1985/ to 1989, Mr. Hall served -as General Manager of Detroit Free Press, and from 1989 to 1990, he served as
Chairman of Detroit Free Press. |

| .

lF rank A. Pici has served as Vice Pre51dem and Chief Financial Officer and as a director of our general
partner since September 2006 and as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of PVR’s general partner since
September 2001 and as a director since October 2002. Mr. Pici has also served as! Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Penn Virginia since September 2001. From 1996 to 2001, Mr, Pici served as Vice
Prem'dent—Fmance and Chief Financial Ofﬁcer of Mariner Energy, Inc., or Mann'er a Houston, Texas-based oil
and gas exploration and production company, where he managed all financial :aspects of Mariner, including
accountmg, tax, finance, banking, investor relanons planning and budgeting and information technology. From
1994 0 1996, Mr. Pici served as Corporate Controller of Cabot Oil & Gas|Corporation, an oil and gas
exploration and production company. li -

Nancy M. Snyder has served as Vice Pre:sident, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary and as a director of
our general partner since September 2006 and as Vice President and General Counisel and as a director of PVR’s
|
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general partner since July 2001. Ms. Snyder has also served in various capacities with Penn Virginia since 1997,
including as Executive Vice President since May 2006, as Senior Vice President from February 2003 to May
2006, as Vice President from December 2000 to February 2003 and as General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
since 1997,

John C. van Roden, Jr. has served as a director of our general partner since September 2006. From January
2007 to date, Mr. van Roden has been a consultant to Glatfelter, a global manufacturer of specialty papers and
engineered products. From April 2003 to December 2006, Mr. von Roder served as Executive Vice President of
Glatfelter, and from April 2003 to June 2006, he served as Chief Financial Officer of Glatfelter. From 1998 to
April 2003, Mr. van Roden served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Conectiv, a company
engaged in the transmission and distribution of electricity and the distribution of natural gas to customers in the
Mid-Atlantic region. From 1982 to 1998, Mr. van Roden served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Lukens, Inc., a producer of specialty steel. Mr. van Roden serves as a dlrector of SEMCO Energy, Inc.,
Airgas, Inc. and H.B. Fuller Company. .

Jonathan B. Weller has served as a director of our general partner since September 2006. Since January
2007, Mr. Weller has been an Adjunct Lecturer at The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania. From
April 2006 to January 2007, Mr. Weller was retired. From 1994 to April 2006, Mr. Weller has served in various
capacities with Pennsylvania Real Estate Investment Trust, an owner, operator and developer of shopping centers
in the eastern United States, including as Vice Chairman and Trustee since June 2004 to April 2006, as President
and Chief Operating Officer from 1994 to June 2004 and as Trustee from 1994 to March 2006.

Directors and Executwe Officers of PYR’s General Partner

The fo!lowmg table sets forth information concerning the executive ofﬁcers of PVR’s general partner,

Name Age  Position with PVR’s General Partner )

A. James Dearlove ........ 59 Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
Frank A. Pici ... 00 51 Director and Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Nancy M. Snyder ......... 53 Director and Vice President and General Counsel

Keith D. Horton ... ... ««.. 33 Co-President and Chief Operating Officer—Coal

Ronald K. Page ........... 56 Co-President and Chief Operating Officer—Midstream

Keith D. Horton has served as Co-President and Chief Operating Officer—Coal of PVR’s general partner
since June 2006 and as President of the Operating Company since September 2001. From July 2001 to June
2006, Mr. Horton served as President and Chief Operating Officer of PVR’s general partner. Mr. Horton has also
served in various capacities with Penn Virginia since 1981, including as Executive Vice President since
December 2000, as Vice President——Eastern Operations from February 1999 to December 2000 and as Vice
President from February 1996 to February 1999. Mr. Horton also serves as a director of Penn Virginia and as
director of the Virginia Mining Association, the Powell River Project and the Eastern Coal Council.

Ronald K. Page has served as Co-President and Chief Operating Officer—Midstream of PVR’s general
partner since June 2006 and as President of PVR Midstream LLC since January 2005. From July 2003 to June
2006, Mr. Page served as Vice President, Corporate Development of PVR’s general partner. Mr. Page has also
served in various capacities with Penn Virginia since July 2003, including as Vice President since May 2005 and
as Vice President, Corporate Development from July 2003 to May 2005. From January 1998 to May 2003,

" Mr. Page served in various positions with El Paso Field Services Company, including Vice President of
Commercial Operations—Texas Pipelines and Processing from 2001 to 2003, Vice President of Business
Development from 2000 to 2001 and Director of Business Development from 1999 to 2000.
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Role of the Board of Directors of our Genqral Partner

Our business is managed under the direction of the board of directors of our general partner. The board of
dlrectors of our general partner has adopted Corporate Governance Principles outlmmg its duties. A current copy
of our general partner’s Corporate Governance Principles is available at the “Govémance section of our website,
http: rwww. pvgpholdings.com, or in print upon request to PVG GP, LLC, Attenuon Secretary, Three Radnor
Corbordle Center, Suite 300, 100 Matsonford Road, Radnor, Pennsylvania 19087. The board of directors of our
gem?ral partner meets regularly to review significant developments affecting us and 10 act on matters requiring its
approval . '

Code of Busiiless Conduct and Ethics '

| The board of directors of our general partner has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as its
“code of ethics” as defined in Item 406 of Regulauon S-K, which applies to all dlrectors officers and employees
of our general partner, including its Chief Execunve Officer, Chief Financial Officer, principal accounting officer
or c|omro]]er or persons performing similar functions. A current copy of our gem':ral partner’s Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics 1s available at the “Governance™ section of our website, http: Ilwww pvepholdings.com, or in
pnm upon request 10 PVG GP, LLC, Attention: Secretary, Three Radnor Corporate Center, Suite 300 100
Matsonford Road, Radnor, Pennsylvania 19087, without charge.
l

Executive Sessions and Meetings of Indepéndent Directors; Communicationswith the Board
Our general partner’s Independent Directors, as such term is defined in ltem 13—Certain Relationships and
Re]ated Transactions, and Director lndependence—Dlreclor Independence,” meet during regularly scheduled
executlve sessions without management as well as during meetings which are schedu]cd on an as needed basis.
John C. van Roden, Jr., an Independent Dlrector presides over executive sesswns Unitholders and other
interested parties may communicate any concerns they have regarding us by comacnng Mr. van Roden in writing
cfo|Secretary, PVG GP, LLC, Three Radnor Corporate Center, Suite 300, 1‘00 Matsonford Road, Radnor,

Pennsylvania 19087. :

Committees of the Board of Directors of our General Partner

The board of directors of our general partner has an audit Committee; a conflicts committee and a
compensation and benefits committee.

J

Audit Committee. Messrs, Hall, van Iiloden and Weller are the members Jof the audit committee of our
general partner, and each such member is an Independent Director. Mr. van [Roden is an “audit committee
ﬁnz{ncml expert” as defined in liem 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K. The audit committee of our general partner is
responsnble for the appointment, compensation, evaluation and termination of 01'11* independent registered public
accountants and oversees the work, internal quality-control procedures and mdependence of the independent
reg}stered public accountants. The committee discusses with management and the independent registered public
accountants our annual audited and quarterly unaudited financial statements and recommends to the board of
dxrectors of our general partner that our annual audited financial statements be 1n1cluded in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The committee also discusses with management earnings press releases and guidance provided to
anallysts The committee also provides oversight with respect to business risk éndtters compliance with ethics
policies and our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The commiuee has established procedures
for;the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints regarding accounting, mten?ai accounting controls, auditing
and, other matters and the confidential anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable
accounting, auditing and other maiters. The committee may obtain advice and assistance from outside legal,
accounting or other advisors as it deems necessary to carry out its duties.
1

Conflicts Committee. Messrs. Hall, van Roden and Weller are the members of the conflicts committee of our
general panner, and each such member is an Independent Director. The conﬂlcts committee of our general
panner reviews transactions between us and Penn Virginia or PVR, or any of their affiliates, and any other
i
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ransactions involving us or our affiliates that the board of directors of our general partner believes may involve
conflicts of interest. The conflicts committee then determines whether such transactions are fair and reasonable to
us, and whether our general partner has upheld the fiduciary or other duties it owes to us. The committee may
obtain advice and assistance from outside tegal, financial or other advisors as it deems necessary to carry out its
duties.

Compensation and Benefits Committee. Messrs. Hall, van Roden and Weller are the members of the
compensation and benefits committee of our general partner, and each such member is an Independent Director.
The compensation and benefits committee of our general partner assists the compensation and benefits
committee of Penn Virginia, or the Penn Virginia Committee, when the Penn Virginia Committee determines the
compensation for the executive officers of our general partner. See “Item 11—Executive Compensation—
Compensation Discussion and Analysis—How Compensation Is Determined—Committee Process.” The
committee reviews and discusses with management the information contained in Item 11, “Executive
Compensation—Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” and recommends that such information be included
herein. The committee periodically reviews and makes recommendations or decisions regarding our general
partner’s incentive compensation and equity-based plans, provides oversight with respect to our general partner’s
other employee benefit plans and reports its recommendations to the board of directors of our general partner.
The committee also reviews and makes recommendations to the board of directors of our general regarding
director compensation policy. The committee may obtain advice and assistance from outside compensation
consultants or other advisors as it deems necessary to carry out its duties.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section i6(a) of the Exchange Act requires officers and directors of our general partner and beneficial
owners more than 10% of our common units to file, by a specified date, reports of beneficial ownership and
changes in beneficial ownership with the SEC and to furnish copies of such reports to us. We believe that all such
filings were made on a timely basis in 2006.

Item 11  Executive Compensation
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

We were formed in June 2006 and completed our IPO in December 2006. Our general partner’s executive
officers did not devote any significant amount of professional time to us during 2006, so our general partner did
not pay any compensation to such executive officers in or with respect to 2006. Each of the executive officers of
our general partner is also an executive officer of Penn Virginia and PVR’s general partner, our wholly owned
subsidiary, and Penn Virginia and PVR's general partner paid all of such executive officers’ compensation in and
with respect to 2006.

Under the rules established by the SEC, we are required to provide a discussion and analysis of information
necessary to an understanding of our compensation policies and decisions regarding the executive officers of our
general partner. The required disclosure includes the use of specified tables and a report of the compensation and
benefits committee of our general partner. Because PVR’s general partner is our wholly owned subsidiary, our
only assets are the general and.limited partner interests we own in PVR and our general partner did not pay any
compensation to its executive officers in or with respect to 2006, we will discuss and disclose the compensation
provided to the executive officers of PVR’s general partner in 2006. Unless otherwise indicated, all references in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K to the “Named Executive Officers” refer to the executive officers of PVR’s
general partner named in the Summary Compensation Table, all references to “our Committee” or the
“Committee” refer to the compensation and benefits committee of our general partner, and all references to the
“PVR Committee™ refer to the compensation and benefits committee of PVR’s general partner.

Our Committee did not participate in setting the compensation for the executive officers of PVR’s general
partner in 2006. The following compensation discussion and analysis is our understanding of the processes,
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objecuves criteria and decisions used or made by the PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia Committee in

detertmnmg compensation for the executive: ofﬁcers of PVR’s general partner.

Objectives of the Compensation ngram.r

PVR’s compensation program is based on the following objectives:

« Executive compensation should be industry competitive so that PVR Ican attract, retain and motivaie
talented executives with appropriate experience and skill sets.

» * Executives should be accountable for PVR’s performance as well as thFir own individual performance,
f so compensation should be tied to both partnership financial measures and individual performance
i measures.

* Executive compensation should balance and align the short-term ang long-term interests of PVR’s
executives with those of PVR’s unitholders, so executive compensation packages should include a mix
of cash and equity-based compenslation.

!
i

Compensation Structure

A. James Dearlove, Chief Executive Officer, or the CEO, Frank A. Pici, Vlce President and Chief Financial
Ofﬁcer or the CFO, and Nancy M. Snyder, Vice President and General Counsel who are referred to in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K as the “Shared Executives,” rendered services to both Penn Virginia and PVR
durmg 2006. PVR is responsible for paymg only that portion of the Shared Execuuves compensation related to
the' services they perform for PVR. The specific portions of salary and bonus paJd by PVR’s general partner, on
the: one hand, and Penn Virginia, on the other hand, depend on the portion of professional time devoted by each
Named Executive Officer to PVR and Penn Virginia. The Shared Execut]ves are required to document the
amoum of professional time they spend rendering services to PVR and Penn Vl}'glma See “How Compensation
Is Determmed—Commlttee Process” for a discussion of our Committee’s review of such allocations. Two of the
Named Executive Officers, Keith D. Honon Co-President and Chief Operating lOfﬁcer—Coal of PVR’s general
partner and Ronald K. Page, Co- President and Chief Operating Officer—Midstream of PVR’s general partner,
render their services solely to PVR so PVR pays 100% of their compensation.

{ Beginning in 2007, the Shared Executives will devote some amount of their professional time to us, and our
general partner will be responsible for paymg that portion of the Shared Executives’ compensation related to the
seryvices they perform for us.

Elements of Compensation

PVR pays the Named Executive Officers a base salary and gives them an opportunity 1o earn an annual cash
bonus and an annual long-term compensation award. In determining these three elements of compensation, the
PVR Committee takes into account certain peer group information obtained by the PVR Committee, the Penn
Vlrgmla Committee and each such committee’s independent consultants, typically focusing on approximately the
50t percentile of the peer benchmarks described below under “How Compensation is Determined—Peer
Befnchmarks,” but also applying its independent judgment to these matters and considering such other factors as
it deems relevant. The three elements of compensation are:

* Base Salary—PVR pays each of the Named Executive Officers 2 base salary which the PVR
Committee has determined reflects his or her experience and capabilities and is industry competitive.

i * Annual Cash Bonus—PVR gives each of the Named Executive Officers the opportunity to earn an

annual cash bonus. The PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia Committee generally target annual cash
bonuses at an amount equal to 60% of base salary for the Named Executive Officers other than the
| CEOQ and 75% of base salary for the CEQ, which the PVR Committeebelieves is industry competitive.
The PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia Committee recognize that annual cash bonuses could be
higher or lower than the targetéd amounts depending on actual PVR, Penn Virginia or individual
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performance. Therefore, the actual amount of annual cash bonus, if any, awarded to each Named
Executive Officer depends primarily on whether the performance criteria by which such officer is
measured were met or exceeded. The performance criteria by which each Named Executive Officer is
measured and other factors affecting the compensation of the Named Executive Officers are described
below under the headings “Peer Benchmarks™ and “Partnership, Company and Individual Performance
Criteria.” In addition to the performance criteria, the PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia
Committee may consider any other factors they deem appropriate when awarding annual cash bonuses
to the Named Executive Officers.

= Long-Term Compensation Awards—PVR gives each of the Named Executive Officers the opportunity
to earn an annual leng-term compensation award. The PYR Committee and the Penn Virginia
Committee generally target annual long-term compensation awards at an amount equal to 120% of base
salary for the Named Executive Officers other than the CEO and 150% of base salary for the CEQ,
which the PVR Committee believes would be industry competitive. As with cash bonus awards, the
PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia Committee recognize that these annual long-term compensation
awards could be higher or lower than the targeted amounts depending on whether actual PVR, Penn
Virginia or individual performance meets or exceeds applicable criteria. In addition to performance
criteria, the PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia Committee may consider any other factors they
deem appropriate when making long-term compensation awards to the Named Executive Officers.
Long-term compensation awards are expressed in dollar values and PVR’s general pantner or Penn
Virginia pays those awards in the form of stock options, restricted stock or restricted units. The actual
numbers of shares of restricted stock and restricted units awarded are based on the NYSE closing
prices of Penn Virginia's common stock and PVR’s common units on the dates of grant. The actual
number of stock options awarded is based on the value of the options on the date of grant using the
Biack-Scholes model. The Shared Executives’ long-term compensation awards are split between
restricted units of PVR, on the one hand, and stock options or restricted stock of Penn Virginia, on the
other hand. For each Shared Executive, the ratio of the split between PVR-related long-term
compensation and Penn Virginia-related long-term compensation is determined based on the amount of
time such Shared Executive devotes to each of PVR and Penn Virginia. Executives who render services
wholly or predominately to PVR may receive only restricted units, and executives who render services
wholly or predominantly to Penn Virginia may receive only stock options or restricted stock.
Executives who receive Penn Virginia awards are given the opportunity to elect whether to receive
those awards in stock options, restricted stock or a combination of both.

How Compensation Is Determined

Committee Process. Penn Virginia indirectly controls PVR’s general partner and owns 100% of PVR’s
incentive distribution rights and a significant limited partner interest in PVR. Because of this relationship, and
since all of the Named Executive Officers are also executives of Penn Virginia and three of the Named Executive
Officers, including the CEOQ, devote a significant amount of their professional time to Penn Virginia, the Penn
Virginia Committee sets compensation for the Named Executive Officers. The PVR Committee assists the Penn
Virginia Committee in determining executive compensation for the Named Executive Officers in the manner
described below. Both the PVR Commitiee and the Penn Virginia Commitiee are comprised entirely of
Independent Directors.

With respect to Messrs. Horton and Page, who manage PVR’s coal-related and midstream-related
operations, respectively, and devote substantially all of their business time to PVR and who are referred to in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K as the “Partnership Executives,” the PVR Committee has the primary
responsibility to assess all factors relevant to their compensation and, based on that assessment, recommend to
the Penn Virginia Committee salary, annual cash bonus and long-term compensation awards for them. Since the
Partnership Executives report directly to, and work on a daily basis with, the CEQ, the PVR Committee reviews
and discusses with the CEO his evaluation of the performance of each of the Partnership Executives prior to
making its recommendation regarding their compensation, and the PYR Committee gives the CEO’s evaluations
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consifderable weight in assessing the amount of compensation to recommend to thei Penn Virginia Committee for
the Partnership Executives. The CEO bases his evaluation of each of the Partnership Executives primarily on
whether PVR met or exceeded certain quantitative partnership performance criterialand whether such Partnership
Execuuve met or exceeded certain specifically tailored job-related individual perfolrmance criteria recommended
by the CEQ and the PVR Committee and set by the Penn Virginia Committee during the preceding year. These
performance critenia and other factors relevant to the Partnership Executives’ compensatlon are described in
detail below under the headings “Peer Benchmarks” and *Partnership, Company and Individual Performance
Cnteha The Penn Virginia Committee then considers the CEO’s and the PVR Commmee s recommendations
as well as other factors it deems relevant and makes the final determination regardmg the compensation of each
of the Partnership Executives. The Penn Virginia Committee set the 2007 base s?larles and 2006-related long-
term { compensation awards for each of the Partnership Executives in the amounts the PYR Committee
recommended. ‘

With respect to the Shared Executives, including the CEO, the Penn Virginia Comnnttee assesses the factors
relevant to, and determines, their compensation. The PVR Committee reviews and discusses such assessment
with the Penn Virginia Committee and determines whether it believes such assessment is reasonable. Since the
Shared Executives other than the CEO report directly to, and work on a daily baSlS with, the CEOQ, the Penn
Vlrglma Committee reviews and discusses with the CEO his evaluation of the performance of each of the other
Shared Executives, and gives considerable weight to the CEO’s evaluations, when assessing their performance
and delenmmng their compensation. The Penn Virginia Committee bases its evalualnon of the CEQ, and the CEO
bases his evaluation of each of the other Shared Executives, primarily on whether[PVR or Penn Virginia met or
exceeded certain quantitative partnership or corporate performance criteria and whether each Shared Executive
met or exceeded certain specifically tailored job-related individual performance lcriteria recommended by the
CEOIand set by the F'enn Virginia Committee during the preceding year. These performance criteria and other
factors relevant to the Shared Executives’ compensation are described in detail below under the headings “Peer
Benchmarks and “Partnership, Company and Individual Performance Criteria.” Smce the amount of the Shared
Execptlves compensation PVR pays depends on the amount of professional time lthey devote to PVR, the PVR
Comtnlttee and the audit committee of our general partner review the allocation of the Shared Executives’ time
between PVR and Penn Virginia and determines whether such allocations are reasonable.

Peer Benchmarks. In 2004, the Penn Virginia Committee and the PVR Committee engaged an independent
consultant to assist both committees in a general review of the compensation packages for Penn Virginia's and
PVR's general partner’s executive officers. The independent consultant used three peer groups, or the Peer
Benchmarks to benchmark the compensation of PVR’s five most highly co:mpensated executives—Penn
Virginia's proxy peers, a second general industry group derived from the consultant s database and comprised of
companies with 2004 revenues comparable to Penn Virginia’s 2004 revenues and a third general energy industry
group with 2004 revenues comparable to Penn Virginia's, which was derived frlom the database of a second
mdependent compensation consulting firm. Using the information obtained from the independent consultant, and
given the PVR Commitiee’s and the Penn Virginia Commitiee’s belief thatl executives should have the
oppopunity to earn industry competitive compensation, in February 2005, the PVR Committee and the Penn
Virgilnia Committee decided to target each component of executive compensatilon at approximately the 504
perceintlle of the Peer Benchmarks and established the framework described herein to determine the actual
amounts of such components. The PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia Cormmttee continued to use the Peer
Benchmarks to assess, recommend or set executive salaries for 2006 and 2007 and cash bonuses and long-term
compensauon awards payable with respect to 2005 and 2006 even though Penn Vlr&glma s 2004 revenues were an
important factor in establishing the Peer Benchmarks and those revenues increa'sed substantially in 2005 and
2006i To keep industry compensation reviews current, the Penn Virginia Commlttee and the PVR Committee
each engaged an independent consultant to review the compensation to be paid to the Named Executive Officers
in 2007 and paid to the Named Executive Officers in and with respect to 2006. These independent consultants
reported that the salaries paid to the Named Executive Officers in 2007 and 2006i and the annual cash bonuses
and long-term compensation awards paid to the Named Executive Officers with respect to 2006, were generally
consistent with peer companies and industry practice.

i
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Partnership, Company and Individual Performance Criteria. The Penn Virginia Committee, with the
assistance of the PVR Committee, targets the amount of salary, cash bonus and long-term compensation award
for each Named Executive Officer at approximately the 50% percentile of the Peer Benchmarks with respect to
each of those elements. However, given the importance of executive accountability for PVYR’'s and Penn
Virginia’s performance as well as for individual performance, the PYR Commiltee and the Penn Virginia
Committee recognize that compensation for any Named Executive Officer could exceed such 50t percentile
targets, reflecting a reward for exceptional PVR, Penn Virginia or individual performance, or be lower than such
50* percentile targets, reflecting PVR, Penn Virginia or individual underperformance, with a range of the 35" to
the 65% percentile being considered for this purpose to be approximately the 50 percentile. To measure specific
performance, the PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia Commiitee use certain quantitative PVR and Penn
Virginia performance criteria and certain quantitative and qualitative individual performance criteria which
measure achievement and contribution to PVR or Penn Virginia. The PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia
Committee believe that these performance criteria are focused on factors over which the Named Executive
Officers have some control and which shouid have a positive effect on PVR’s and Penn Virginia's operations and
the price of PYR’s common units or Penn Virginia's common stock. The weight given any one criterion and the
mix of criteria included in determining amounts of compensation vary among the Named Executive Officers
depending on their positions and principal areas of responsibility. The relevance and the relative importance of
any of these criteria change from time to time, even within the same year, depending on PVR’s and Penn
Virginia’s strategic objectives, operational needs and general business and regulatory environments. For this
reason, the PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia Committee may change these performance criteria from year
to year, may assign an aggregate weight to several performance criteria applicable to a Named Executive Officer
or may constder additional criteria which were not known at the time the original criteria were established.

Partnership and Company Performance Criteria for Shared Executives. Messrs. Dearlove and Pici and
Ms. Snyder generally provide services to, and make executive decisions and direct policy for, both PVR and
Penn Virginia in ways that directly affect PVR’s and Penn Virginia’s financial and other results. For this reason,
the Penn Virginia Committee tied the Shared Executives’ annual cash bonuses and long-term compensating
awards for 2006 to the following quantitative financial corporate and partnership performance criteria:

* Growth in Penn Virginia’s net asset value per share from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006.
“Net asset value per share,” as PVR and Penn Virginia compute it, is equal to (x) the value of its
proved oil and natural gas-reserves and other assets (principally, the market value of its ownership
interest in PVG, its publicly-traded majority-owned subsidiary through which it owns its general and
limited partner interests in us), less (y) its debt not related to us, divided by (z) the total number of
shares of its common stock issued and outstanding.

«  Growth in PVR’s distributable cash flow per unit from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006.
“Distributable cash flow per unit,” as PVR and Penn Virginia compute it, is equal to (x) the sum of
PVR’s (A) operating income plus (B) depreciation, depletion and amortization, or DD&A, minus
(y) the sum of PVR’s (A) interest expense plus (B) maintenance capital expenditures, divided by (z) the
total number of PVR’s common units issued and outstanding.

The Penn Virginia Committee set the targets for growth in its net asset value per share and PVR's
distributable cash flow per unit at levels slightly above the amounts for these targets that were included in PVR’s
and Penn Virginia’s 2006 board-approved budgets. Since neither PVR nor Penn Virginia budget for acquisitions,
the PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia Committee believed that it would be challenging for Penn Virginia or
PVR 10 achieve through organic growth alone sufficient increases in net asset value per share or distributable
cash flow per unit to meet these criteria. These criteria would likely be met if Penn Virginia or PVR completed a
significant acquisition.

Individual Performance Criteria for Shared Executives. In addition to working together and with the other
Named Executive Officers to manage PVR and Penn Virginia generally, Messrs. Dearlove and Pici and
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Snyder have distinct job-related responsibilities to PVR and Penn Virginia and, accordingly, their
compensation for 2006 was also based on specific individual performance criteria ‘as follows:

A. James Dearlove—Mr. Dearlove’s 2006 individual performance criteria were as follows:

* Continually assess and modify PVR’s and Penn Virginia's strategy as needed to accommodate
changes in the energy and general business environments.

* Evaluate, recommend and oversee the consummation of (i) our IPO, (ii} a significant acquisition
for PVR and (jii) a significant acquisition for Penn Virginia.

* Appoint and continually develop management and other key employees of PVR’s general partner
and Penn Virginia who will facilitate PYR’s and Penn Virginia’s future growth.

« Represent PVR and Penn Virginia to the public through teleconferences, conferences and
shareholder, unitholder and other meetings.

+ Ensure an ethical “tone at 1he top” regarding compliance by PVR and Penn Virginia with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

In February 2007, the Penn Virginia Committee, with the PVR' Committee’'s assistance, set
Mr. Dearlove’s base salary at $380,000, representing a 3.5% increase over his 2006 base salary. In
2004, the independent compensation consultant retained by the PVR C‘ommlttee and the Penn Virginia
Committee had found that Mr. Dearlove’s 2004 base salary was mgmﬁcantly below that of CEOs at the
30% percentile of the Peer Benchmarks. Since the Penn Virginia Commiittee has approved only a 3.5%
to 4.0% salary increase for Mr. Dearlove in each year since 2004, his 2007 salary most likely continues
to be non-competitive. However,iin February 2007, the Penn Vlrgn!ua Committee, with the PVR
Committee’s assistance, also awarded to Mr. Dearlove a cash bonus of $370 000, or 100% of his 2006
base salary, and a long-term compensation award valued at $625,000, (;r 170% of his base salary. The

decision to make bonus and long-term compensation awards to Mr. Dearlove in these amounts was -

based on the fact that, in 2006, the growth in PVR’s distributable ‘cash flow per unit and Penn
Virginia’s net asset value per share significantly surpassed the targets for such criteria established by
the Penn Virginia Committee. In addition, the Penn Virginia Commltlet;: with the PVR’s Committee’s
assistance, determined that Mr. Dearlove exceeded expectations related to his 2006 individual
performance criteria described above, most notably by recommendingland overseeing the evaluation
and consummation of our IPO, overseeing three coal reserve acquisitions, or the Coal Acquisitions,
whereby PVR’s coal division acquired an aggregate of approximately 916 million tons of coal reserves,
overseeing the strategically important acquisition by PVR’s midstream division of the Transwestern
pipeline, or the Transwestern Acquisition, which, among other lhings,'signiﬁcanlly expanded PVR’s
midstream division’s gas gathering and processing footprint in Texas zlmd Oklahoma, and overseeing
the expansion of Penn Virginia’s oil and gas exploration and production business into a new growth-
enhancing basin through the acquisition of $71.5 million worth of Mld Continent oil and gas assets,
which we refer to as the “Mid-Continent Acquisition.” The PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia
Committee believe that these amounts of cash bonus and long-term compensation, when combined
with base salary, comprise an industry competitive compensation package and appropriately reflect
PVR’s, Penn Virginia's and Mr. Dearlove’s 2006 performance. In December 2006, the Penn Virginia
Committee also awarded Mr. Dearlove 4,000 common units of us in recogmuon of services rendered in
connection with our 1PO, which was completed on December 8§, 2006.

Frank A. Pici—Mr. Pici’s 2006 individual performance criteria were as follows:

+ Evaluate and direct the financial advisors retained in connection with our IPQO.

* Recommend and execute a hedging policy for each of PVR’s natural gas midstream business and
Penn Virginia's oil and gas exploration and production business “l/hich is consistent with PVR’s
general partner’s and Penn Virginia’s board-approved strategic objectives.
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= Oversee the installation of a new core accounting system.

» Qversee Sarbanes-Oxley Act compliance and financial reporting requirements and manage PVR’s
general partner’s and Penn Virginia's internal audit, information technology, investor relations,
treasury and tax functions.

= Increase analyst coverage for PVR and Penn Virgima.-

In February 2007, the Penn Virginia Committee, with the PVR Committee’s assistance, set Mr. Pici’s
base salary at $263,000, representing a 4.0% increase over his 2006 base salary. In February 2007, the
Penn Virginia Committee, with the PVR Committee’s assistance, also awarded Mr. Pici a cash bonus
of $205,000, or 81% of his 2006 base salary, and a long-term compensation award valued at $380,000,
or 150% of his 2006 base salary. The decision to make bonus and long-term compensation awards 10
Mr. Pici in these amounts was based on the fact that, as discussed above, the 2006 growth in PVR’s
distributable cash flow per unit and Penn Virginia’s net asset value per share significantly surpassed
the targets established for such criteria by the Penn Virginia Committee. In addition, the Penn Virginia
Committee, with the PVR Committee’s assistance, determined that Mr. Pici exceeded expectations
related to his 2006 individual performance criteria, most notably through his work related to our IPO,
overseeing the financial evaluations of the Coal Acquisitions, the Transwestern Acquisition and the
Mid-Continent Acquisition and identifying and overseeing the on-going integration of a new core
accounting system. In December 2006, the Penn Virginia Committee also awarded Mr. Pici 4,000
commeon units of us in recognition of services rendered in connection with our IPO.

» Nancy M. Snyder—Ms. Snyder’s 2006 individual performance criteria were as follows:

= Evaluate the struciural and legal issues related to, and direct the legal and other advisors retained
in connection with, our 1IPO,

»

~» Negotiate issues related 10 PVR’s and Penn Virginia’s acquisitions, dispositions and other
transactions.

* Advise PVR and Penn Virginia with respect to business and strategic transactional issues.

« Advise and assist other officers of PVR’s general partner and Penn Virginia with. respect to
day-to-day legal matters, including those related to banking, insurance, contracts, potential
acquisitions and dispositions and tax.

= Oversee compliance with all applicable rules and regulations, including Sarbanes-Oxley Act and
other SEC and NYSE rules and regulations, and monitor changes in such rules and regulations.

» Oversee outside legal counsel, in-house legal staff and the corporate secretary function.

In February 2007, the Penn Virginia Committee, with the PVR Committee’s assistance, set
Ms. Snyder’s 2007 base salary at $230,000, representing a 4.5% increase over her 2006 base salary. In
addition, in February 2007, the Penn Virginia Committee, with the PVR Committee’s assistance,
awarded Ms. Snyder a cash bonus of $180,000, or 82% of her 2006 base salary, and a long-term
compensation award valued at $330,000, or 150% of her 2006 base salary. The decision to make
awards of these amounts to Ms. Snyder was based on PVR and Penn Virginia significantly surpassing
PVR’s and Penn Virginia’s target criteria for 2006 growth in distributable cash flow per unit and net
asset value per share. In addition, the Penn Virginia Committee, with the PYR Committee’s assistance,
determined that Ms. Snyder exceeded expectations related to her individual performance criteria, most
notably through her work related to our IPO, the Coal Acquisitions, the Transwestern Acquisition and
the Mid-Continent Acquisition. In December 2006, the Penn Virginia Committee also awarded
Ms. Snyder 4,000 common units of us in recognition of services rendered in connection with our IPO.

Performance Criteria for Partnership Executives. Messrs. Horton and Page provide services to, and make
executive decisions and direct policy for, PVR in ways that directly affect PVR’s operational and financial
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results and indirectly affect Penn Vlrglma s financial results. Accordingly, their compensation is based on

spec1fic PVR and individual performance cntena as follows:

Keith D. Horton—The PVR Comm_mee tied its compensation assessment and recommendation to the
Penn Virginia Commirttee, and the Penn Virginia Committee tied its re\;iew of the PVR Committee’s
recommendation and its final determination, regarding Mr. Honon’ $ 2006 compensation to the
following PVR and individual performance criteria related to PVR’s coal land management business,
which is the specific segment of PVR’s business managed by him:

+ Increasé in PVR’s coal-related EBITDA from December 31, 2005{to December 31, 2006. PVR
and Penn Virginia define coal-related EBITDA as the sum of coal segment-related (x) operating
income plus (v) DD&A. {

» Increase in PVR’s coal reserves from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006.

« Increase in PVR’s revenues frdm assets other than coal reserves, sucI:h as railcar loading facilities,
processing plants and other}coal infrastructure and timber, from December 31, 2005 to
December 31, 2006. '

* Develop long range plans to acquire non-Central Appalachian coal.
* Develop long range plans to grow non-coal reserve revenues,

The PVR Committee recommended, and the Penn Virginia Commitiee set, the targets for growth in
coal-related EBITDA, coal reserves and non-coal reserve revenues at Ievels slightly above the amounts
for these targets that were included in PVR’s 2006 board-approved budget Since PVR does not budget
for acquisitions, the PVR Comnuttee and the Penn Virginia Commlttlze believed that it would be
challenging for PVR to achieve through organic growth alone sufficient increases in the criteria set
forth in the first three bullet points above These criteria would likely|be met if PVR completed a
significant coal acquisition. - ;

The PVR Committee recommended, and the Penn Virginia Committee|set, Mr. Horton’s 2007 base
salary at $270,000, representing a {3.8% increase over his 2006 base Isalary In addition, the PVR
Committee recommended and, in Fébruary 2007, the Penn Virginia Committee, with the concurrence
of the PYR Committee, awarded Mr. Horton a cash bonus of $182, 000 or 70% of this 2006 base
salary, and a long-term compensation award valued at $315,000, or 121% of his 2006 base salary. The
decisions to recommend and make bonus and long-term compensation alwards to Mr. Horton in these
amounts were based on the fact that growth in PVR’s 2006 coal- related EBITDA, which the PVR
Committee and the Penn Virginia Committee believe is the most lmportam criterion related to
Mr. Horton’s compensation, and growth in PVYR’s non-coal reserve re'venues surpassed the targets
recommended by the PVR Committee and established by the Penn Vlrglma Committee for such
criteria. In addition, the PVR Committee and the Penn Virginia Committee considered Mr. Horton's
role in developing a long-range plan to acquire non-Central Appa]achlah coal reserves. In December
2006, the Penn Virginia Committee also awarded Mr. Horton 1,500 common units of us in recognition
of services rendered in connection with our IPO.

Renald K. Page—The PVR Committee tied its compensation assessment and recommendation to the
Penn Virginia Committee, and the Penn Virginia Committee tied its rev1ew of the PVR Committee’s
recommendation and its final determination, regarding Mr. Page’s 2006 compensauon to the following
PVR and individual performance cnltena related to PVR’s natural gas midstream business, which is the
specific segment of PVR’s business }nanaged by him:

* Increase in PVR's midstream-rielated EBITDA from December 31,2005 to December 31, 2006.
PVR and Penn Virginia define midstream-related EBITDA as theisum of midstream segment-
related (x) operating income plus (y) DD&A.

* Identify and evaluate mids[reanjl assets in new core areas.
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» Contribute to the establishment and execution of a hedging policy.

+ Develop better reporting and analysis tools, restructure midstream contracts to increase earnings
- stability and expand existing facilities.

» Evaluate joint venture acquisition and other opportunities with Penn Virginia Oil and Gas
Corporation, Penn Virginia’s oil and gas exploration and production affiliate, and other others.

» Develop long range plans for targeted growth objectives and possible diversification.

The PVR Committee also recommended, and the Penn Virginia Committee set, the target for growth in
midstream-related EBITDA at a level slightly above the amount for this target that was included in
PVR’s 2006 board-approved budget. Since PVR does not budget for acquisitions, the PVR Committee
and the Penn Virginia Committee believed that it would be challenging for PVR to achieve through
organic growth atone a sufficient increase in midstream-related EBITDA to meet this criterion. This
criterion would likely be met if PVR completed a significant natural gas midstream acquisition.

The PVR Committee recommended and the Penn Virginia Committee set Mr. Page’s 2007 base salary
at $235,000, representing a 6.8% increase over his 2006 base salary. In addition, the PVR Committee
recommended and, in February 2007, the Penn Virginia Committee, with the concurrence of the PVR
Committee, awarded Mr. Page a cash bonus of $150,000, or 68% of his 2006 base salary, and a long-
term compensation award valued at $265,000, or 120% of his 2006 base salary. The decisions to
recommend and make bonus and long-term compensation awards to Mr. Page in these amounts were
based on the fact that the 2006 growth in PVR’s midstream-related EBITDA, which the PVR
Committee and the Penn Virginia Commiltee believe is the most important criterion related to
Mr. Page’s compensation, significantly surpassed the target established for such-criterion. In addition,
the PYR Committee and the Penn Virginia Committee considered Mr. Page’s roles in overseeing the
evaluation and consummation of the Transwestern Acquisition, the restructuring of PVR’s midstream
division’s contracts and the establishment and execution of a new hedging policy for PVR’s midstream
division. In December 2006, the Penn Virginia Committee also awarded Mr. Page 1,500 common units
of us in recognition of services rendered in connection with our IPO.

108




Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the compensation paid by PVR’s general partnef, during or with respect to the
year Iended December 31, 2006, to the CEO, the CFO and PVR’s general partner s three other most highly
compensated executive officers for services relndered to PVR and its subsidiaries.

" Summary Compensation Table
i

Stock All Other
! ! Salary Bonus Awards  Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year ($) 3] () $)(2) (%)
A.Ja%nesDea.rlove.....................:.. 2006 183,500 185,000 253,348 19,024 640,872
Chief Executive Officer . )
FranlgA.Pici..........................i.. 2006 80,960 65,600 125,175 10,200 281,935

Vice IPresident and !
Chief Financial Officer !

KeithD.Horton .......................... 2006 260,000 182,000 261‘,957 32,528 736,485
Co- Pres:den.r and Chief
Oplerarmg Officer—Coal ,

Ronald KPage ........................ .. 2006 220,000 150,000 151,644 32,104 553,748
Co- Pres;dent and Chief
Operatmg Oﬂicer—-—Mrdsrream

Nane)lf M. Snyder o .. 2006 94600 77400 110444 13,987 296,431
Vice President and
Gerlwra! Counsel

4] lliepresenls the amounts of expense recognized by PVR in 2006 for financial [statement reporting, purposes
wnh respect to the PVR restricted units previously granted by the PVR Comrmttee to the Named Executive
Ofﬁcers in consideration for services rendered to PVR. These amounts were computed in accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) 123R and were based on the NYSE closmg price of PVR’s common
units on the dates of grant. See Note 14 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2} Reflects amounts paid or reimbursed by PVR’s general partner for (i) automobile allowances, executive

] ]
health exams and life insurance premiums and (ii) matching and other conmbuuons to the Named Executive
Ofﬁcers 401(k) Plan accounts. |

The cash components of PVR’s executwe compensation consist of a base salary and the opportunity to earn
an annual cash bonus. See “Compensation Dlscussaon and Analysis—Elements of Compensation.” The amounts
of sal?ry and bonus reflected in the Summary, Compensatlon Table above include :only amounts paid by PVR’s
general partner to the Named Executive Officers in consideration for services rendered to PVR and do not
mclude any amounts paid by Penn Virginia to any of the Named Executive Ofﬁcer§ in consideration for services
rendered to Penn Virginia. The specific portions of salary and bonus paid by PVR’s general partner, on one hand,
and Penn Virginia, on the other hand, depend on the portion of professional t1rlne devoted by each Named
Execuuve Officer to PVR and Penn Virginia. See “Compensation and Discussion Analysis—Compensation
Struclure for a description of the manner in which the Named Executive OfﬁCCI!S are compensated. In 2006,
Mr. Dea:love Mr. Pici and Ms. Snyder devoted approximately 50%, 32% and 43% of his or her professional
time to PVR and, accordingly, PVR’s general partner reimbursed Penn Vlrglma! for 50%, 32% and 43% of
Mr, Dearlove s, Mr. Pici’s and Ms. Snyders 2006 salary and 2006-related bonus Because each of the
Partnershlp Executives devoted all of his professmnal time to PVR in 2006, PVR’s general partner paid 100% of
his 2006 salary~and 2006-related bonus. For a discussion of the salaries and bonuses paid to the Shared
Execuu\fes by Penn Virginia, see the Penn Vlrgmla Proxy Staterent relating to its 2007 Annual Meeling of
Sharel;olders
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The equity components of PVR’s executive compensation consist of the opportunity to earn awards of
restricted units from PVR and stock options and restricted stock from Penn Virginia. Like the cash component of
executive compensation, that portion of the value of each Named Executive Officer’s equity-based compensation
paid by PVR’s general partner depends on the portion of professional time that the Named Executive Officer
devotes to PVR. The values of the stock awards reflected in the Summary Compensation Table above include
only the values of restricted unit awards granted by the PVR Committee. Each Shared Executive devoted
approximately 50% of his or her time to each of PVR and Penn Virginia in 2005. Consequenty, in 2006, the
PVR Committee granted to each Shared Executive restricted units with respect to services rendered in 2005
valued at approximately 50% of the total long-term compensation earned by him or her. The PVR Commitiee
granted all equity awards made to the Partnership Executives in 2006.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth the grant date and number of all restricted units granted to the Named
Executive Officers in 2006 by the PVR Committee with respect to services rendered to PVR in 2005.

2006 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

All Other Stock Grant Date Fair

Awards: Number of  Value of Stock and

Shares of Stock or Option Awards
Name Grant Date Units (#) %
A.James Dearlove ........... February 27, 2006 10,070 291,023
Frank A.Pici . ............. .. February 27, 2006 6,090 176,001
KeithD.Horten ............. February 27, 2006 12,110 349,979
Ronald K. Page .............. February 27, 2006 9,342 269,983
Nancy M. Snyder ............ February 27, 2006 5,086 146,985

The values of PVR's restricted units were based on the NYSE closing price of PVR’s common units on the
dates of grant. All PVR restricted units granted to the Named Executive Officers since 2005 vest over a three-
year period, with one-third of each award vesting on the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date
unless (i) PVR’s general partner terminates the restricted unitholder’s employment for cause, in which event such
restricted units are forfeited, or (ii) the restricted unitholder dies, retires after ten years of employment with
PVR's general partner or its affiliate and reaching age 62 or there ‘occurs a change in control of PVR’s general
partner, in which events all restrictions lapse. All PVR restricted units granted to the Named Executive Officers
prior to 2005 vested 25% on November 12, 2004, 25% on November 14, 2005 and 50% on November 14, 2006.
The vesting of the pre-20035 restricted units was tied to the vesting of certain of PYR subordinated units issued to
Penn Virginia in connection with PVR’s initial public offering in October 2001. Restricted units are valued based
on the NYSE closing price of PVR’s common units on the grant date. The PVR Committee grants annual
compensation-based restricted units during the first quarter of each year after the Penn Virginia Commuttee, with
the PVR Committee’s assistance, has concluded its analysis of executive compensation with respect to the
preceding year. The PVR Committee also grants restricted units from time to time in connection with the hiring
of new PVR-related employees and, while it has not done so, may consider such grants in connection with
promotions. During 2006, PVR paid quarterly distributions ranging from $0.35 to $0.40 on each restricted unit.
The distributions were paid at the same times and in the same amounts as distributions paid to the other holders

. of PVR’s common units and were taken into consideration when determining the values of the restricted units
shown previously in the Summary Compensation Table and in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table above.

Qutstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the numbers and values of PVR restricted units
not vested as of December 31, 2006 held by the Named Executive Officers on December 31, 2006. The market
value of non-vested restricted units is based on the NYSE closing price of PVR’s common units on December 29,
2006.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 2006

Stock Awards

I Number of Shares Market Value of
: or Units of Stock Shares or Units of
| That Have Stock That Have

Not Vested Not Vested

{Name ' #) %
IA. James Dearlove .. ....... ... 15,906(1) 413,715
(Frank A.Pici ........ S e 9 522(2) 247,667
Keith D. Horton .. ................. e 18 0,44(3) 469,324
Ronald K. Page ................... SRR 14,246(4) 370,538
Nancy M.Snyder .................. e 8 028(5) - 208 808

(1) Of these restricted units, 3,358 vested on February 27, 2007, 2,918 will vest on March 3, 2007, 3,356 will

:vesl on February 27, 2008, 2,918 will vest on March 3, 2008 and 3,356 will vést on February 27, 2009,

(2) ]Of these restricted units, 2,030 vested on February 27, 2007, 1,716 will vestion March 3, 2007, 2,030 will
vest on February 27, 2008, 1,716 will vest on March 3, 2008 and 2,030 will vest on February 27, 2009.

(3) iOf these restricted units, 4,038 vested on February 27, 2007, 2,968 will vestl on March 3, 2007, 4,036 will
veston February 27, 2008, 2,966 will vest on March 3, 2008 and 4,036 will vest on February 27, 2009.

{4) |Of these restricted units, 3,114 vested on February 27, 2007, 2,452 will vestion March 3, 2007, 3,114 will
yeston February 27, 2008, 2,452 will vest on March 3, 2008 and 3,114 will vest on February 27, 2009.

(5) Of these restricted units, 1,696 vested on February 27, 2007, 1,472 will vestjon March 3, 2007, 1,696 will

vest on February 27, 2008, 1,470 will vest on March 3, 2008 and 1,694 will vest on February 27, 2009.

+

Vlesti!ng of Restricted Units [

The following table sets forth the numbi:r of PVR common units acquired, and the values realized, by the
Named Executive Officers upon the vesting of PVR restricted units during 2006.

Option Exeircises and Stock Vested in 2006

f
] - Number of Shares Value Realized on
N

) ‘ Stock Awards
Acquired on Vesting Vesting
@ | 6]
z:k. James Dearlove . ................ : .................. 16,1 15'3 413,659
Frank A Pici ...................... e 7,218 187,232
Keith D. Horton ......... P B 16,968 434,972
Ronald K. Page .................... e 3,700 103,566
NancyM.Snyder ............ ... ... .. ... ... ... ..... 6,972 179,946

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation :

i .

The following table sets forth certain information regarding compensation jpaid by both PVR’s general
partnfr and Penn Virginia and deferred by the Named Executive Officers under Penn Virginia’s Supplemental
Employee Retirement Plan.
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2006 Nongualified Deferred Compensation

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Contributions Contributions  Earnings Withdrawals/ Balance at
in Last FY in Last FY in Last FY Distributions  Last FYE

Name ($) (1) ($) (%) (2) ($) ($)

A.James Dearlove .......... ... .. oot 20,115 0 20,838 0 370,728
Frank A. Pici . .o ove e ie e 403,057 0 126,571 ] 1,245,255
KeithD.Horton ........................ 1,153 0 1,843 0 17,020
Ronald K. Page .. ........ e 12,688 0 2,307 0 35,022
Nancy M. Snyder ....................... 175,877 0 105,479 0 779,958

(1) Except with respect to aggregate Penn Virginia contributions of $22,921 on behalf of Mr. Pici in 2001 and
2002, all of these amounts are included in the amounts of salary and bonus disclosed by PVR or Penn
Virginia in the Summary Compensation Tables included in PVR's Annual Reports on Form 10-K and Penn
Virginia's Proxy Statements. '

(2) These amounts are not reported in any Summary Compensation Table because they are not above-market or
preferential earnings.

The Penn Virginia Corporation Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan, or the SERP, allows all of Penn
Virginia’s and its affiliates” employees, including employees of our general partner and PVR’s general partner,
whose salaries exceeded $125,000 in 2006 to defer receipt of up to 100% of their salary, net of their salary
deferrals under Penn Virginia's 401(k) Plan, and up to 100% of their annual cash bonuses. The amounts reported
in the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table above include not only contributions and earnings thereon
related to deferred salaries and bonuses paid for services rendered to PVR, but also contributions and earnings
thereon related to deferred salaries and bonuses paid for services rendered to Penn Virginia. All deferrals under
the SERP are credited to an account maintained by Penn Virginia and are invested by Penn Virginia, at the
employee’s election, in Penn Virginia's common stock or in certain mutual funds made available by Penn

~ Virginia and selected by the employee. Since all amounts deferred under the SERP consist of previously earned

salary or bonus, all SERP participants are fully vested at all times in all amounts credited to their accounts.

. Amounts held in a participant’s account will be distributed to the participant on the earlier of the date on which

such participant’s employment terminates or there occurs a change of control of Penn Virginia. Neither we, PVR
nor Penn Virginia are required to make any contributions to the SERP. Since Penn Virginia established the SERP
in 1996, it has contributed an aggregate of $27,308 in 2001 and 2002 to the SERP in connection with offers of
employment to Mr. Pici and another executive of Penn Virginia, but has made no other contributions to the

_ SERP.

Penn Virginia has established a rabbi trust to fund the benefits payable under the SERP. Other than the
$27,308 of Penn Virginia contributions described above, the assets of the rabbi trust consist of the cash amounts

_ of salary and bonus already earned and deferred by the Named Executive Officers and other employees under the

SERP and the securities in which those amounts have been invested. Assets held in the rabbi trust are designated
for the payment of benefits under the SERP and are not available for Penn Virginia’s general use. However, the
assets held in the rabbi trust are subject to the claims of Penn Virginia's general creditors, and SERP participants
may not be paid in the event of Penn Virginia’s insolvency.

Long-Term Incentive Plans
Our Long-Term Incentive Plan

Our general partner has adopted the PVG GP, LLC Long-Tenn Incentive Plan. Qur long-term incentive plan
permits the grant of awards covering an aggregate of 300,000 common units to employees and directors of our
general partner and employees of our general partner’s affiliates who perform services for us. Awards under our
long-term incentive plan can be for common units, restricted units, unit options, phantom units and deferred
common units. Qur long-term incentive plan is administered by our Committee. No awards under our long-term
incentive plan were made in 2006.
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Our general partner’s board of directors in its discretion may terminate or amend our long-term incentive
plan at any time with respect to any units for which a grant has not yet been made! Our general partner’s board of
dlrectors also has the right to alter or amend our long-term incentive plan or an;f part of the plan from time to
tlme including increasing the number of units that may be granted subject to umtholder approval as required by
the exchange upon which the commeon units are listed at that time. However, no change in any cutstanding grant
may be made that would materially impair the rights of the participant without the{consent of the participant.
i
Restricted Units. Restricted units vest upon terms established by our commmee "In addition, all restricted
umtls will vest upon a change of control of our general partner or us. If a gran[ee s employment with, or
membership on the board of directors of, our general partner terminates for any|reason the grantee’s unvested
restricted units will be automatically forfeited unless, and to the extent, that our Committee provides otherwise.
DlStll'lbutIOHS payable with respect to restricted units may, in our Committee’s dlscretlon be paid directly to the
grantee or held by our general partner and rnade subject to a risk of forfeiture dunng the applicable restriction
period. |

Unit Options. Our long-term incentive plan also permits the grant of options covering common units. Unit
options will have an exercise price that, in the discretion of our Committee, may be less than, equal to or more
[han‘ the fair market value of the units on the date of grant. In general, umtI options granted will become
exerlcisable over a period determined by our Committee. In addition, all unit options will become exercisable
upon a change in control of our general partner or us. If a grantee’s employment with, or membership on the
boar‘d of directors of, our general partner terminates for any reason, the g'ramee‘s unit options will be
automatlcal]y forfeited unless, and to the extent, that our Committee provides 0[herw1se Upon exercise of a unit
opuclm our general partner will acquire common units in the open market or dlrectly from us or any other person
or use common units already owned by our general partner, or any combmatlonI of the foregoing. Our general
partner will be entitled to reimbursement by us for the difference between the cost incurred by our general
partner in acquiring these common units and; ‘the proceeds received by our general |partner from an optionee at the
time of exercise. Thus, the cost of the unit options will be borne by us.

'Phamom Unrits. A phantom unit entitles the grantee to receive a common unit upon the vesting of the
phantom unit, or in the discretion of our Commmee the cash equivalent of thel value of a common unit. Our
Committee will determine the time period over which phantom units granted to employees and directors will
vest! In addition, all phantom units will vest,upon a change of control of our general partner or us. If a grantee’s
employment with, or membership on the bodrd of directors of, our general partner terminates for any reason, the
grantee’s phantom units will be automatically forfeited unless, and to the ex'[ent our Commiltee provides
otherwise. Common units delivered upon the vesting of phantom units may be common units acquired by our
general partner in the open market, common|units already owned by our general panner common units acquired
by our general partner directly from us or any other person, or any combination of the foregoing. Qur general
panner will be entitled to reimbursement by us for the cost incurred in acquiring common units. Our Committee,
in ity discretion, may grant tandem distribution equivalent rights with respect to phantom units. i .

Deferred Common Units. Qur long- term incentive plan permits the grant|of deferred common units to
du‘ectors Each deferred common unit represents one common unit, which vests lmmedlately upon issuance and
is available to the holder upon termination’ or retirement from the board of directors of our general partner.
Conllmon units delivered in connection w1th deferred common units may be common units acquired by our
general partner in the open market, common,units already owned by our general partner, common units acquired
by our general partner directly from us or a'ny other person, or any combination: of the foregoing. Our general
partnier will be entitled to reimbursement by us for the cost incurred in acquiring common units. Deferred
common units awarded to directors receive gnddnmnal deferred common units equal in value to all cash or other
distributions paid by us on account of our cofmon units. :
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PVR Long-Term Incentive Plan

PVR’s general partner has adopted the Second Amended and Restated Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC
Long-Term Incentive Plan. PVR’s long-term incentive plan permits the grant of awards covering an aggregate of
600,000 commen units to employees and directors of PVR’s general partner and employees of affiliates of PVR’s
general partner who perform services for PVR. Awards under the PVR long-term incentive plan can be for
common units, restricted units, unit options, phantom units and deferred common units. The terms and conditions
of the PVR long-term incentive plan are substantially the same as those of our long-term incentive plan described
above. The PVR long-term incentive plan is administered by the PYR Committee. PVR’s general partner granted
81,906 restricted units to officers and employees of PVR’s general partner and 24,189 deferred common units to
directors of PVR’s general partner in 2006. No grants of unit options or phantom units have been made under the
PVR long-term incentive plan.

Change-in-Control Arrangements
General Parter Executive Change of Control Severance Agreements

On March 9, 2006, PVR’s general partner entered into an Executive Change of Control Severance
Agreement, or a General Partner Severance Agreement, with each of Messrs. Horton and Page containing the
terms and conditions described below.

Term. Bach General Partner Severance Agreement has a two-year term which is automatically extended for
consecutive one-day periods until terminated by notice from PVR's general partner. If such notice is given, the
General Partner Severance Agreement will terminate two years after the date of such notice.

Triggering Events. Each General Partner Severance Agreement provides severance benefits to the
Partnership Executive upon the occurrence of two events, or the GP Triggering Events. Specifically, if a change
of control of PVR’s general partner occurs and, within two years after the date of such change of control, either
(a) the Partnership Executive’s employment is terminated for any reason other than for cause or the Partnership

“Executive’s inability to perform his duties for at least 180 days due to mental or physical impairment or (b) the

Partnership Executive terminates his employment due to a reduction in his authority, duties, title, status or
responsibility, a reduction in his base salary, a discontinuation of a material incentive compensation plan in
which he participated, the failure of PVR’s general partner to obtain an agreement from its successor to assume
his General Partner Severance Agreement or the relocation by more than 100 miles of the office of PYR’s
. general partner at which he was working at the time of the change of control, then the Partnership Executive may
elect to receive the change of control severance payments and other benefits described below.

Change of Control Severance Benefits. Upon.the occurrence of the GP Triggering Events, the Partnership
Executive may elect to receive a lump sum, in cash, of an amount equal to three times the sum of his annual base
salary plus the highest cash bonus paid to him during the two-year period prior to termination, subject to
reduction as described below under “Excise Taxes.” In addition, all options to purchase shares of Penn Virginia
common stock then held by the Partnership Executive will immediately vest and will remain exercisable for the
shorter of three years or the remainder of the options’ respective terms and all restricted Penn Virginia stock and
all restricted units then held by the Partnership Executive will immediately vest and all restrictions will
lapse. PVR’s general partner will also provide certain health and dental benefit related payments to the
Partnership Executive as well as certain outplacement services. PVR’s general partner will not be entitled to
reimbursement from PVR for any of the change of control severance payments or other benefits described in this
paragraph. '

Excise Taxes. If the independent registered public accountants of PVR’s general partner determine that any
payments to be made or benefits to be provided to the Partnership Executive under his General Partner Severance
Agreement would result in him being subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue
Code, such payments or benefits will be reduced to the extent necessary to prevent him from being subject to
such excise tax.
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Restrictive Covenants. The General Partner Severance Agreement prohibits the Partnership Executive from
(a) dlisclosing, either during or after his term of employment, confidential infonn:alion regarding PVR’s general
partner or its affiliates and (b) until two years after his employment has ended, soliciting or diverting business
frorn: PVR’s general partner or its affiliates. The General Partner Severance Agreement also requires that, upon
payment of the severance benefits to the Parinership Executive, the Partnership|Executive and PVR’s general
partner release each other from all claims relating to the Partnership Executive’s employment or the termination
of such employment.

Estimated Payments '

The following table sets forth the estimated aggregate payments by PVRI’:; general partner to each of
Mes]srs. Horton and Page under his General Partner Severance Agreement assuming that there occurred a change
of control of PVR’s general partner on December 31, 2006.

Name of Executive Officer ' Estimate Severance Payment (§)
Keith D. Horton . .. ............ ORI 2,007,164
Ronald K. Page ............... e e ‘ 1,708,493

Penn Virginia Executive Change of Control Severance Agreemenis

On February 27, 2006, Penn Virginia entered into an Executive Change of Control Severance Agreement, or
a Penn Virginia Severance Agreement, with each of the Shared Executives containing terms and conditions
subslanually similar to those of the General Partner Severance Agreements. Fon a discussion of the terms and
condmons of, and the estimated payments under, the Penn Virginia Severance Agreements see the Penn V1rgm1a
Proxy Statement relating to its 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Any paymems required to be made to the
Shared Executives under the Penn Virginia Severance Agreements will be the sole responsibility of Penn
Virginia.

Compensatlon of Directors

The following table sets forth the aggrégate compensauon paid by us to the;non-employee directors of our
general partner during 2006. ‘ '
I

¥
2006 Director Compensation

Il Fees Earned or
i Paid in Cash Stock Awards Total
i
1
J

Name (t]] i (® (1) (%3]
Robert Gamett . ... oo e e e e i 0 0 0
Robert J.Hall ... ... ... ..... L 4,000 0 4,000
John C. van Roden, Jr. ...... .. e e 4,000 0 4,000
0 4,000

Jonathan B.Weller ................ Lo 4,000

Each non-employee director of our general partner receives an annual retainer of $110,000, consisting of
$20,000 of cash and $90,000 worth of deferred common units. The actual nun{ber of deferred common units
dwarded in any given year is based upon the NYSE closing price of our common units on the dates on which
such awards are granted. Each deferred common unit represents one common umt representing a limited partner
lnte‘rest in us, which vests immediately upon issuance and is available to lhle holder upon termination or
retirement from the board of directors of our general partner. The Chairman of the audit committee of the board
of dlrectors of our general partner receives an annual cash retainer of $15,000, and each audit committee member
recelves an annual cash retainer of $10,000. The Chairmen of all other committées of the board of directors of
our: general parmer receive annual cash retainers of $2,500. In addition to annua'l retainers, each non-employee
director receives $1,000 cash for each board of directors and committee meelmg he or she attends. Directors
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appointed during a year, or who cease to be directors during a year, receive a pro rata portion of cash and
deferred common units. Directors may elect to receive any cash payments in common units or deferred common
units, and may elect to defer the receipt of any cash or common units they receive under our general partner’s
Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensation Plan.

PVR’s General Partner compensates its directors in the same manner as we compensate our directors. For a
detailed discussion of the 2006 director compensation for PVR’s general partner, see PVR’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensation Plan

Our general partner has adopted the Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC Non-Employee Directors Deferred
Compensation Plan. This plan permits the non-employee directors of our general partner to defer the receipt of
any or all cash, common units and restricted units they receive as compensation. All deferrals, and any
distributions with respect to deferred common units or deferred restricted units, are credited to a deferred
compensation account, the cash portion of which is credited quarterly with interest calculated at the prime rate.
Non-employee directors of our general partner are fully vested at all times in any cash or deferred commeon units
credited 1o their deferred compensation accounts. Any restricted unit awards credited to a deferred compensation
account are subject to the same vesting and forfeiture restrictions that apply to the underlying award. Amounts
held in a non-employee director’s deferred compensation account will be distributed to the director on the
January 1* following the earlier to occur of the director reaching age 70 or the resignation or removal of the

“director from the board of directors of our general partner. Upon the death of a non-employee director, all vested
.amounts held in the deferred compensation account of the non-employee director will be distributed to the

director’s estate.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During 2006, Messrs. Hall, van Roden and Weller served on the compensation and benefits committee of
our general partner. None of these members is a former or current officer or employee of us or any of our
subsidiaries or had any relationship requiring disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K, “Transactions with
Related Persons, Promoters and Certain Control Persons.” In 2006, none of the executive officers of our general
partner served as a member of the board of directors or compensation committee of any entity that has one or
more executive officers serving on the board of directors or the compensation and benefits committee of our
general partner.

Compensation Committee Report

Under the rules established by the SEC, we are required to discuss the compensation and benefits of the
executive officers of our general partner. Because we did not compensate any of our executive officers in 2006,
we have elected to discuss the compensation and benefits of the executive officers of PVR’s general panner,
including the CEQ, CFO and the other Named Executive Officers. The Compensation and Benefits Committee is
furnishing the following report in fulfillment of the SEC’s requirements.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee has reviewed the information contained above under the
heading “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” and has discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
with management. Based upon its review and discussions with management, the Compensation and Benefits
Committee recommended to the board of directors of the Partnership’s general partner that the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis be included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Compensation and Benefits Committee

Jonathan B, Weller (Chairman)
i RobertJ. Hall
John C. van Reden, Jr.
Item'12  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Unitholder
Matters

Beneficial OQwnership of Units

!]"he following table sets forth, as of February 28, 2007, the amount and percentage of our outstanding
common units beneficially owned by (i} each person known by us to own benelﬁcmlly more than 5% of our
common units, (ii) each director of our general partner, (iii) each executive ofﬁcer of our general partner and
PVRs general partner and (iv) all directors and executive officers of our general panner 4§ a group.

i
Name of Beneficial Owner ; Common Units (1) Percent of Class (2)
Penn! Virginia Resource GP Corp. (3) ... o 11,279,925 28.9%
Penn V:rgmla Resource LP Corp. (3) ...... e e 19,362,198 49.6%
Kanawha RailCorp.(3) ............. ... e e 1,445,301 3.7%
A. James Dearlove . ....oooovvennnn. .. e l 8,000 *
RODEI GAITEIL ... ..ottt et sttt ee et e et s 7,506(4) *
RobertJ.Hall .. ... ... 1,606{4) *
Keith D. Horton ....................... Lol e 2,500 *
Ronald K. Page ....................... P 2,500 *
Frank A. Pici ..o, O 6,600 *
Nanc]y M.Sayder ...................... b 4,000 *
JohnC.van Roden, Jr. .................. e 1,506(4) *
Jonathan B. Weller ... . e e 3,506(4) *
All dlrectors and executive officers as a group (Opersons) .............. 37,624(5) *
* Less than 1% !
(1) Unless otherwise indicated, all units are owned directly by the named holder and such holder has sole power
to vote and dispose of such units. i
(2) Based on 39,074,500 common units issied and outstanding on February 28,{2007. On February 21, 2007,
lhere were approximately 3,400 holders of our Commaon units.

3) Penn Virginia is the ultimate parent company of Penn Virginia Resource GP Corp., Penn Virginia Resource
LP Corp. and Kanawha Rail Corp. As such, Penn Virginia may be deemed to‘beneﬁcmlly own the common
units held by Penn Virginia Resource GP Corp., Penn Virginia Resource LP Corp. and Kanawha Rail Corp.,
which together own 82.1% of our common units. The address for each of Pem'1 Virginia Resource GP Corp.,
Penn Virginia Resource LP Corp. and Kanawha Rail Corp. is c/a Penn Vu—glma Corporation, Three Radnor
_Corporale Center, Suite 300, 100 Matsonford Road, Radnor, Pennsylvania 19087.

) :lncludes 1,006 deferred common units. |

(5) Includes 4,024 deferred common units,
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2006 regarding the options
outstanding and securities issued and to be issued under our general partner’s equity compensation plans not
approved by our unitholders. Our general partner does not have any equity compensation plans which were
approved by our unitholders.

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities To Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under
Be Issued Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation
Outstanding Options, Qutstanding Options, Plans (Excluding Securities
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (a))}
Plan Category (a) B ()
Equity compensation plans approved by )
unttholders ...................... - N/A N/A N/A
Equity compensation plans not approved
by unitholders ................... 0 N/A 300,000

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Transactions with Related Persons
Management and Administrative Services

We are managed and controlled by our general partner pursuant to our partnership agreement. Under our
partnership agreement, our general partner is reimbursed for all direct and indirect expenses it incurs or, payments
it makes on our behalf. These expenses include salaries, fees and other compensation and benefit expenses of
employees, officers and directors, insurance, other administrative or overhead expenses and all other expenses
necessary or appropriate to conduct our business. The costs allocated to us by our general partner for
administrative services and overhead totaled $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Incentive Distributions

PVR’s partnership agreement provides for incentive distributions payable to its general partner, which is a
wholly owned subsidiary of us, out of our Available Cash (as defined in PVR’s partnership agreement) in the
event quarterly distributions to unitholders exceed certain specified targets. In general, subject to certain
limitations, if a quarterly distribution exceeds a target of $0.275 per common and Class B unit, we will receive
incentive distributions equal to (i) 15% of that portion of the distribution per common and Class B unit which
exceeds but is not more than $0.325, plus (ii) 25% of that portion of the quarterly distribution per common and
Class B unit which exceeds $(.325 but is not more than $0.375, plus (iii) 50% of that portion of the quarterly
distribution per common and Class B unit which exceeds $0.375. Because we did not consummate our initial
public offering until December 2006, we did not receive any distributions from PVR in 2006. See also ltem I,
“Business—OQOur Ownership Interest in PVR,” and Item i, “Business—Partnership Distributions.”

Units Purchase Agreement

In connection with our initial public offering in December 2006, we entered into a Units Purchase
Agreement with PVR. Pursuant to the Units Purchase Agreement, we purchased an aggregate of 416,444
common units and 4,045,311 Class B units from PVR in three separate sales in December 2006 and January
2007. The total purchase price paid by us to PVR for the common and Class B units was $113.6 million.

Omnibus Agreement

Penn Virginia, PVR, PVR’s general partner and the Operating Company are parties to an Omnibus
Agreement that governs potential competition among them. Upon completion of our initial public offering, we
‘became subject to the Omnibus Agreement as an affiliate of Penn Virginia’s, The Omnibus Agreement was
entered into in connection with PVR’s initial public offering in October 2001.
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;Under the Omnibus Agreement, Penn Virginia and its affiliates, including us!are not permitted to engage in
the busmesses of: (i} owning, mining, processing, marketing or transporting coal, (ii) owning, acqumng or
leasmg coat reserves or (iii) growing, harvesting or selling timber, unless it or the§r first offers us the opponumty
to acqunre these businesses or assets and the board of directors of PVR’s general partner, with the concurrence of
its conflicts committee, elects to cause PVR not to pursue such opportunity or|acquisition. In addition, Penn
Virginia and its affiliates will be able to purchase any business which includes the purchase of coal reserves,
timber or infrastructure relating to the production or transportation of coal if the majority value of such business
is not derived from owning, mining, processing, marketing or transporting coal or, growing, harvesting or selling
tm'lbler If Penn Virginia or its affiliates make any such acquisition, it or they must offer PVR the opportumty to
purchase the coal reserves, timber or related infrastructure following the acqulsluon and PVR’s general partner’s
COﬂﬂlClS committee will determine whether PVR should pursue the opportunity! The restriction will terminate
upon a change in control of Penn Virginia or PVR s general partner.

|
i
Non-Compete Agreement |

We and PVR are parties to an Non-Compete Agreement that governs potem:ial competition among us. The
Non-Compete Agreement was entered into in connection with our initial public offering in December 2006, but
is not effective until we are no longer supject to the Omnibus Agreement. Pursuant to the Non-Compete
Agreemem we will have a right of first refusal with respect 1o the potential acqummon of any general partner
mterest and any other equity interests under common ownership with such general partner, in a publicly traded
partnership, other than any partnerships engaged in the coal or timber businesses descnbed above or the business
of gathering or processing natural gas or other hydrocarbons. PVR will have a nght of first refusal with respect to
the potentlal acquisition of assets that relate to the business of (i) ownmg, mlnmg, processing, marketing or
tran§pon1ng coal, (ii) owning, acquiring or ‘leasmg coal reserves, {iii) ‘growing, _harvestmg or selling timber or
(iv) lthe gathering or processing of natural gas or other hydrocarbons. I

Polilcies Regarding Transactions with Related Persons

Under our Corporate Governance Principles, all directors must recuse themselves from any decision
affepting their personal, business or professional interests. In addition, as a general matter, our practice is that any
proposed transaction between us (or any of our subsidiaries) and Penn Virginia or PVR (or any of their respective
subsidiaries) is approved by the conflicts committee of our general partner. For a discussion of the conflicts
commltlee of our general partner, see “Item 10—Directors, Executive Ofﬁcers: and Corporate Governance—
Commntees of the Board of Directors of our General Partner—Conflicts Commitiee.” With respect to any
proposed transaction with any other related person, as a general matter, our pI’dCIlCC is that such transactions are
approved by disinterested directors. Our Geéneral Counsel advises the Board as to which transactions involve
related persons, which transactions require the approval of the conflicts commlttee of our general partner and
Wth]‘l directors are prohibited from voting on a particular transaction. All of lhe related transactions described
above which were entered into since JcmuaryI I, 2006 were approved in accordance with the foregoing policies.

Director Independence i

Messrs. Garrett, Hall, van Roden andf Weller are “independent directors,’] as defined by NYSE Listing
Staxlldards and SEC rules and regulations. We refer to those directors as “Independent Directors.” The board of
dlreclors of our general partner has determined that none of the Independent Directors have any relationship with

us other than as a director of our general partner or its affiliates, Penn Virginia or PVR's general partner.
I
1
I

b
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Item 14  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

In connection with the audits of our and our general partner’s financial statements for 2006, we entered into
an agreement with KPMG which sets forth the terms by which KPMG will perform audit services for us. That
agreement is subject to alternative dispute resolution procedures, an exclusion of the right to collect punitive
damages and various other provisions. The following table shows fees for professional audit services rendered by
KPMG for the audit of our and our general partner’s annual financial statements for 2006, the audits of PVR’s
and PVR’s general partner’s annual financial statements for 2006 and 2005, the audit of PVR’s internal control
over financial reporting, or ICFR, and fees billed for other services rendered by KPMG.

2006 . 2003

Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P.

Audit Fees (1) ..ottt $ 510,100 $§ —
Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.
Audit Fees (2) ....... e e 696,100 668,300
Audit-Related Fees (3) ... ... .o e 5,000 5,000
Tax Fees .ot e e 5,300 ——
AllOtherFees . ... .. . e — —

Total Fees . ...t e $1,216,500  $673,300

(1) Audit fees for us consist of fees for the audit of our 2006 financial statements ($90,000) and audits
performed in connection with our IPO and related consents and comfort letters ($385,000). Also included in
audit fees are reimbursements of travel-related expenses.

(2) Audit fees for PVR consist of fees for the audit of PVR'’s financial statements, including the audit of PVR’s
ICFR, consents for registration statements and comfort letters. Also included in audit fees are
reimbursements of travel-related expenses,

(3) Audit-related fees in 2006 and 2005 included $5,000 pertaining to debt compliance letters issued by KPMG
for the Notes.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent
Registered Public Accountants

The policy of the audit commitiee of our general partner is to pre-approve all audit, audit-related and
non-audit services provided by the independent registered public accountants. These services may include audit
services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. The audit committee may also pre-approve
particular services on a case-by-case basis. The independent registered public accountants are required to
periodically report to the audit committee regarding the extent of services provided by the independent registered
public accountants in accordance with such pre-approval. The audit committee may also delegate pre-approval
authority to one or more of its members. Such member(s) must report any decisions to the audit committee at the
next scheduled meeting.
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Item 15  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(D

@

(3)
3.1

(3.2

(3.3

(3.4)

(3.5)

(3.6)

(3.7

(3.8)
(3.9)
(3.]?)
(3.11)
(3.12)

(3.13)

PART IV

l'l’he following documents are filed as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Financial Statements—The financial statements filed herewith are listed| in the Index to Financial
Statements on page 68 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

All schedules are omitted because they are not required, inapplicable orjthe information is included in
the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

Exhibits

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L..P. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed oni]uly 11, 2006).

Amendment dated June 19, 2006 to the Certificate of Limited Partnership of Penn Virginia GP
Holdings, L.P. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 filed on July 11, 2006). :

Amendment dated September 6, 2006 to the Certificate of Limited Pa.rtnershlp of Penn Virginia GP
Holdings, L.P. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.15 to Amendment No. 2 to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S:1 filed on October 6, 2006).

Amended and Restated Agreemem of Limited Partnership of Penn V1rg1ma GP Holdings, L.P.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 13, 20006). i

Certificate of Formation of PVG GP, LLC (incorporated by reference 10 Exhibit 3.12 to Amendment
No. 1 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on September 7. 2006).

First Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of PVG GP, LLC {incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K 'filed on December 13, 2006).

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 filed on July 19, 2001). '

First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Penn!Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Amendment No. I to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 3 to Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Amendment No. 2 to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 4 to Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Amendment No. 3 to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Paﬂnershlp of Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Amendment No. 4 to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limiteld Partnership of Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P."s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2006).

Certificate of Formation of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.5 to Amendment No. 1 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.’s Registration Statement
Form §-1 filed on September 7, 2001).
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(3.14)

@1

4.2)

4.3)

(10.1)

(10.2)

(10.3)

(10.4)

{10.5)

(10.6)

(10.7)

(10.8)

Fourth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Penn Virginia Resource
GP, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.”s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2006).

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of March 27, 2003 among Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC,
Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. and the noteholders party thereto (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L..P.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2,
2003).

First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement and Parent Guaranty dated as of March 3, 2005 among
Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC, Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. and the noteholders party
thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 9, 2005).

Second Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement dated as of December 11, 2006 among Penn
Virginia Operating Co., LLC, Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. and the noteholders party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2006).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of March 3, 2005 among Penn Virginia Operating
Co., LLC, PNC Bank, National Association, as agent, and the other financial institutions party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on March 9, 2005).

First Amendment, Waiver, and Consent to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
July 15, 2005 among Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC, PNC Bank, National Association, as agent,
and the other financial institutions party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.”s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 21, 2005).

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of August 22, 2006 among
Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC, PNC Bank, National Association, as agent, and the other financial
institutions party thereto {incorporated by reference 10 Exhibit 10.1 to Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2006).

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 11, 2006
among Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC, PNC Bank, National Association, as agent, and the other
financial institutions party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Penn Virginia
Resource Partners, L.P.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2006).

Contribution and Conveyance Agreement dated as of December 8, 2006 among Penn Virginia
Resource LP Corp., Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, Kanawha Rail Corp., Penn Virginia GP
Holdings, L.P. and Penn Virginia Resource GP Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 13, 2006).

Omnibus Agreement dated October 30, 2001 among the Penn Virginia Corporation, Penn Virginia
Resource GP, LL.C, Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC and Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Amendment No. 2 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners,
L.P.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on October 4, 2001).

Amendment No. | to Omnibus Agreement dated December 19, 2002 among the Penn Virginia
Corporation, Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC and Penn Virginia
Resource Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Penn Virginia Rescurce
Partners, L.P.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Non-Compete Agreement dated December 8, 2006 among Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P., Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. and Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.”s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 13, 2006).
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(10.9)
(10.10)
(10.11)
(10.12)

(10. 113)

(10.14)

(10.15)

(10.16)

(10.17)

(10.18)

@21L.1)
(L1
(31.2)

(32.1)

(32.2)
!

1
* M?nagemenl contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

PVG GP, LL.C Long-Term lncenti;ve Plan (incorporated by reference to;Exhibit 10.2 1o Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 27, 2006).*

Form of deferred common unit grzint agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 27, 2006).]"

Form of restricted unit award agreement '(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 27, 2006).*

PVG GP, LLC Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensation Plan (mcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Decemmber 27, 20006).*

Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC Second Amended and Restated Long:Term Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on February 27, 2006).*

]

Form of deferred common unit grzim agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.’s; Annual Report en Ferm 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2004).% '

Form of restricted unit award agre:‘:mem (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Penn Virginia
Resource Partners, L.P.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).*

Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensauon Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Penn Virginia Resource Parmers L.P.’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).*

Executive Change of Control Severance Agreement dated March 9, 2006 between Penn Virginia
Resource GP, LLC and Keith D. Horton (incorporated by reference to Exhlblt 10.1 to Penn Virginia
Resource Partners, L.P.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14 2006).*

Executive Change of Control Sevérance Agreement dated March 9, 20016 between Penn Virginia
Resource GP, LLC and Ronald K.'Page {(incorporated by reference to Exhlb]l 10.2 to Penn Virginia
Resource Partners, L.P.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March ]4 2006).*

Subsidiaries of Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to
Amendment No. 2 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on October 6, 2006).

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C;. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. \

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant (o Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. | i

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant tlo Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Reglstrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PENN VIRGINIA GP HOLDINGS, L.P.

By: PVG GP, LL.C
By: fs/  FRANK A. P1ci
March 8, 2007 Frank A, Pici
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer ‘
. By: /s/ FORREST W. MCNAIR |
March 8, 2007 o Forrest W. McNair

Yice President and Principal Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/  A.JAMES DEARLOVE Chairman of the Board and March 8§, 2007

(A. James Dearlove) Chief Executive Officer

fs{ ROBERT GARRETT Director March 8, 2007
(Robert :arrett)
/s/ ROBERTJ. HALL Director March 8, 2007

(Robert J. Hall)

/st FranK A. Pic1 Director and Vice President and March 8, 2007

{Frank A. Pici) Chief Financial Officer

Is/ Nawncy M. SNYDER

{Nancy M. Snyder)

/s/  JOHN C. VAN RODEN, JR.

(John C. van Roden, Jr.)

Is/ JONATHAN B. WELLER

(Jonathan B. Weller)

Director and Vice President and
General Counsel

Director

Director
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; Exhibit 31.1
1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18'U.8.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

i
1, A. James Dearlove, Chief Executive Officer of PYG GP, LLC, the general partner of Penn Virginia GP

Holdmgs L.P. (the “Registrant™), certify that:

Date:

i .
L. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Registrant (this “Report™);

1

:

{ 2. Based on my knowledge, this Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
Ito state a material fact necessary to make the staterments made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
Report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Report;

. 4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
dlsclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 132-15(e)} and 15d-15(e)) and internal
conlrol over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-:15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
Reg:stranl and we have:

{a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused jsuch disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under ogr supervision, 1o ensure that rnatenal information relating 1o the
Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in WhlICh this Report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasolnable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this Report our conclusions about the effectiveness of| the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this Report based on such evaluation; and

{d) Disclosed in this Report any change in the Registrant’s internal c(l)ntrol over financial reporting
that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that.l}as materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s-internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based ontour most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the board of
directors of the general partner of the Registrant; 1

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the de|51gn or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the Registrant's inEemal control over financial reporting.

!
March 8, 2007 i /s/  A.JAMES DEARLOVE

‘ |

1

A, James :Dearlove
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Frank A. Pici, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of PVG GP, LLC, the general partner of Penn
Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. (the “Registrant™), certify that: ’

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Registrant (this “Report”™);

2. Based on my knowledge, this Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the stalements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
Report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Report:

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
Registrant and we have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this Report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this Report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this Report based on such evaluation; and

{d) Disclosed in this Report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the board of
directors of the general partner of the Registrant:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 8, 2007 fs/  FrRANK A. Picl

Frank A. Pici
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Exhibit 32.1

ln connection with the Annual Report of Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. (the “Partnership”) on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commlssmn on the date hereof
(the “Report”) I, A. James Dearlove, Chief; Executive Officer of PVG GP, LLC the general partner of the
Parmers,hlp certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to iSection 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxlcy Act of 2002, 1o the best of my knowledge that:

Exchange Act of 1934; and

condition and results of operations of the Partnership.

March 8, 2007

(1) The Report fully complies wnh the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial

Is/ A, JAMES DEARLOVE

A. Jamefi Dearlove
Chiefl Executive Officer

This written statement is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commlssmn as an exhibit to the
Report. A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Partnership
and w1]l be retained by the Partnership and furnished to the Securities and Exch.mge Commission or its staff

upon request.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. (the “Partnership”) on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the “Report™), 1, Frank A. Pici, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of PVG GP, LLC, the general partner
of the Partnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of my knowledge, that: .

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Partnership.

March 8, 2007 /st FRANK A. Pici

Frank A. Pici
Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

This written statement is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the
Report. A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Partnership
and will be retained by the Partnership and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.
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Corporate Information

Directors*

A. James Dearlove

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Ofﬁce‘r; Director, Chief Executive Officer, and
Presr‘qent of Penn Virginia Carporation and
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Ofﬁce} of Penn Virginia Resource GF LLC, general
partner of Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P

Robqrt Garrett

Founder and Managing Director of AdMedia
Partners, Inc. and Chairman of the Board of
Penn Virginia Corporation

Rohért J. Hall +-23

Privat'e Consutltant, former Publisher and
Chain:man of Phitadelphia Newspapers, inc.,
former General Manager of Detroit Free Press

|
Fran§( A. Picl
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer;
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Ofﬁce:r of Penn Virginia Corporation and Director,
Vice President and Chief Financial Cfficer of
PennVirginia Resource GP, LLC, general partner
of Pe?n Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.

Nancy M. Snyder

Vice President and General Counsel, Executive
Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate
Secrejtary of Penn Virginia Corporation and
Director, Vice President and General Counsel of
Penn*Vfrgim‘a Resource GF, LLC, general partner
of Penn Virdinia Resource Partners, L.P.

Johnl C. van Roden, Jr. *23
Consuiltant to Glatfelter, a global manufacturer of
specialty papers and engineered products

Jonathan B. Weller 123
Former Vice Chairman and Trustee of
Penn;sy.'vania Real Estate Investment Trust

* Of our general partner, PVG GP LLC
(1) Member of the Audit Commiliee
(2) Member of the Compensation & Benefits Commitiee
{3) Member of the Conflicts Commitlee

Management*

A. James Dearlove
President and Chief Executive Officer

Frank A. Plci
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer,

Nancy M. Snyder
Vice President and General Counsel

Ferrest W. McNair
Vice President and Controller

Steven A. Hartman
Vice President and Treasurer

Jean M. Whitehead
Secretary

Transfer Agent and Reglistrar

American Stock Transfer
and Trust Company
Mailing Address:

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

{800) 937-5449 phone !
{718) 236-2641 fax 1

Certlfications

We have filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, as an exhibit

to our most recently filed Annual Report
on Form 10-K, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
Section 302 certifications.

Note — The NYSE certification is not
applicable to PVG this year.

(On]Decembery21R2006 XA ameslDear|ove)
BV slChairmanland,CEOYand][Catherine]
[RNKinneyYPresidenttand]Co.COOIOHNYSES
(GroupYinc®holdlupfalcommemorativel
PDlaqne contamng ihe certicaiomorliisting|
forBVGIonlihe]NewdYorkiStock!




Penn Virginia
GP Holdings, L.P.

Three Radnor Corporate Center
Suite 300

100 Matsonford Road

Radnor, PA 19087

{610) 687-8900 phone
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